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Corporate Information (continued)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TRBESE

of Dlrectors, |
) shareholders

subsidiaries
the year en

FAERRESE

Dear investors,

Looking back on 2024, the world economy slowly recovered, confronted
with multiple crises including intensified geopolitics and deepened
reconstruction of the supply chain of the global industry chain. Despite
the complex and volatile international political and economic environment,
the Chinese economy has effectively implemented various existing policies
and stepped up efforts to introduce a package of incremental policies,
which has significantly boosted economic recovery and effectively boosted
social confidence. Confronted with both opportunities and challenges,
the Group seeks good quality and great progress beyond the industrial
cycle, accumulates new momentum for development and realizes new
development, driven by “cloud + Al”.

During the reporting period, the Group continued with stable growth in terms
of operating results, recording a new high in history. The Group recorded a
turnover of HK$89.1 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 21%;
the after-tax net profit attributable to shareholders of HK$1.05 billion with a
year-on-year increase of 14%; and the return on equity (ROE) of 12.6%.
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In 2024, the revenue of the artificial intelligence business was approximately
HK$3.78 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 42%; and that of
the cloud computing business was approximately HK$3.9 billion with a year-
on-year of 28%. In terms of region, the turnover from North Asia amounted
to HK$58.43 billion with a year-on-year of 4%; while that from Southeast
Asia amounted to HK$30.65 billion with a year-on-year of 74%.

The steady growth of the Group’s performance was mainly attributed to:
(1) continuous and stable growth in the cloud business; (2) substantial
demand for computing power generated by Al; (3) completion of localization
deployment and in-depth development in information technology application
innovation; (4) strong development momentum in the Southeast Asian
market; (5) enhanced operation and management, accelerated organizational
iterations and upgrades, optimized processes, and a strong emphasis on
the development of information systems.

During the reporting period, the Group steadily advanced its businesses in
accordance with the established strategic direction, with the main progress
as follows:
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERETE (B)

We ranked among the top five in the cloud
management services market and maintained
an absolute leading position

According to the market share report on China’s third-party cloud
management services released by IDC, VSTECS ranked among the
top five and was one of the largest cloud service providers in China
with an absolute leading position in the cloud services market. In
2024, the Group strengthened its cooperation with leading cloud
vendors to provide customers with a full-lifecycle of cloud services,
including consulting and design, migration and construction, operation
and maintenance management, application and data, as well as
development and value-added services. The performance of our cloud
business continued to grow steadlily.

Amazon Cloud has been awarded the Best Growth Partner Award for
two consecutive years and has obtained over 20 AWS certifications.
It provided HKEX with integrated software and hardware solutions,
deploying a cloud architecture that meets security and compliance
requirements. By providing implementation plans, Amazon Cloud
supported HKEX in successfully completing system migration, earning
high recognition from the customer. It assisted Luckin Coffee in
migrating its IDC business to the AWS cloud platform, significantly
enhancing system availability, greatly reducing operation and
maintenance costs, and improving customer experience.

In cooperation with Huawei Cloud, Qianhai Reinsurance project
provided big data solutions based on Huawei Cloud, involving
data import, data cleansing and governance, hierarchical data
management, etc., and introducing data warehouse services, data
governance and management services. As a result, the complexity of
data governance task management was greatly reduced.

VSTECS began to cooperate with Alibaba Cloud in 2019, and has
become its largest general distribution service provider. It provides
technical support for customers to ensure the delivery of multiple key
projects. In the National Grand Theater project, targeted solutions
were put forward to satisfy the customers’ requirements of computer
room relocation, information-based transformation, and high security
level of business on the cloud, including supporting migration while
maintaining the business operation at the source-end host in the
source environment, realizing smooth business transitions, and
maximizing user safety.
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In 2024, in the field of private cloud, the Group realized significant
growth in performance. The Group assisted users to improve
reduce costs, and enhance system security
and reliability by virtue of its rich experience and advantages in
virtualization deployment, load balancing, migration, and operation and
maintenance. The enhanced technical support and service capabilities
effectively improved the gross profit, and the gross profit of private
cloud business can reach about 20%. Customers served include
PayPal, Industrial Bank, Wuxi AppTec, etc.

IT utilization rate,

Cloud Star, a subsidiary of the Group and a member unit of China
Open Source Cloud League, focused on multi-cloud management
and is one of the first units to obtain the certification of Trusted Cloud
Service ® Multi-Cloud Management Platform in China. It participated
in compilation of the Multi-Cloud Management Platform Application
Scenario Survey Report, which has been officially released, and
carried out the information collection for the Professional Cloud
Service Industry Atlas (2025) jointly with China Academy of Information
and Communications Technology. Moreover, its independently
developed Right Cloud multi-cloud management platform facilitated
the implementation of more than 30 cloud supervision projects of the
provincial and municipal governments and more than 20 group cloud
management projects of large-scale central state-owned enterprises.
It actively promoted the expansion of the cloud service market,
facilitated the digital transformation of enterprises, and provided
corporate customers with more flexible and efficient cloud service
solutions, thereby achieving business innovation and growth.

Explosive growth of Al performance and
increase of Cloud Star gross profit to 60%

At present, the digital economy has become an important driving force
to promote economic transformation and upgrading and achieve high-
quality development. The rapid development of Al+ applications in the
wave of the digital economy, has promoted the rapid growth of the
global demand for computing power. In 2024, the Group’s Al business
segment recorded a growth rate of up to 42%.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERETE (B)
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Cloud Start integrates multiple computing power to provide a
convenient development environment for application innovation such
as cloud native and Al, and serves more than 3,500 customers
through ecological opening. As a Huawei Cloud software provider,
Cloud Star works with Huawei to provide products and services for 7
out of 9 national intelligent computing centers approved to be built by
the Ministry of Science and Technology. During the reporting period,
Cloud Star was awarded as a “specialized and sophisticated” small
and medium-sized enterprise in Beijing, and the “Excellent Case of
Diversified Computing Power” Award of Trusted Cloud, and was
selected into the list of “2024 Digital Economy Innovation Case” of
Xinhuanet. Cloud Star has maintained continuous investment in the Al
field, and invested in research and development of solutions such as
Al model markets, which continued to improve the profit level with a
gross profit margin exceeding 60%.

Completion of localization deployment and
in-depth development in the information
technology application innovation industry

During the reporting period, the wave of localization was in the
ascendant, and the performance of domestic brands in China
accounted for more than 70%. In 2024, the Group initially completed
the overall deployment of the information technology application
innovation industry with the performance reaching RMB9 billion. It
created rich information technology application innovation cases such
as the comprehensive digital transformation of the network of China
FAW Group Co., Ltd., the smart campus of Wuhan University, the
localization and digital office throughout Pudong Development Bank,
and the smart pathological data management of the Second Affiliated
Hospital of Zhejiang University School of Medicine. It held a series
of exchange meetings on the new quality productivity of information
technology application innovation together with Loongson Technology
Co., Ltd., and was awarded the vice chairman unit of the “Integrated
Community of Information Technology and Independent Innovation” by
Loongson Technology Co., Ltd..

In addition, the Group has increasingly close cooperation with
Huawei and has become the authorized general distributor of
Huawei’s full product line of government and enterprise business
in China. It provides network deployment and other services for
State Grid, the Customs, Minsheng Bank, China Life Insurance and
other large customers. At the same time, the Group actively carries
out cooperation with Huawei Enterprise Partners, and enhances
cooperation with xFusion, Huakun Zhenyu, Powerleader, Shanxi Baixin
and other manufacturers, achieving rapid growth in performance.
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Fivefold increase of net profit for the past
decade in Southeast Asia, continuously helping
Chinese enterprises to expand overseas

The Group’s performance continued to rise in Southeast Asia. During
the Reporting Period, the Group became the preferred partner of
“Starlink” network in Asia. Currently, the cooperation is carried out in
Malaysia and Indonesia, which is expected to continue to expand.
The Group has maintained strategic relationships with NVIDIA for
many years and has won several awards such as the Best General
Distributor in Thailand and Singapore. The Group has won more than
100 awards from well-known technology enterprises at home and
abroad, among which, VSTECS won the VMware “Global Outstanding
Contribution” award, and VSTECS (Indonesia) won the Huawei “Best
General Distributor” Award.

During the Reporting Period, the turnover of domestic brands
contributed HK$6.82 billion with an increase of 14% year-on-year. The
Group continued to help domestic brands such as Huawei, Lenovo,
iFlytek, H3C and Xiaomi to expand overseas, as the largest partner of
Huawei in overseas markets and Lenovo in Southeast Asian market.

From 2015 to 2024, the Group’s net profit growth rate reached 646%
in Southeast Asia. In the future, the Group will continue to expand its
advantages in the Southeast Asian market by making comprehensive
deployment in future technology such as artificial intelligence and
cloud services, which will promote the overall performance growth of
the Group.

Enhancing internal management and embracing
Al new era

VSTECS attaches great importance to enterprise management, relying
on channels, conducts continuous optimization, empowerment and
iteration, strengthens collaboration among departments, and enhances
exploration for customer-oriented ecology. In 2024, the Group focused
on internal management, optimized processes, improved operational
standards, and strengthened internal information development, in
order to build core competitiveness.

'R
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERETE (B)

Where there is a will, there is a way. In 2025, we will continue to forge
ahead, make innovations, and actively expand the domestic and
foreign markets with a global perspective, in order to create digital
solutions with greater foresight, better quality and higher efficiency
for customers. We will gather the superior resources of all parties
to promote the deep integration and innovative development of all
links of the industry chain, help enterprises to brave the wind and the
waves of Al, and lead the new journey of digital transformation of the
industry.

Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2025
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIC DIRECTION
RERARKBLR

The Group is a leading Information, Communication and Technology (“ICT”)
products and services provider, serving a wide regional customer base.
The Group has over 80 offices in nine countries namely China, Thailand,
Malaysia, Singapore, Indonesia, Philippines, Cambodia, Myanmar and
Laos. The three main businesses are Enterprise Systems, Consumer
Electronics and Cloud Computing. The Enterprise Systems segment
designs, installs and implements IT infrastructure for companies, while the
Consumer Electronics segment and the Cloud Computing Segment provide
various finished IT products and cloud computing solutions and services
to customers. Leading IT vendors such as Huawei, Alibaba, Tencent, HP,
Apple, Seagate, AMD, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft,
Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more use the Group’s network of over
50,000 channel partners in the region to distribute their products.

As the leading distributor of ICT products in the region, we have
established, through our reseller channel, a broad customer base ranging
from individuals, small and medium enterprises to large corporations and
government entities who have been serviced by our regional resellers over
the past 30 years.

Our infrastructure is built on a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning
system to manage our sales, distribution, finance and logistic operations to
provide efficient customer services with speed and reliability.

We have an extensive distribution network of over 50,000 resellers,
comprising retailers, system integrators and corporate dealers. These
resellers not only market a wide range of products but they also provide
support and repair services to the end-users.

The Group creates sustainable value for shareholders through the following
strategies:

° Focus on our key markets in China and South East Asia

° Focus on our extensive list of vendors to expand our product portfolio
° Focus on strengthening our working capital and financial management
° Focus on improving operating efficiencies and cost management
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEBEW RS

Business Review

The Group has recorded a considerable revenue this year. The Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024 was HK$89,085,588,000
(2023: HK$73,891,296,000). Gross profit for the year ended 31 December
2024 amounted to HK$3,929,056,000 (2023: HK$3,496,516,000).
Operating profit for the year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to
HK$1,699,225,000 (2023: HK$1,435,147,000). Consolidated net profit
attributable to equity shareholder for the year ended 31 December 2024
amounted to HK$1,051,979,000 (2023: HK$922,023,000). Basic earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2024 was HK75.67 cents (2023:
HK65.62 cents) per share.

During the year, revenue from the enterprise systems segment increase by
30% to HK$52,338,202,000, contributing 59% of the total Group revenue.
Revenue from the consumer electronics segment increase by 8% to
HK$32,812,964,000, contributing 37% of the total Group revenue. Revenue
from the cloud computing segment increased by 28% to HK$3,934,422,000,
contributing 4% of the total Group revenue.

Geographically, both North Asia and South East Asia performed steadily in
the year ended 31 December 2024. During the year, revenue generated in
North Asia slightly increased by 4% to HK$58,434,073,000, contributing
approximately 66% of the total Group revenue. Revenue from South East
Asia increased by 74% to HK$30,651,515,000, contributing approximately
34% of the total Group revenue. The Group has continuously aimed to
widen our product range in order to provide more choices to our customers.
Our extensive and diversified product lines now include Huawei, Alibaba,
Tencent, HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Western Digital, Lenovo, Dell, IBM, Acer,
Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some which are specific to the Group or the industries in which
the Group operates as well as others that are common to most if not all
other businesses. The directors have established a policy to ensure that
significant risks which may adversely affect the Group’s performance and
ability to deliver on its strategies, as well as those which may present
positive opportunities, are identified, reported, monitored, and managed on
a continuous basis.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are
shown in note 3 to the financial statements.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors and management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group. During the
year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE DN (&)

Relationships with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
Regular and continuous communication with our suppliers, customers and
other stakeholders are carried out through regular meetings, conferences,
and promotional events.

Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintain the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable development of
its business. The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.

Prospects

Our extensive portfolio of products and network will enable us to continue
to drive growth for the Group. We will continue to execute strategies to
increase market shares as well as the range of products and services
offered. This will enable the Group to continue to focus on growth in all
business segments.
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Our strategy remains to constantly redefine our value proposition as a trusted
partner with strong relationships and deep understanding of our customers’
needs. Strategically we will continue to expand in China and South East
Asia. We will continue to work actively to improve internal operational and
financial efficiencies to improve margins. We will also continue to expand our
business into consumer electronics and cloud computing.

With our experienced and dedicated management team, we are confident
that we will be able to continue to grow our business.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and bank balances were
approximately HK$3,947,768,000 (2023: approximately HK$3,325,140,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$9,244,032,000 (2023: approximately HK$8,103,976,000).
The net debt to total asset ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash and
bank balances divided by total assets, was 0.14 as at 31 December 2024
(2023: 0.14).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded total current assets
of approximately HK$36,111,171,000 (2023: approximately
HK$32,885,088,000) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$27,825,591,000 (2023: approximately HK$26,556,103,000). The current
ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current assets by the total
current liabilities, was approximately 1.30 times as at 31 December 2024
(2023: approximately 1.24 times).

The Group recorded increase in shareholders’ funds from approximately
HK$8,222,836,000 as at 31 December 2023 to approximately
HK$8,639,577,000 as at 31 December 2024.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEENRE DN (&)

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank balances of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand
baht, Philippine pesos and Indonesian rupiah.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars, Thailand baht, Philippine
pesos and Indonesian rupiah.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had certain financial assets pledged for
financial liabilities, deposits secured for issuance for and a building pledged
against secured mortgage loan as set out in notes 3.4 and 13 to the
financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 5,639 (2023: 4,322) full time
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry practice,
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonuses and share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as individual
performance. Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement
schemes. The net total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December
2024 amounted to approximately HK$1,211,875,000 (2023: approximately
HK$1,096,787,000). The Group also provides training courses or seminars
to its staff.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY
EERAFIRERE

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 63, is one of the founders of
the Group and is the Company’s Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director. Mr.
Li is also the director of VSTECS (HK) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. He is responsible for the
overall management and strategic positioning of the
Group. Mr. Li graduated from Tsinghua University
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with
a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in 1983 and a
Master Degree in Management Engineering in 1986.

Mr. Li is the father of Mr. Li Yue, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 53, is an
Executive Director and the Group Chief Financial
Officer of the Company. Mr. Ong is also the
director of VSTECS (HK) Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company. He is responsible for the overall
financial management of the Group. Mr. Ong holds
a Bachelor Degree in Economics from University
College London and a Master Degree in Analysis,
Design & Management of Information Systems
from the London School of Economics and Political
Science. Mr. Ong is a fellow of the Institute of

Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

h

Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. LI Yue, aged 36, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in May 2016. Mr. Li joined
the Company in 2012. Mr. Li is responsible for
investments and fund management of the Group.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics from
the University of Chicago in the United States of
America. Mr. Li is also a CFA charterholder. He is
a member of the CFA Institute and the Hong Kong
Society of Financial Analysts. Mr. Li is the son of Mr.
Li Jialin, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERAFINEERE (&)

Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 55, is an Executive
Director of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Electrical Engineering from the University
of Wisconsin-Madison in the United States of
America. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience
in personal computer and semiconductor industry.
Mr. Chan is currently the Senior Vice President —
Product Management of VSTECS (HK) Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company in 2005, Mr. Chan served as the

distribution director of Advanced Micro Devices and was in charge of the
distribution business in China and Hong Kong.

dxrh

Mr. GU Sanjun, aged 54, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in June 2021. Mr. Gu
has extensive experience in the field of Information
Technology and has accumulated over 15 years
experience of operation in the Group. Mr. Gu had
served as the general manager of the software
department of the Group from 2000 to 2008 and
subsequently rejoined the Group in 2016. Mr. Gu
currently is the chief executive officer in the Greater
China Region of the Group and is responsible for the

overall business development and achieving the Company’s strategic goal
in the PRC. Prior to that, Mr. Gu had served in different large enterprises in
China such as Guangzhou Suntek Technology ( & /M1 A7) , Ingram
Micro International (China) (228 EIR (R ) ) and Founder Group (1t X5
IE£E) . Mr. Gu graduated from the Beijing University of Technology in the
PRC with a Bachelor Degree in Applied Mathematics.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Non-executive Director

Mr. ZHANG Dongijie, aged 51, appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company in January
2023. Mr. Zhang graduated from Xiamen University
in the PRC with a Master degree in Economics in
2005. Mr. Zhang is currently the deputy general
manager of Shenzhen Eternal Asia Supply Chain
Management Ltd. (& 3l T 16 T5 i 4% JE 88 iR {n

[R A A)) (“Shenzhen Eternal Asia”), a joint stock
company established in the PRC with limited liability
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Shenzhen Eternal Asia is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Zhang is also a non-executive
director of Trigiant Group Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LI Wei, aged 70, appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Li was educated in the PRC, Germany
and Australia. He has over 25 years of experience
in establishing and operating businesses in Asia,
particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li has
previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li
is also an independent non-executive director of
Transtech Optelecom Science Holdings Limited and
Qianhai Health Holdings Limited, the shares of both companies are listed
on the Stock Exchange. He also serves as the Chairman of Remuneration
Committee and members of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
EERAFINEERE (&)

Mr. Yu Dingheng, aged 50, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive director of the Company
in December 2024. Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor Degree
in Economic Information Management from the
Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics and
a Master Degree in Business Administration from
the PBC School of Finance, Tsinghua University.
Mr. Yu has over 25 years of experience in asset
management and capital market. From 2000
to 2005, he worked as a Business Director of Capital Market Division
of Ping An Securities Company Limited. From 2006, Mr. Yu has been a
founder, Chairman and Investment Director of Shenzhen Yihu Investment
Management Company Limited. He is currently a visiting professor of the
National Digital Literacy and Skills Training Base and Investment and Digital
Economy at the Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics.

Ms. Gao Yiyang, aged 41, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive director of the Company
in December 2024. Ms. Gao holds a Bachelor
Degree in Engineering and a Master Degree in
Engineering from the Information Engineering
University under the People’s Liberation Army. She
also holds a Doctor Degree in Economics from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology. Ms.
Gao has over 15 years of experience in information
technology. From 2014 to 2018, she worked
as a Senior Vice President of Centennial Jinhai
Technology Company Limited, a subsidiary of CLOU Electronics Company
Limited, the shares of which were listed on the main board of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. From 2018, she has been a President of Henan Baotong
Information Security Assessment Company Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Company Secretary

Mr. LAM Chung Sui, aged 38, appointed as the
company secretary of the Company in June 2023
and is responsible for secretarial matters of the
Group. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting
and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accounts. He joined the Group in
2022.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BR - MERELIHS

The Group is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (“ESG Report” or the “Report”) for the year ended 31 December
2024. The ESG Report is to highlight the Group’s approaches and strategies
in pursuit of sustainable development during the period from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2024 (the “Year” or the “Reporting Period”). The
Group would also like to take this opportunity to thank all stakeholders who
have contributed to this sustainability journey with us and present the ESG
performance to all our stakeholders.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (‘ESG Reporting Guide”) as set
out in Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules from HKEx based on the period
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024. Due to the new Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Code coming into effect on 1 January
2025, we will also refer to the relevant content requirements.

The Report covers the overall performance, policies and practices of the
Group’s business and operation regarding its environmental and social
responsibilities. This Report has followed the Reporting Principles as set
out in the HKEx ESG Reporting Guide, including Materiality, Quantitative,
Balance and Consistency. To align with the best interest of our readers, we
conducted a materiality assessment through the help with our stakeholders
to select the key ESG issues concerning with our business operation,
which are covered in the later parts. This ESG Report mainly focuses on
the aspects that have identified as material and relevant to the Group’s
businesses and its key stakeholders.

We discussed the social KPIs associated with the performance of the
Group in employment, labour standards, supply chain management, training
activities, community investment, etc. We referenced the ESG Reporting
Guide as set out in Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules and the standards of
Greenhouse Gas Protocol, this makes our ESG performance measurable,
in regards to the carbon emission, resource usage, waste generation and
so on. We computed the environmental key performance indicators (‘KPIs”)
based on our emission and waste produced in our operation process and
also the daily activities in the office.

In addition, this report aims to provide our reader a comprehensive and
objective view of the ESG management efficacy of the Group, therefore,
we are committed to revealing statistics and numbers to the best of our
knowledge.

For convenience, an index is available in the last chapter of the Report for
the readers, regarding the locations of KPIs within the Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report mainly focuses on the areas that have been identified as
material and relevant to the Group’s business and its key stakeholders for
the Reporting Period. It covers our three main operation segments, namely
The Enterprise Systems segment, The Consumer Electronics segment and
The Cloud Computing segment.

ESG GOVERNANCE

A strong ESG governance structure sets the foundation for a company to
become a socially and environmentally responsible company. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility for and commitment to identify the ESG
risks and opportunities in the Group. The Board has also engaged in
determining the major ESG strategies and planning of the ESG related goals.
The Group consistently incorporated consideration of environmental, social
and governance into our operation, aligning with our dedication of creating
sustainable value for stakeholders and uphold our role as a responsible
corporate citizen. We are committed to making a positive impact on our
environment and community, while adhering to our philosophy of sustainable
development rooted in our core business practices, our relationships
with stakeholders, and our environmental performances. The sections in
our Report will disclose our corresponding management approaches in
environmental and social aspects.

The Board is made up of a range of diverse members from various
backgrounds. The Board has a female independent non-executive director.
In regards to age demographic, though members between 51 to 60 years
old accounted 45% of the Board, we have 33% of members who are
under the age of 50 years old. The Board is becoming younger and more
diversified.

Age Distribution of Board

EEZgFROM
40 or below
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11%
61 or above
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22%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

BOARD’S ESG RESPONSIBILITY

The Board recognizes the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategies and reporting and for evaluating and determining the Group’s
ESG related risks. Moreover, the Board is responsible to develop the
environmental goals to motivate the Group to achieve its goals and
have a better performance in the future. For the purpose of continuous
improvement, ESG performance is regularly measured, reviewed and
reported to the management.

The Board is collectively responsible for the overall development and review
of the ESG matters. Whenever ESG issues arise, they will be put to the
Board for further discussion. We will also seek professional advice from third
party whenever necessary.

EEEMESCGEE

EEEAENEASEMESGRE R E N
RetE HEEANSBHESGH R E B 28
A EEZENAERERERE
NEaBASEEREBR YEARREBE
HRE - RIFENE ESCGREMSTE B
MY EMRERERS -

EFCEREEESGEENERRER IR
Ao EESGEEERE B LREETSF
E— TR -BMATEREFTERSRKE=
TEXER-

Monitor and Manage ESG Matters

ERREEESGEH

Board E£ %

ESG Matters

Manager EE& Experts B3

To achieve sustainable development of the Company, the Board will
continuously communicate with stakeholders and effectively balance their
expectations and needs as the Board strives to maximize the long-term
benefits of all stakeholders.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values the stakeholders’ opinions and taking them seriously as
the direction of our group. We believe the Group’s long-term growth and
success is inseparable from understanding stakeholders’ views and opinions,
thus we uphold an open and honest relationship with our stakeholders.

As Asia’s leading distributor of Information, Communication and
Technology (“ICT”) products, we continuously communicate with all our
stakeholders, aiming to maximize their long-term benefits and effectively
balancing their respective expectations and needs in order to achieve
sustainable development of the Company. Our key stakeholders include the
shareholders, employees, clients, suppliers etc.

We collect opinions from different stakeholders through multiple channels,
we organize regular meetings with all stakeholders and tailored various
communication channels for each stakeholder, for example, we conduct site
visits to our suppliers, offer service hotlines for our clients for enquiries and
hold press conferences for our investors. We gathered valuable opinions and
responses from our stakeholders through these different channels.

Stakeholder Group Concerns and expectations
M EREERR BEEREE
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Communication channel
BBRE

Government departments and

regulatory authorities
BB R EEE AR BPEEER
Shareholders and investors
Return on Investment

RERRIREE EBERERATRAIE D8

Employees Welfare, career, training healthy
working environment

== B I R R TAEERIR

Suppliers and business Integrity, fair trade

partners
HERMREBSERHF WMERRFRS
Customers Product and services quality and safety;
Customer relation and privacy protection
®F EmkRBHEENT L TPBERKR

ThES R &

Comply with the laws and regulations

Business development and prospect,

Review and update the government and
regulatory body’s policies
EH R T BBUT M EEHRBER

Investors meetings, annual general meeting,
press conference, social media interaction

REEGE RRBFRG FEBHEX
HREEEH

Staff meeting, regular social gathering,
whistle blowing policy
BIgs THHRES RBRBK

Regular meetings with suppliers, site visit

EHEHMERRTERNEBER

Regular meetings with clients, client’s direct
feedback, customer services hotline
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Through the communication with our employees, the Group realised that
our employees focus on the welfare, career path, training provided to them
and a healthy working environment. The Group take this into consideration
and provided a healthy working environment, a competitive remuneration
package and also the discretionary bonus by reference to individual and
Group’s performance, in response to their opinions. Different from our
employees, our management team focuses on the performance of the
company, and whether the company’s goals and strategies have been
achieved. This is more or less similar to the Group concerns and the Group
will make sure that the goals and strategies set by the management are duly
communicated to all the staff which can enhance the achievement of the
goals.

Our customers are concerned about the product and services quality and
safety as well as the customer relationships and privacy protection. In
response, we provide a high quality of product and service, in addition, we
have a special team to provide after-sales services to them.

The Group also pays attention to our relationship with suppliers. Suppliers
of different brands are handled by a designated project management team
to ensure a close relationship with each supplier of integrity and fair dealing.
Our investors concerned about the business development and prospect
of the Group and also the returns on investment, we clearly understand
their concerns. In response to the concerns of our investors, our Group
management will have regular meetings with them and we will also engage
with professional parties to explore potential investors in the benefit to the
Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Shareholders and investors are deeply vested in the business’s development
and prospects, as well as the return on investment (ROI) they can anticipate.
Effective communication channels for addressing these concerns include
investor meetings, annual general meetings, press conferences. Furthermore,
we leverage social media interaction to connect with shareholders and
investors on a more immediate and interactive level, fostering a sense of
community and providing timely updates on key developments.

To make sure the group has complied with all the laws and regulations,
we will review and update the government and regulatory body’s policies
regularly to respond to the Government — one of our stakeholders’ concerns,
that is to comply with the laws and regulations. We think this is beneficial to
the Group and we are happy to do so.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the reporting period, the Group has obtained the views of our key
stakeholders include the shareholders, employees, clients, suppliers, etc.
on the Group’s material issues and sustainability strategy. After a series
of managerial-level meetings and the Board’s discussion, several issues
have been identified, the Group has assessed those important ESG topics
and produced the following materiality matrix to clarify the ESG issues that
concern our business most.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Low Impact to External Stakeholders High

Details of the numbers can be found in the table below:

i

/ SR
Z-3

HIINBEFNENR

15

Materiality - Environmental

EEMH-RE
7 Risks brought by
climate issues
RIRREE R R
[ J
5 Packaging material

consumption 4 Water
RN EEFE consumption

° ° KEFE

6 Significant impacts ®

on the environment
HIRBENFTEZE

{
2 Sewage and waste

&K 2 Y]
Low Impact to Internal Stakeholders
& HAIMRFDENZE

Environmental

o
1 Air pollutant and
carbon emission

BER R T HERL
3 Energy and
electricity
consumption
BERKRENEFE
]
High
=)

BFrFBLATX:

BB
1 Air pollutant and carbon emission
8 SR R i BERR
2 Sewage and waste
[BE 7K R EE W)
3 Energy and electricity consumption
BEIR B B
4 Water consumption
KB FE
5 Packaging material consumption
BEMENERE
6 Significant impacts on the environment, such as noise, odour, pollution, ecological imbalance, species extinction and
resource depletion
HIRENETEZE MRS BR 5 ERXE MEREKRERLES
7 Risks brought by climate issues, such as physical risk (extreme weather events and rise of temperature) and transition

risk (policy, legal and market risks)

RIRFEER RO ER YR ER (RiHRRENRRRETT) FBEERR (B R RTHER)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Materiality — Social

BEEM-HE
12 Product market
demand and
- innovation
=¥ ERNTEERRAIN
{

1%
5 {
o 13 Contribution to
° 11 Stability and ¢ ; 10 Improvement in
5 S society, such as : :
) S sustainability of f job skills and
W donation, care
L supply chain ’ ' development
) A conservation and I
() #‘6‘] HEENEEM education e opportunities
= + 42 ) . . - = ab
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i 5
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= = 9 Employees' health
] and workplace 8 Benefits and
£ safety welfare
B BENRER Rz K @A
THRGHREE
S
—
Low Impact to Internal Stakeholders High
&® HRBEFHENEE =
Details of the numbers can be found in the table below: HFTFBEL2RTX:
Social
e
8 Compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare
HON AR E  BEHEEA TERE AKERME TERE 2R RIERUAREMF & REF
9 Employees’ health and workplace safety
EEMREMIIESHEZE
10 Improvement in job skills and development opportunities
RATERERERES
11 Stability and sustainability of supply chain
HEgnRE N KA AN
12 Product market demand and innovation*
Emr 5 E K el F
13 Contribution to society, such as donation, care, conservation and education
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Materiality - Governance

EEMH-ER
16 Product quality
and safety
- EREERE2
R [
£ I ,
15 Supply chain 18 Intellectual ®
n environmental risk property rights ®
g management S A 19 Behaviours
2 s MR IR R E IR 15
(O] :“\\ {
=< MK
fop e
n AT 17 Customer relation
SR and protection ] . _
S A RIRE 14 Preventing child
= = labour and forced
uo.l = labour
o T E T RIGHIAT
o
@®©
Q
£
3w
—
Low Impact to Internal Stakeholders High
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Details of the numbers can be found in the table below: FFHEB2RTX:
Governance
&R
14 Preventing child labour and forced labour

TERTE T Kol T
15 Supply chain environmental risk management

HE S H IR R IR E 18
16 Product quality and safety*

EmEERer”
17 Customer relation and protection

BEFRMERRE
18 Intellectual property rights*

M ERE
19 Behaviours such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, and the mechanisms and training activities to

prevent such behaviours*

FREE - BhER - BRGF  REBRZHIT AU RIAN L EIT ARSI KIS B
* The most important topics to the Group * REBEREENZER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

As illustrated above, the ESG topics of highest priority to the Group are
Product Quality and Safety, Product Market Demand and Innovation,
Intellectual Property Rights and Corruption Behaviour with the Prevention
Policy.

Because of our business nature, our internal and external stakeholders are
focused more on the social and governance issues than the environmental
issues that are less related to our business nature. For the social sector, our
stakeholders focus on the Product Market Demand and Innovation, as an IT
company, we also care about the innovation and demand of our products.
We have cooperated with lots of well-established and well-known suppliers
that provide us with high quality products, and believe that the demand for
IT products will be stable. In addition, we keep discussing with our suppliers
about the new idea of the IT products such that they can provide trendy
products to our customers.

For the governance sector, our stakeholders focused on the Product’s
Quality and Safety and the Intellectual Property Rights. These factors are
very important to the operation of the Group. The Group has policy and
regulation on monitoring the safety of the product. Once we have discovered
the safety and quality problems, we will inform the suppliers immediately and
find solutions to solve the problems by returning the products or renewing
the products. We also take the Intellectual Property Rights issue as a very
serious matter, as innovation and ideas are key inputs of IT products. We
have strict regulations on supervision of the product that is not yet on the
market.

Apart from the product-related sector, Corruption Prevention is also a topic
that our stakeholders think is an important issue and the Board shares the
same view as our stakeholders. In view of this, the Group has a stringent
Code of Conduct that requires the employees and our business partners
to follow strictly. Moreover, all employees are also required to attend anti-
corruption training every year to remind them of the importance of integrity.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

ESG STRATEGIES

As the Group is a leading distributor of ICT products, channel development
and integrated service providers of technology solutions in the Asia Pacific
region. Compared with the manufacturing-based business, we are mainly
engaged in the development of technologies with fewer environmental
concerns. But we still hope to participate in environmental protection
activities and also fulfil corporate social responsibility. We will put more
energy into social development, including employment and development
policies, supplier selection, safety and health issues, product responsibility,
etc.

We understand the importance of its impact on sustainable environmental
development. We will continue to encourage and ensure the efficient use
of resources in our operation process to save energy and reduce GHG
emission as much as possible. We will keep putting effort in protecting the
environment and we are planning to work with our suppliers on handling the
electronic wastes in a more proper way. Based on the characteristics of the
industry, we have established a three-step environmental goal. At the same
time, we closely monitor environmental risks to ensure that relevant risks are
under control.

Environmental Targets
RIEER

Target 2: Continuously improving
the monitoring and management of

environmental issues.
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Target 3: Based on the company’s
services, gradually promote

environmental upgrading of industries.

BE= : Y RARRE  BIEBEX
BRETR -

BRZ  SERERERENERR
B o

Target 1: Control and reduce GHG
emissions year by year.

Bif— : EHNZEERDBEREN

BEER °

Target 1: Control and reduce GHG emissions year by year. This is a
quantitative target. We will implement the relevant target in various
departments and branch structures of the organization, especially in the use
of electricity, to ensure the achievement of the target.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Target 2: Continuously improving the monitoring and management
of environmental issues. The ongoing enhancement of environmental
monitoring and management involves a dynamic process aimed at bolstering
our ability to track, assess, and address various environmental concerns.
This involves deploying advanced technologies, refining data collection
methods, and strengthening regulatory frameworks. We have noticed that
GHG Emissions of Scope 3 which have gradually received attention from
regulatory agencies and industry organizations. GHG Emissions of Scope
3 are the indirect emissions outside of scope 2 emissions that occur in the
value chain of the company. We will closely monitor policy changes and
guard against the risks they may pose to the company. We will continue
to strengthen the establishment of a monitoring system for Scope 3
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. At the same time, we will continuously
strengthen our focus on and management of more environmental issues,
such as the environmental footprint of hardware infrastructure.

Target 3: Based on the company’s services, gradually promote
environmental upgrading of industries. As a listed company, we are
well aware of the importance of social responsibility. As an information,
communications and technology (“ICT”) services company, we are deeply
aware of our product and services play an important role in promoting
environmental development. Base on Target 1 and Target 2, we will take
actions and provide solutions contributes to the environmental upgrading of
upstream and downstream companies.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group believes that building a harmonious and prosperous community
atmosphere can achieve a win-win situation and promote long-term
corporate benefit. By focusing on areas such as employment and labour
practices, operational procedures, and social engagement, we aim to
establish a mutually beneficial connection with both our internal and external
stakeholders.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Product Quality and Safety

To provide high quality of products and services to our customers, the Group
carefully selects our suppliers with good reputation. Before introducing
products to customers, the Group will examine the specifications of each
product supplied by the vendors to ensure that they meet the necessary
standards and meet the expectations of the customers.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Being a comprehensive distributor, our aim is not only to offer superior
quality products to our customers but also to provide an array of value-
added services to both our suppliers and customers. We have a product
return and exchange policy for our customers, and if any quality-related
complaints arise, we report and provide feedback to our suppliers for their
review and improvement.

The Group is committed to providing high-quality products and services
to a broad customer base. With exceptional business acumen, we offer
continuous support for collaborative ventures, creating greater value for our
upstream and downstream partners. Our branches in Thailand, Singapore,
and other locations have also received numerous local distributor awards,
assisting clients in achieving digital operations. In particular, in this new era
led by Al and cloud computing, the Group leverages its channel network
and service capabilities to facilitate the intelligent integration of cloud and
network technologies, thereby accelerating the modernisation of the industry.
The Group won the “2024 Outstanding Influential Listed Enterprises”,
Energy Industry-wide Collaboration Award”,
Top 500 Digital Economy Enterprises. The information technology service
company has passed authoritative certifications and audits such as ISO9001
quality management system, CCRC information security service level three
security operation and maintenance certification, 1ISO27001 certification,
CMMI-38 level certification and 1SO14001 environmental management
system.

Digital
and was selected into the

During the Reporting Year, no products were subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons, nor any complaints received.

Privacy and Data Protection

In addition, the Group strives to protect personal data and privacy of every
customer. All the employees are obligated to maintain high confidentiality
of any information related with their work, such as client information and
supplier information.

We strictly limit the use of information we collect and ensure it is used
responsibly. We require every employee to follow guidance related to
privacy and data protection. Employees who have access to or control
such information have full responsibility to protect the information from
unauthorized disclosure or use.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group also pays high attention in protecting the interest of intellectual
property rights. When the Group engages a supplier to sell its products,
we will liaise with the supplier on the terms and conditions on the sale of
the products and a distributor agreement will be signed by both parties to
ensure that the Group has the right and authority to sell the products on
behalf of the suppliers.

In addition, the Group pays close attention to infringements in the market
to prevent any infringements (e.g., counterfeiting of trademarks), this is to
prevent and protect the Groups and the others from getting into troubles.
Moreover, there is a logo guideline to ensure adherence to proper usage.
The correct use of logo under various circumstance is approved.

Customer Opinion and Complaints

The Group values customer feedback as it guides our continuous
improvement. Additionally, we take customer complaints very seriously and
thoroughly investigate and report them to our management team. Our goal
is to provide customers with a great experience.

During the Reporting Year, no complaints were received and we complied
with all relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact to us,
including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, and noted
no incident of information leakage reported during the Reporting Period.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Suppliers are one of the key stakeholders to the Group who cannot be
independent of production materials. Hence, we value our relationship with
suppliers and are actively developing a sustainable supply chain that meets
the Group’s ethical, environmental, health and safety standards.

As a leading ICT products distributor, supply chain management forms a
very essential part in the Group. The Group implements an efficient supply
chain management system that strengthen the role of different parties
between suppliers, distributors and retailers and to ensure high quality of
services and products are delivered to our customers. In order to increase
the efficiency and effectiveness of our supply chain management, different
brand of suppliers is managed by our designated project managers so
that they can take full care of each supplier to provide smooth delivery of
products to different parties.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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We have more than 700 product suppliers from all around the world,
including China, Thailand, Singapore, Philippines etc." Below are the details
of the supplier’s distribution:

No. of suppliers

HEBHE

BAPEAREERSHNEBIO0OZRE T
HER 2EFPE ZE -FMK -FLEH
Flo FXEINMHEE D MFIS:

pu}

Hong Kong SAR, China
TEEE

Indonesia ElfE 3%

6%

Singapore il
8%

Thailand %R El
9%

Philippines 2 &
32%

The Group has established a well-functioning supply chain management
system that enhances the collaboration among suppliers, distributors,
and retailers, ensuring that our customers receive top-notch products
and services. To optimize the efficiency and efficacy of our supply chain
management, each brand of supplier is assigned to a designated project
manager who is responsible for overseeing their performance and ensuring
seamless delivery of products to all parties involved. Additionally, our team
regularly meets with our suppliers to ensure smooth operations.

Most of our top suppliers are well-established and well-known brands
such as Huawei, HP, Seagate, Western Digital, Dell, Lenovo, and Apple to
name a few. The majority of our suppliers are governed by the laws and
regulations in the U.S. and other countries and they are expected to comply
with relevant laws and regulations in relation to safety and environmental
management standards so that their products are up to standard. The
Group emphasises the relationship and communications with the suppliers
to promote sustainable development.

! The Philippines department changed from an associated company to a
subsidiary company in 2024. Relevant data are included in statistics.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

We also have a comprehensive process in selecting and engaging suppliers
with integrity and fair treatment. We always take into consideration such
as supplier qualification, past portfolio, product quality, recall policy, market
conditions and demands, etc. The Group communicates with the suppliers
and distributors regularly to maintain a good relationship with them and
review and monitor the performance of the suppliers and provide feedback
to them from time to time.

Besides the above selection criteria mentioned, the ethical performance and
their participation in corporate social responsibility are also our concerns.
We have to keep monitoring their performance and corporate social
responsibility so that to make sure that our suppliers are up to their social
standards. We hope to cooperate with the suppliers who have the same
vision as us.

The Group is highly committed to promoting environmentally-friendly
procurement practices. As suppliers play a vital role in our business by
directly affecting the quality, cost, and delivery time of our products and
services, we prioritize their selection and performance evaluation processes.

Traditionally, supplier selection processes have focused on quality, cost,
and lead time. However, with the growing importance of environmental
concerns, our group has included environmental criteria in our supplier
selection process. We expect our suppliers to not only comply with
environmental regulations but also engage in efficient, green product design
and sustainable development.

Therefore, our Group conducts extensive background checks and
performance evaluations in our green supplier selection process, overseen
by our designated product management team. They engage with suppliers
on their environmental policies and compare them with other suppliers. Most
of our suppliers are reputable international brands, and we continuously
monitor their green procurement performance and policies. Furthermore,
some of our board members sit on the Environmental, Social and
Governance committee of our major suppliers to monitor and share views
on different areas.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Our Board is responsible for the overall risk management of our group and
different area of risks management are delegated to designated senior
management team. Our product management team is responsible for the
group supply risk management. We manage procurement risks from four
aspects.
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Measures for Management Risks in Supply Chain
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Identify internal and external risks
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Identify internal and external risks. Understanding the sources and
impact of procurement risks, conducting risk assessment and analysis,
and determining potential consequences.

Develop a supply chain risk management plan for handling risks. We
have developed a supply chain risk management plan which help
organizations proactively identify and mitigate potential risks, ensure
continuity of operations, and protect against unforeseen disruptions
to the supply chain, including risk identification, risk assessment, risk
mitigation, risk monitoring, risk response and so on.

Monitor risks closely. We continuously monitor the supply chain
for potential risks and evaluate the effectiveness of risk mitigation
strategies.

Perform regular reviews. By conducting regular reviews of the supply
chain management process, we can identify areas for improvement
and ensure that they are delivering value to customers while managing
risks effectively.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity throughout its
operations and corrupt practices and bribery are strictly intolerable. The
Group complies strictly with the relevant laws and regulations in relation to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. There are anti-corruption and
anti-bribery guidelines provided to all the employees. During the year under
review, the Group did not have any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations.

The Policies taken by the Compliance Department of the Group on anti-
corruption including management orientation, process management,
documents and other related management as follows:
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Clear Management Structure for Compliance
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The code of conduct and related policies and procedure
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Compliance Executive Independent Control for Compliance Management

EREENESRNITELIES

Risk Estimate and Internal Audit Procedure
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

The Group has stringent Code of Conduct that requires the employees and
our business partners to follow strictly. There are two aspects in the Group’s
Code of Conduct. One is related to employees. All newly joined employees
are required to sign the Employee’s Handbook and an Integrity Declaration
and attend anti-corruption training. The Group has established a Conflict of
Interest Policy to ensure transparency and integrity in all business dealings.
This policy clearly outlines the information that needs to be disclosed and
specifies the actions that are prohibited.

All employees are also required to attend anti-corruption training every year
to remind them on the importance of integrity. As for our business partners,
such as suppliers, terms and conditions related to anticorruption are
included in all the purchasing and sale agreements to ensure both parties
are fully aware of their responsibilities.
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Anti-corruption Training Content
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Local Law and Regulations &t 3AE K &R
International Laws and Regulations BIFEE K 5ER

E Enforcement Standards under Compliance & #i 1T

Compliance Requirements with Customers: Anti-Bribery Clause & F &R EK | REFIEIHRR
Compliance Requirements in Procurement: Anti-Bribery Clause ISR ER © REGERIER

n Whistle-blowing 4§

Whistle-blowing Channels 2222 &
Confidentiality of whistle-blowing Z2$R{R 2% 1%

The Group also has whistle-blowing policy which provides channels for
employees to report any malpractice, misconduct or illegal action. All the
information collected and received will be kept confidential and the Group’s
internal audit department will conduct internal investigation and report to
senior management.

During the Reporting Period, the Group, its directors and employees were
not involved in any legal cases concerning corrupt practices. We were not
aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in
our operating areas, including but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance of Hong Kong, that had a notable impact on the Group relating to
health and safety in relation to products and services provided.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

EMPLOYMENT

The Group regards talents as one of its core competencies and has
optimized the use of human resources through a dedicated recruitment
process and appraisal system.

The Group believes that employees are the most important and valuable
assets contributing to the key to success and sustainable growth of the
Company as a whole. The Group strictly complies with all the relevant
labour laws and regulations under respective jurisdictions. The Group treats
all the employees equally that their employment, remuneration, promotion
or dismissal will not be affected by their social identities such as race,
nationality, gender, religion, age and marital status.

The Group offers a range of attractive salaries, promotion opportunities and
benefits packages to attract and retain outstanding employees. Salaries
are reviewed annually and adjusted based on individual performance and
market conditions. In addition, employees receive discretionary bonuses,
share options and company shares in recognition of their contribution to the
Group, and are evaluated based on the Group’s overall performance and
individual performance. The Group also provides employees with medical
insurance, paid maternity leave, retirement plans and other benefits.

At the end of Reporting Period, our Group hired a total of 5,639 employees?,
of which are almost full-time employees (5,622). Across our business
portfolio, females accounted for 47% of the total labour. We are glad to see
that the gender gap in the Group is small and we will keep this
phenomenon. Regarding age, most of our employees concentrate in 31-40,
accounting for around 41% of the total number. This is beneficial for the
Group, as employees in this age bracket tend to be both experienced and
productive. To enhance staff retention, we will devise a suitable strategy.

2 The Philippines department changed from an associated company to a
subsidiary company in 2024. Relevant data are included in statistics.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Gender Distribution of Employee
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47%
Male 1%
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Age Distribution of Employee
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ET#ESH
Thailand ZE Philippines JEf2E
Singapore i3
3%
Indonesia ENfE
8%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

During the period, we saw an 19% of our employees leaving the Group,
a significant decrease from last year. Most of them are aged 30 or below
and the turnover rate for the age group is 28%. The decrease in employee
turnover rate indicates an increase in employee stability. At the same time,
our training and other strategies aim to support all employees and ensure
they have a positive working environment and experience. These efforts are
clearly yielding positive results.

Turnover Rate - Age
MK —Fi

30% 28%

25%

20%
16%
15%
11%
0,
10% 7%

5%
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31-40
31-405%

41-50
41-50%

30 or below 51-60
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Our Group has a balanced figure in terms of gender, which is a sign of
gender equality, and the turnover rate by gender is also fairly balanced, with
59% of departing employees being male and 41% female. The turnover
rate was 21% for men and 17% for women. Below are the other Turnover
Statistics presenting in Graph (Turnover Rate Calculation: Employees of
certain category leaving/Total number of employees in the category):
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Turnover Rate - Location
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During the year under review, the Group did not have any non-compliance R EIEEE R @ A&EE I ET(WEXEHE
with the relevant employment laws and regulations. BERRERBOER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strongly condemns any form of child and forced labour, as
it violates international labour standards. The Group adheres strictly to
the relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdictions where it operates,
concerning child and forced labour. The Group prohibits the use of child and
forced labour in all its operations. The Group provides equal opportunities
and fair treatment to all employees and job applicants.

To ensure compliance, the Human Resource Department conducts
background checks on all job applicants. Each potential job applicant is
required to complete an employment application form, which the Human
Resource Department reviews to verify the accuracy of the information
provided. The Human Resource Department is responsible for regulating
employment and preventing any non-compliant behaviours.
arise that cannot be handled by the Human Resource Department, they are
promptly reported to upper management for further action.

If any cases

We form a voluntary employment relationship with each of our employees
and working hours exceeding the regulatory limits is not allowed. We also
promote such concepts within the supply chain so as to protect the well-
being of labour of the entire community. We hope to spread out the ideas of
restricting child and force labour. If, unfortunately child labour is found, their
employment will be terminated immediately and remuneration will be made
according to the agreed wages.

During the reporting period, the Group did not recognize any material
irregularities in the laws and regulations relating to any labour standards.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group attaches great importance to occupational health and safety. It
recognizes that having an effective occupational health and safety policy is
critical not only to its employees and the group, but also to its customers
and other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Group has established an labour
safety and health management system in accordance with relevant local
laws and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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Workplace safety is extremely important to the Group. The Group is
committed to maintaining a safe and healthy working environment and
providing employees with occupational safety training. The Group also
provides guidelines to warehouse employees to enhance occupational
safety and health awareness. For example, place warning signs around the
warehouse to remind employees to use electric reach stackers with caution.
During the reporting period, the Group had no work-related deaths or
violations of relevant laws and regulations.

In addition, a professional cleaning company has been hired to sanitize
the office carpet and regularly clean the air conditioning, with extra care
taken during the pandemic. The entire office area is frequently sterilized to
ensure cleanliness. Additionally, apart from providing bottled water, a water
treatment system has been installed to filter and enhance the quality of
drinking water.

During the year under review, the Group did not have any work-related
fatality cases or any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.
In the past 3 years, the Group’s operations recorded zero fatalities.

In addition to workplace safety, we promote healthy lifestyles to our
employees. The Group holds annual dinners, Christmas parties and New
Year lunches every year to share joy and happiness with employees and
enhance their sense of belonging. In addition, in order to provide employees
with a better work-life balance, overtime is discouraged unless necessary.
Encourage employees to participate in other activities, such as sports or
other interest classes, to achieve a healthy work-life balance.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group treasures talents and encourages employees to grow both
intellectually and professionally. The Group considers development and
training is one of the important elements contributing the success of the
Group. The training programs are classified into two types on-the-job
and internal training to different levels of staff. The Group has formulated
training plans for employees, including seminars and workshops, internal
and external. Employees are also highly encouraged to attend external
training courses and seminars that related to their job nature to enrich
their knowledge in discharging their duties. Our training covers products
knowledge, sales and marketing, operational skills, workflow management
skills, leadership and management skills.

48 VSTECS Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2024

TESHZ2HAEEMEBRERZ - A&
BEO#RR2REZIHERE YAERE
REHEBEXEZ2BI -AEETREEE TR
gl IR E L 2 EEFESH -l
PEAERBEESM RERSEEZEERNEF
EPLrES RBEHAN AEEI REE
BEMITHETCRERGSEMERBRAEZRER
ERZER

N ARBREBE-XEXBRATDEMA
BEOBHBETHES THBEAZER ERIS
HIRAR Nl o AR B W B E QR
EETHESABRBR I REAME
AR BT RERKEERG BRER
ARt REHRABKEE-

REBEFER AEEYBETATBRETE
Bl MEEFAERBREZREERZBR -
BE=F AEENIHBIETEX/ZT-

RIESmR 2N AKBETIRERE &K
RELEESIX - AEESFABFRR B
AREREETE HEEENZSHREELE .
BARAREZRBBR M BTHEEEE I
o TR AE  NE B A sE NI (B
LB AKEZBMBETISEHEMES (I
BEIHEMEBRE) UEREENIE
B4R Py o

HE K

REBEGR AL LEIEE £ B K IxEE
REER - AEBERBERLBIELEE
MERIWEERERZ —-HlFFE8 DA
TR R E T a0 7 B S oI K 8B 55 B /R
BREAU-AKECR/AEEFEHIFE &
EAMENETHTERBEL -AKEINE
FHBES2LHBETEEEREOINIE
JIRELRMTE EMEEEETHRENM
HeoBFNBIBREERME HEREH
KRERE TEREEERE FERERE
Eg e



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group places a premium on employee training, recognizing it as a
cornerstone of organizational success. The Group has made great efforts
to provide employees with a plethora of training opportunities. During the
Reporting Period, the Group has organised some training for our employees,
more than half of our employees have joined the training offered by the
Group in 2024.
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Among our staff, 53% of employees participated in the training, 45% of
which were female employees. The average training hours of every employee
is 26.2 hours. For the grade of trained staff, management has joined the
training course offered with an average training hours of 24.2 hours, and the
ordinary staff with an average training hour of 26.4 hours.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been supporting and
engaging in community and charitable activities in order to achieve a
harmonious and sustainable development between enterprise and the
community.

The Group will continue supporting the culture of active participation in
community services, encouraging our staff to participate in various voluntary
activities, creating a strong social network and providing assistance and
supports for the people in need.

Through donations and volunteer activities, the Group hopes to give back
more to the society and help the less privileged groups in society. The
Group prioritizes social welfare, particularly in supporting vulnerable groups
like the elderly, children and the sick. Through these joint efforts, the Group
not only fulfils its corporate social responsibility but also cultivates a culture
of compassion and empathy among its employees. By championing social
good, the Group embodies its core values and demonstrates its deep
commitment to creating a more equitable and inclusive society for all.
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We would continue to encourage employees to do good to their surrounding
communities by drawing their attention to diverse social and environmental

issues and organizing charitable activities.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE -HERERKRSE (&)

B GEEBDETHISELE RIRER
BYMBREZEE KAEBLRELERM:

Region Description HKD
B i 7t
Organizing the “VST ECS Golf Charity 2024” for 5 consecutive years dedicated the donations 379,000
to the CU Cancer Immunotherapy Excellence Center, Faculty of Medicine, Chulalongkorn and
Division of Hematology, Department of Internal Medicine, Ramathibodi Hospital.
EENFRPIVSTECSZE_MAZSMAKE] FERREDEBBE T RAUENX
BB B R AR RS MO R IR IH @ BB AR MR 2 5 E
Donation to Siriraj Foundation 7,000
A Siriraj 2 & & 18 18
Donation to Office of the National Water Resources 1,000
MBIZKERFAERBE
Donation to King Mongkut’s University of Technology Thonburi 2,000
MKing Mongkut's University of Technology Thonburifg 8%
Donation to Wat Sri Bun Ruang 11,000
[mWat Sri Bun Ruangig
Donation to Rangsit University 2,000
[6)Rangsit University$s B2
Donation to Tiang Chirativat Foundation 3,000
[6 Tiang Chirativati 4 & 18 §2
Donation to Sripatum University 1,000
[ Sripatum University$5 i
) Donation to Tiang Chirativat Foundation 350
Thailand . L o 1o
= @ Tiang Chirativat& 4 & 45
Donation to Wat Toom 2,000
A Wat Toom78 4
Donation to Wat Sri Bun Ruang 23,000
[E]Wat Sri Bun Ruang g 2
Donation to Kasetsart University 5,000
[ Kasetsart University33 i
Donation to Wat Khao Nom Nang 2,000
M Wat Khao Nom Nang#8 i
Donation to Umphang Hospital 2,000
MUmphang Hospitalid #&
Software donation to Banthaudom School 8,000
1] Banthaudom Schoolf8 g 81 4
Computers donation to Banthaudom School 2,000
1] Banthaudom Schoolf8 % &
Donation to The Bumrungrad Hospital Foundation 7,000
[6) The Bumrungrad Hospital&E 4 & 18 7%
Donation to Wat Don Moon 14,000
M Wat Don Moon#8 %
Donation to Saowabha Vocational college 2,000

[7] Saowabha Vocational collegefs #%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Region Description HKD
& i T
Donation to Chiang Mai University 11,000
[6]Chiang Mai University 15 8
Donation to Rangsit University 2,000
M Rangsit University#8 i
Donation to Suranaree University of Technology 6,000
M Suranaree University of Technology8 i
Computers donation to Wat Mueang Sart School 17,000
[mWat Mueang Sart School# B & i
Donate money after recycling used items in the community 100
A +L [ [ W W7 18 3K
Free blood donation N/A
China R E R
A Waterdrop fundraising 220
KB E
Tencent charity donation 50
R EERR
Donation to Senjarawi Social Home for the Elderly (Bandung) 5,000
[A1Senjarawi Social Home for the Elderly (Bandung)1g i
Donation to Cahaya Kasih Orphanage (Bandung) 2,000
[f]Cahaya Kasih Orphanage (Bandung)#g i
Donation to Pre schools and Kindergarten in Klaten (Yogyakarta) 6,000
@ Pre schools and Kindergarten in Klaten (Yogyakarta)$8 i
Donation to Pondok Harapan Social Home for the Elderly (Semarang) 5,000
Indonesia @ Pondok Harapan Social Home for the Elderly (Semarang)ig i
ENERREE Donation to Cinta Kasih Orphanage (Medan) 7,000
@ Cinta Kasih Orphanage (Medan)#8 i
Donation to Victims of the eruption of Mount Lewotobi Flores NTT 5,000
M EEMEREDEMLE DR A LEENZEEBE
Donations for the construction of the Children’s Cancer Shelter (Yogyakarta) 7,000
FE A 52 i WA FIT (Yogyakarta) i 5% Ay 18 B
Donation to Matahari Terbit Orphanage (Salvation Army) Surabaya 2,000
[@Matahari Terbit Orphanage (Salvation Army) Surabayaig i
Donation to Ministry of social and family development — Neugen Fund 80,000
MNeugenE & Mt € R RE R 30181
Donation to the Food Bank Singapore Ltd 1,000
RTINS B W IR 1T AR 17 B PR 1A F14B Y
Foundation of Rotary Clubs 7,000
Singapore Rotary ClubsE & &
Frandg Donation to KKH Kids Patients (project give tea party) 19,000
[MKKH Kids Patients (project give tea party)ig B
Donation to AMKSS Social Move 53,000
M AMKSS Social Movefs i
Donation to Girl Guides Singapore 43,000

[ Girl Guides Singapore 8 i

52 VSTECS Holdings Limited Annual Report 2024



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group will continue supporting the culture of active participation in
community services, encouraging our staff to do good to their surrounding
communities by drawing their attention to diverse social and environmental
issues and organizing charitable activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

We concern about the environment. While maintaining the business
operation of the Group, we try to minimize any impact to the environment
while promoting the concept of sustainability development and protecting
the environment. The Group undertakes environmental protection as part
of its corporate responsibilities, and it is fully aware of the importance of
sustainable environmental development in promoting sustainability in its
operations. The Group is committed to implementing different environmental
protection measures to reduce the impacts on the environment. We seek to
response to the sustainability issues across our operations, from sourcing
materials to our office usage.

GOVERNANCE

fo S
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

The Group has a comprehensive governance structure, ensuring all
operations adhere to the highest compliance standards. In line with our
business model, we continuously monitor climate-related issues, proactively
identifying, assessing, and managing related risks and opportunities to
mitigate potential impacts. Furthermore, we maintain a strong focus on
key industry concerns such as clients’ energy consumption, product
eco-labelling, and intellectual property protection. We are committed to
promoting sustainable development and ensuring our products and services
meet environmental standards, thus providing excellent support and
assurance to our clients.

GOVERNANCE

We employ a climate-related governance strategy that involves collaboration
between the board, management, and external experts.

The board, along with management, is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s climate-related governance, which includes establishing
sustainability strategies, priorities, and targets. In fulfilling their duties,
the board considers sustainability factors in the development and
implementation of Group strategies, business plans, major action plans,
and risk management. Senior management is tasked with the strategic
management of key climate-related issues. External experts provide advice
and compliance guidance on specialised climate issues.

Based on the nature of our business, we are less involved in the production
sector and therefore less affected by climate-related issues. However,
the board and external experts conduct annual strategic reviews and
assessments of climate-related risks and opportunities. As management, we
will continue to monitor significant industry changes related to climate issues
and adjust our strategies accordingly.

STRATEGY

CLIMATE-RELATED RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES

° Risks
Climate-related issues are increasing the demand for energy-efficient
and environmentally friendly products and services. This may impact
our current product lines, leading to upgrades and new iterations.
Additionally, our service offerings will require updates to align with
these evolving standards.

Moreover, compliance requirements related to sustainability may
increase our management expenses, as we ensure adherence to new
regulations. We need to proactively address these changes to maintain
our competitive edge and continue providing value to our customers.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

° Opportunities

Climate-related challenges are driving industries towards more
sustainable and innovative operational models. With growing
environmental awareness, paperless offices are becoming standard
practice, reducing paper usage and enhancing efficiency. Additionally,
companies are actively upgrading equipment to improve energy
efficiency and productivity, which not only cuts operational costs
but also boosts competitiveness. Moreover, the adoption of smart
manufacturing technologies is rapidly expanding, as businesses seek
to leverage automation and data-driven decision-making to address
the challenges posed by climate change. The demand for cloud
computing is also rising, offering flexible and scalable solutions that
support digital transformation.

These trends collectively create abundant business opportunities.
By providing innovative solutions and services, we can meet these
demands and secure a stronger market position. We will continue
to monitor industry changes and adjust our strategies to seize these
opportunities effectively.

BUSINESS MODEL AND VALUE CHAIN

As an IT service company, we organise our suppliers to deliver
comprehensive information solutions through our professional value-added
services. With the growing focus on climate issues, we anticipate greater
engagement in markets such as artificial intelligence, smart manufacturing,
and cloud computing. Our service scope will expand, presenting challenges
to our service skills.

Effectively organising upstream supplier products and offering high-value
services to provide customers with energy-efficient and environmentally
friendly technical solutions will become a key direction for our business
model development.

STRATEGY AND DECISION-MAKING

The Group’s management continuously monitors climate-related
opportunities and effectively manages risks. Our business model is
evolving with new technologies, leading to the steady growth of new
services, particularly in cloud services represented by “Cloud Star”. We
actively participate in industry summits across Al applications, smart
charging networks, digital human marketing, and e-commerce, driving the
development of these areas.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

In anticipation of necessary service upgrades, we are strengthening our
internal talent pool and enhancing training programs. Additionally, we are
carefully managing our budget and expenses to support these initiatives.

FINANCIAL POSITION, FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND CASH
FLOWS

At present, the direct financial impact of climate issues on the Group is
minimal. However, we are experiencing significant business expansion
and diversification of revenue streams. This positive trend is expected to
continue, driven by our strategic adaptation to evolving market demands
and climate-related opportunities. Our expansion is evident across multiple
sectors, including cloud services, Al applications, smart manufacturing, and
digital marketing.

Despite this growth, we must remain attentive to potential cost implications.
As climate considerations become more integral to business operations,
there maybe have an increase in research and development expenses.
Developing innovative, sustainable solutions requires investment in new
technologies and processes. Similarly, management costs maybe rise for
enhance compliance with environmental regulations.

To address these challenges, we focus on strategic budgeting and cost
management. By prioritizing efficient resource allocation and fostering a
culture of innovation, we aim to eliminate potential financial pressures.

CLIMATE RESILIENCE

Currently, the Group experiences limited direct impact from climate issues.
We have a robust governance structure in place, and our management team
continually updates strategies to address climate-related challenges. This
proactive approach ensures that we maintain strong climate resilience.

Our governance framework allows us to effectively assess and manage risks,
while also identifying opportunities arising from environmental changes. By
integrating climate considerations into our strategic planning, we are better
prepared to adapt to new regulatory and market demands.

RISK MANAGEMENT

We continuously monitor climate-related risks within our business processes.
Through identification, assessment, and control procedures, we manage
these risks effectively. The management team is responsible for daily
monitoring and adjusting strategies in response to significant changes.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Board oversees risk management and receives annual updates from
management on changes to risk mitigation measures. This ensures that we
remain proactive and responsive to evolving challenges, maintaining robust
oversight and strategic alignment.

RE -HERERKRSE (&)

EEe SR LI EEEENERESEED
FEH OYETEBRER - EUERRMER
TR TEHBCORE TESRE2OE
BERE Bt

The following is the identification and response of relevant risks: VAR 7% 18 B 3 B /9 34 71 B PR S O
Risk Description Degree | Strategy
[P it BE KB
Management | Changes in laws and regulations can alter | Mid Our strategy involves promptly gathering
Risk compliance requirements, leading to increased | A relevant information, deploying measures
EIE E Be management costs. in advance, and actively implementing
ERERNE AN SR ER  EHEEK necessary changes. This ensures we
ARG Hn e consistently meet compliance requirements
and effectively manage risks.
BB RBE B 5 K Y R B R 1E B R AT B
EHE THEBREELZET S HBEREAN
IR EERER BRERER -
Transition Climate issues are driving changes in customer | Low We are proactively deploying measures and
risk demands and market dynamics. Customers | & enhancing our tracking of relevant changes.
A E b increasingly seek sustainable and energy-efficient By strengthening internal R&D and staff
solutions. training, we can actively adjust our business
RIEHEFESHETPFRNM S REN T -F strategies to better serve our customers. This
FHRBE B HFEMEENHERAFER- approach ensures we remain responsive to
market shifts and continue to deliver high-
quality, innovative solutions.
BMERIFEHEE NRAEEE (A RHE -
B hNsR N BT 2R 8 TR I - | AT AR
HmEABERER BHMRBEES - ERR
BMUTSE RFERESRE N LERMS
mE BTV R T B
EMISSIONS B

The Group has always emphasized environmental friendliness and reducing

emissions of all kinds. As our business is mainly trading in nature, the

operations of our Group do not have significant impacts on air and

greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. Air and gas emission and non-
hazardous waste generated by the Group is minimal. Due to the nature
of business, the most common air emission and greenhouse gas (GHG)

emission from our daily business activities are mainly generated from

the offices and warehouses consumption of electricity and the usage of

vehicles and paper. The Group does not produce any hazardous waste in its

operations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, for example, the legislations
relevant to the Prevention of Harmful Effects on the Environment Caused by
Air Pollution, Noise, Vibration and Similar Phenomena.

Air and Greenhouse Gases

As the business nature of the Group is trading ICT products, the trading
operation does not involve the emission of GHG in significant quantities.
Therefore, we are not disclosing this figure. If in the future, our emissions
become larger, we will disclose and inform our stakeholders in a timely
manner.

The Group has no industry or car usage in the operation of our business
so we will not have stationary and mobile combustion emission, but we
discovered that the electricity usage will also generate GHG emission, as
such, we have consolidated the electricity usage data in our headquarter
— Hong Kong SAR, relevant statistics of GHG emission for the Reporting
Period is shown as the following table:

RBEHR RMLERREMNERBRZE
BIRRERENER PINBBEHLERS
2 BRE RPLELURKYRREXNES
FEEED -

BERMAERE

HRAEENEEAEEEMABANKE
m BEBEEBU IS RAREFRAEERE -
At T ERBERBE T - HMEBREK
MO EEMN KA RSERETMNE R

%

AEBENEBLETL AR ITEHERA
BEHEMALEBRELRBHMRERR-BHR
MER EREITEEEREREBHER
Rt H P A RPN AR —F BT R 1THE
WAEEE -REMENEERBENIEH
BEABFRETR:

Indicators Unit Total (2023) Total (2024)
HEt et

518 By —To=F)  (ZBoQF)

Total GHG Emissions Tonnes of COe 86.4 79.2

RERBHREE WE AL iRE 2

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee 1.1 1

mE(B%EE) WEoEtiEE ’BE

Scope 1 — Stationary combustion Tonnes of CO,e Nil = Nil &

HEN — E IR WS biEE

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee Nil & Nil &

nE(84EE) WB_EthiEE BE

Scope 1 — Mobile combustion Tonnes of COe Nil = Nil &

& E1 — BRI WE— AL IRE E

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee Nil = Nil &

nE(BEEER) o—fhikgE EE

Scope 2 Indirect Emissions Tonnes of COe 86.4 79.2

1 [Z] 28 52 HE AR WE AL iRE 2

Intensity (Per Employee) Tonnes of CO,e/Employee 1.1 1

nE(B%EE) W-EtiEE ’BE

Note: GHG emissions are computed based on the ESG Reporting Guide and
Emission Factor from Cross-Sector Tools prepared by Greenhouse

Gas Protocol.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

We can see from above table, the Total GHG Emissions CO,e was
decreased 8.3% compared with the same period last year. Achieving our
overarching management objectives reflects our dedication to addressing
environmental issues and demonstrates our commitment to sustainability
efforts.

The Group understand the impact brought by GHG and air emission, so we
strive to reduce the air and GHG emissions through improving process flow.

Solid Waste Emission

We uphold the principle of “4Rs”, namely Reduce, Reuse, Replace and
Recycle. As our business mainly focus on IT software trading, we do not
generate waste in our production process. In our offices, we produce only
municipal waste, which is unharmful, disposed through legal means and
collected by governmental services daily. Hence, we consider this issue
insignificant to the Group and do not report the figures here.

Wastewater

Our manufacturing process does not involve water consumption, the
Group does not have a lot of discharge to water. The wastewater of the
Group comes mainly from domestic usage from our offices. Since living
wastewater should not pose huge harm to the environment, we assume this
topic insignificant. The Group strictly discharges wastewater into municipal
sewage pipelines for uniform treatment in accordance with the “Wastewater
Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers”. The Group also calls
on employees to conserve water resources.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incidence of non-compliance in
emissions with the relevant environmental laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on our Group.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group only uses resources in the office and warehouse operation, and
we earnestly reduce resource consumption and improve economic efficiency.

The Group highly encourages the efficient use of resources while endeavours
to reduce, reuse and recycle of resources to prevent the unnecessary waste
of resources and minimize the impacts on the environment and natural
resources. Due to the nature of our business, the resources used by the
Group are principally attributed to electricity and paper consumed at our
offices and warehouses. Due to our business nature, our operation does
not involve direct consumption of water and packaging materials. Water
consumption by the Group was mainly bottled drinking water used at the
Group’s offices and warehouse only.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Electricity

As our Group’s business is mainly trading in nature, our electricity
consumption is normally used at our offices and warehouses, and we do
not involve large electric facilities for operation. In this report, we believe the
emission in our headquarter — Hong Kong SAR will be the main concern, the
table below shows the electricity usage and the intensity in our headquarter
in Hong Kong during the Reporting Period:

BN

HRASEEBIZBEEIME H—KRE
MAEREERE ¥BHUEITHFTEARESE
FRi-RNAREP ZMABARBEMELSE
BREINTHENHREAETEFIE TX
IR HMEHERMEEATNAEENLE
=3

The Group Unit Total (2023) Total (2024)
wEat et

REE ES “Eo=F) (ZED@H)

Electricity consumption kWh 175,973 164,584

REE FRE

Intensity (per HK Employee) kWh/Employee 2,173 2,137

R (BEE5EE) TR &8

The Group continues its commitment to reducing energy consumption by
reminding employees to switch off their computers before leaving the office,
switch off the lighting in the conference rooms and other functional rooms
when they are not in use and turn the electronic equipment into energy
saving mode whenever possible. We also encourage our employees to keep
the office temperature at 25° C so as to ensure the efficient use of the air
conditioning.

Paper and Printing Materials

Paper usage by the Group’s offices and warehouses is limited for daily office
use as well as some printing materials such as annual/interim reports and
circulars which are required to be distributed to the shareholders. To save
the environment, the Group continues to make efforts to reduce and recycle
the use of paper. We remind our employees to develop environmentally
friendly printing and copying habits, encourage double-sided printing
and scanning of documents on the company’s server system instead of
photocopying, and implement a password system for colour printing and
separate collection of waste paper and envelopes for reuse and recycling.
For these printed materials, we will not overprint, but print on demand, and
encourage our readers to use the company’s website.

Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our Group’s operations, environmental impact and
use of natural resources is considered minimal. Nevertheless, our Group is
endeavour to protect the environment and natural resources as a responsible
corporate citizenship.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IMPACT ON COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL
RESOURCE

The Group is well aware of the importance of sustainable development
and has always regarded environmental protection as one of its key tasks.
The Group’s management acknowledges its responsibility in monitoring
environmental impacts and the use of natural resources. As a socially
responsible citizen, we are concerned about the quality of the environment.
While conducting business, we strive to minimise our impact on the
environment. Our determination to promote environmental well-being is
reflected in the introduction of our Environmental Policy.

As the nature of the Group’s business is primarily the distribution of
IT products, the environmental impact and use of natural resources is
considered to be minimal. Nonetheless, our Group, as a responsible
corporate citizen, strives to protect the environment and natural resources.
The Group minimizes its impact on the environment through daily activities,
such as turning off computers, lights and electronic equipment after use,
and bringing water from a cup instead of drinking water from plastic bottles.
We all play a part in protecting the environment through the small actions we
take in our daily lives.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change is an issue that is plaguing many businesses and countries
worldwide. The Group is not likely to be unaffected and will not leave
ourselves unguarded. In addition to reducing GHG emissions, we have also
implemented adaptation measures.

According to the Taskforce on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”)
framework, climate-related risks can be categorised as physical risks and
transition risks. Physical risks can be acute or chronic in climate patterns.
Transition risks can be evolved from transition to a lower-carbon economy.

Due to our Group’s business nature is mainly distribution of IT products,
the supply chain may be disrupted by extreme weather events, such as
typhoon. Any decrease in capacity of timely delivery may result in a loss of
revenue.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

REPORT INDEX

R HERERBRERS

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
=4 ot EERS| M
A. Environmental

A IRIE

A1 Emission

A1 BEERYD

General Disclosure Information on:

(@)
(b)

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant i

mpact on the issuer;

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
— PRI R EREREBEREER FKR LS BERE
SERVNELESH:

(@)
(b)

B R

BTHETABEAFENRBERLADNER -

Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

HEn g iR AR R R I BUE -

Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse

gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
B (HSE) RegREZ (BE2)REREBEHNE (KA
MEETE) R (EA)BE (WEBEREEENEES)

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

MELXEERENEE
g =1

BERES
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For more details, please refer to
“EMISSIONS”

EREZH1E H20 T8y

Not material.

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.

TEK-
BEEEABAMBRERNER T EESL
REHERW - B - 3930 8 52 55 e TR B0
1o

For more details, please refer to
“EMISSIONS”

BEREZHIE H20 8y

Not material.

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
BE Bt HEZRS| M
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Not material.
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production Trading ICT’s products operation does not
volume, per facility). have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.
FEABRZEEEYHESE (UEAE) R (ER)BE (10 ~&EK-
BERESELELS) - BEEEABAMBREMRNER T EESL
REBERY - Bt - BP0 4% 58 L TR 8L
1o
A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to For more details, please refer to
achieve them. “EMISSIONS” and “ESG STRATEGIES”
BRI YR EE R R AEIELEEMERNST BRESFE 20 R KR
B R g REIGERRE]
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes Not material.

are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set Trading ICT’s products operation does not

and steps taken to achieve them.

have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.

WHARERERBEREMNIT L REAPAETINK TEK-

BERRRREDEL B RATERERA 2B o

BEEEMBANRERNER L EES
REFRY - Bt - AL ERE UL AH
e
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE-#HEakEn

wE (|E)

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
BE Bt HEZRS| M
A2 Use of Resources

A2 ER{ER

General Disclosure

— MR

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5
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Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BRERBIR (BIEEER KR HMREME) BB

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

RENESMNEE R SJHELER (B  RelUh) 25
EATETERAE) REE (NEHEERETEMLEE

B)e

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BREKEREE (&

J=]
g
&
)
i
K
Pt
i
ll

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

BRIV RERANE B ERAEE LB IZME
B 2P B o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

i 3t SRERE B /KO £ AT B (R AT B RE - DA R PR aT S 9 A 7K
Mz B ERAERELE BRI 5] -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

HEmAAEEMANEE (UABEAE) R (NER)E
HEBMEE-
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For more details, please refer to “USE OF
RESOURCES”
EHEEZFIE F2HITEREM]

For more details, please refer to “USE OF
RESOURCES”

EREZHIE B2 EREM]

Not material.

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.
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e

For more details, please refer to “USE OF
RESOURCES” and “ESG STRATEGIES”
FAEZHE B2MTERERI RIIR

BtgRERKE]

Not material.

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.
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Not material.

Trading ICT’s products operation does not
have a significant emission. Therefore, we
are not disclosing on this figure.
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Aspects
[Em|

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Summary
Bt

RE -HERERKRSE (&)

Page Index/Notes
HEZRS| M

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 RERRRER

General Disclosure

— MR

A3.1

A4 Climate Change
A4 RIREE

General Disclosure

— R IR

A4

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on
the environment and natural resources.

MIEBETAHRBERRAERERERZENRK -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.
HMEBEHHRBERRABRNERZEREKINE
BEMTENTE-

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

BRI REHEERAIREEHETAEETZENERRIR
HAEERBUR -

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.

Bl B AR AR e HBETAELATENERAEARS
- REHTH-

BHERERARLT

For more details, please refer to “IMPACT
ON COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENTAL
AND NATURAL RESOURCE”
EHREZFE F2HHER RBER
RARERNTZE]

For more details, please refer to “IMPACT
ON COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENTAL
AND NATURAL RESOURCE”
FHEZHE B2HHtR - RER
RARERNTZE]

For more details, please refer to “CLIMATE
CHANGE”

EHESHE B2 [REE(L

For more details, please refer to “CLIMATE
CHANGE”

EREZHIE B2H [RIxZL]

—z-massH 69



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (&)

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
EBm Bt HEZRS| M
B. Social

B. &g

B1 Employment and Labour Practices
Bl EERZE TER

General Disclosure Information on: For more details, please refer to
a) the policies; and “‘EMPLOYMENT”
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer;
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

—R = FATHERE BEREA TERE BB TEK BHEEZFE F28ERE]

g Z b RIEAR DA R H A A8 [ 42 F A9 -
a) BE: &
b) EFHBEITABERZENEBERKAONER -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, For more details, please refer to
full- or part-time), age group and geographical region. “‘EMPLOYMENT”
RUWREEER (2B R FRENLMRE BEAEZHE H2H[ERF]
DHEE B -

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and For more details, please refer to
geographical region. “‘EMPLOYMENT”
mMR FRAERNRMEE DNEERALE BAE %S B2 ERE]
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE -HERERKRSE (&)

Aspects Summary Page Index/Notes
EBm Bt HEZRS| M
B2 Health and Safety

B2 RREZZ

General Disclosure

— AR IR EE

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer;

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BHARELZ2TIFRERRBEEBABENL GBI

(a) BX &

(o) EFHBEITABERLENEBERKRIINER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each
of the past three years including the reporting year.
RBE=ZF (BEREFE)BFEIEBEMIETHA
B LR o

Lost days due to work injury.
HIGEATIERS

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
PR ER BV B R FR B 2 26 i - A BRI 1T &R BR
Bk

BHERERARLT

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”

EREZHE B2 RRERE]

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”

EREZHE B2 RRERE]

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”
FAEZFE B2HEREL 2]

For more details, please refer to “HEALTH
AND SAFETY”
FHEZFE F2HRERRZ S
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE-#HEakEn

Aspects
[Em|

wE (|E)

Summary
Bt

Page Index/Notes
HEZRS| M

B3 Development and Training

B3 #RE K

General Disclosure

— MR

B3.1

B3.2

B4 Labour Standards
B4 25 T X8|

General Disclosure

— R IR

B4.1

B4.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for

discharging duties at work. Description of training activities

BRARTHE B EIT TIERE /0 3 S B Be M BR - 4 it

BINEE -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle

management).
BUPIREERFI(NSREEE PREERE)EHH
XIEEBDLL -

The average training hours completed per employee by

gender and employee category.
RERREBRERZESD BEEETAZINA RS-

Information on:

(@)
)

(a)
(o)

Description of measures to review employment practices

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer;
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BRA IEE T R85 TH

128 53
BTHEITABEXN

2/ 4
o

B AR A R AR B R -

to avoid child and forced labour.
il BEEMMEEARRET KBS T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices

when discovered.

R E R BN ERR A BIFRTREE T -
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For more details, please refer to
“DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
BHEZFE F20 [#EEI

For more details, please refer to
“DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING”

BEREZHE F2MH ERMEI

For more details, please refer to
“DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING”
AR LIS B2 [HE RS

For more details, please refer to “LABOUR
STANDARDS”

BEREZHIE 20 85T EA)

For more details, please refer to “LABOUR
STANDARDS”
EAEZFE B2 5T

For more details, please refer to “LABOUR
STANDARDS”

R ZFIE F20 15T
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Summary
Bt

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REBE - HERERRS (E)

Page Index/Notes
HEZRS| M

B5 Supply Chain Management

B5 HAEGEE IR

General Disclosure

— MR

B5.1

B5.2

B5.3

B5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY

supply chain.
BRAERHEENERIE Lt & E R EGE -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BinE B D MHEREE -

CHAIN MANAGEMENT”
BREZHE F20H HEEEE]

For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
CHAIN MANAGEMENT”
EAE LIS B2 [HEREE]

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
number of suppliers where the practices are being CHAIN MANAGEMENT”
implemented, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

WA ERRERHERNED AERTEHENNMRE BRESHE F20HEREERE]

FEEE URBRABINRITRER L.

Description of practices used to identify environmental For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are CHAIN MANAGEMENT”

implemented and monitored.

R AR ERESEARGOREREERARNIES . FHEEZHE F2H[HREEE]

ARBERITRERTTE.

Description of practices used to promote environmentally For more details, please refer to “SUPPLY
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, CHAIN MANAGEMENT”
and how they are implemented and monitored.

L ERERERFRESARRERRRBOED FHEEZHE F2H{HREEE]

ARBERITRERTTE.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE-#HEakEn

Aspects
[Em|

wE (|E)

Summary
Bt

Page Index/Notes
HEZRS| M

B6 Product Responsibility

B6 EmET

General Disclosure

— R

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5
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Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer;

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided

and methods of redress.

FHMRHEERNRBNREE LS BS RELLE

FHEHNRERITEN

(@) B &

(o) BFUHETABERZENBEEEIIROINER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.

EENCEXEMART HE % 2 HiEFEH T FE LW
Batke

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

EEENERMRRBHIRFEE LR EETTE-
Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

fet B E RREMBEEFANIED -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

S 2 e B AR R E M B AR T o

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.
LB B EERRE RFLBEE A REBRITRER
ke
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For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY”

EREZHE B2HEmEE]

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Product
Quality and Safety”

EREZHE BB ERET-ER
EERLTE]

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Customer
Opinions and Complaints”

FHREZFE B2B EREE-&F
B REK]

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Intellectual
Property Rights”

FHEZFHE F2HEREE AR
FERE

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Product
Quality and Safety”

FHREZFE BB EREET-E®
EERZY]

For more details, please refer to
“PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY — Privacy
and Data Protection”

FHMEZFE F2HEREE-ILE
N E R RE]
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Summary
Bt

RE -HERERKRSE (&)

Page Index/Notes
HEZRS| M

B7 Anti-corruption
B7 RES

General Disclosure

— R

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer;

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRAM IEARRR 9K HGGF RO R BN

(a) BX: &

(o) EFHEITABERZEBOEBERKRIINER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RMERAUBITASERERDVEELENETFHFA
EHHOEE RFRER-

Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

P E A R R RET URBBRTRER T -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.
MimEERE TIRHORESFHE-

B8 Community Investment

B8 it&@iRE

General Disclosure

— R

B8.1

B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
FBNHEBERTRETALEMEIHETEFER
HEBITBGERMLIEF =B -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HAIEREE (MHE RREE - SIHFT R BE X
£ 8F)-

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus
area.
ERIGEMBAER (NeERME) -

BHERERARLT

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-
CORRUPTION”

BEREZHE F2HTRES]

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-
CORRUPTION”

EREZHE F2HTRES]

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-
CORRUPTION”

EREZHE F2HTRES]

For more details, please refer to “ANTI-
CORRUPTION”
FAEZFE #F2HIRES]

For more details, please refer to
“COMMUNITY INVESTMENT”

BEREZHE 20 HRKRE]

For more details, please refer to
“COMMUNITY INVESTMENT”
EHEEZFE F2HHEKRA]

For more details, please refer to
“COMMUNITY INVESTMENT”
FHAEZFE B2 LERE]
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERE

alE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2024
and up to the date of this report.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor
confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has
complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) except for some code provisions which are explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of its
business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

Board of Directors

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises 9 members, consisting of five Executive
Directors, one Non-executive Director and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Gu Sanjun

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhang Dongjie

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei
Ms. Gao Yiyang (Appointed on 10 December 2024)
Mr. Yu Dingheng (Appointed on 20 December 2024)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors and at the same time representing at
least one-third of the Board with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his/her independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEEB®RSE (F)

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Board Diversity

The Board has established a policy setting out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board (the “Board Diversity Policy”) with the aims of
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as
achieving better performance of the Company. In designing the board
composition, board diversity can be achieved through consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and education background, professional skills, industry experience and
knowledge and length of service. In considering these perspectives on
diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on its
business model and specific needs from time to time.

The Nomination Committee will be responsible for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying out this
responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee had taken the Board Diversity Policy into account in
relation to appointment of directors of the Company.

The current Board consists of a diverse mix of Board members with different
appropriate skills, knowledges and experience to promote and achieve
better performance of the Company. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the Company had achieved gender diversity by appointing a female
Independent Non-executive Director.

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (‘CEQ”) and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the CEO and the senior management to
discharge their responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Functions

In order to meet higher standard of the corporate governance requirement,
the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirement; and reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosures in this report.
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Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended
31 December 2024 is set out below:

EEEEa
EEHREBRARERARH
EFHERBE-FT-_WMFE+-A=+—8
LFERGZEFEERZBERBIMT

Attendance/Number
of Meetings

Directors £ HEBITEBIRE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Jialin FEMEE 4/4
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam TR EE 4/4
Mr. Li Yue TIHEE 4/4
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau PRGN 55 A= 4/4
Mr. Gu Sanjun B=E%4E 4/4
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Zhang Dongjie RERKE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Li Wei TEEAE 4/4
Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Resigned on 20 December 2024) E® iE'zE Bt (R=ZFE-WF+=H=+HET) 2/2
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Resigned on 20 December 2024) BERES A (RFEZaF = A= 1 HEHF) 2/2
Ms. Gao Yiyang (Appointed on 10 December 2024) SBRERLE (RZF-F+=A+HEZE) 2/2
Mr. Yu Dingheng (Appointed on 20 December 2024) REBEE (RZF-ZF+ A=+ HEZE) 2/2

On 10 December 2024 and 19 December 2024, Ms. Gao Yiyang and Mr.
Yu Dingheng, respectively, obtained legal advice relating to director’s duties
and responsibilities under applicable laws and regulations from a law firm
qualified to advise on Hong Kong law pursuant to Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules, and had confirmed that he/she understood his/her obligations as a
Director of the Company.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are
served to all Directors in accordance with the Code before the meetings.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to enable
them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.
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The CEO, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company
normally attend all regular Board meetings and when necessary, other
committee meetings to advise on business developments, financial and
accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other
major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting on, nor be counted in the quorum,
any resolution of the Board approving any contract or arrangement or any
other proposal in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.

General Meetings

Under the CG Code, the Chairman, independent non-executive directors
and non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Li Jialin, Mr.
Ong Wei Hiam, Mr. Gu Sanjun, Mr. Zhang Dongjie and Mr. Wang Xiaolong,
were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on
30 May 2024 due to other important engagements. All other directors had
attended the 2024 annual general meeting to answer questions and collect
views of shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and CEO should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

The current Chairman and CEO of the Company is Mr. Li Jialin. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same
person will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Directors and the management of the Company and considers that this
structure will enable the Group to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Directors will meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered into a service contract
with the Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not
appointed with a specific term unless and until terminated by either party
by a specific months of notice in writing. Under the service agreements,
the initial annual emoluments of each Executive Director is fixed and the
remuneration payable to each of them will be reviewed by the Board and the
Remuneration Committee of the Board each year.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, Board diversity, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of
the Board regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Company’s needs, the Board Diversity Policy and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Pursuant to Article 86(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his/
her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article
87(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one
third), shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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The Board has recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on 22 May 2025 (“AGM 2025”). The Company’s circular in relation
to the AGM 2025 contains detailed information of the Directors standing for
re-election.

Continuing Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company continuously updates Directors on the legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending seminars or reading
relevant materials and provided a record of training they received during the
year to the Company.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority members of each Board committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under the section of “Corporate Information” of this
annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors
(including one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures.

(d)  To review arrangements which employees of the Company can use
to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2024 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, the risk management and internal control
systems and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings is set
out below:
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

R RBITERRE

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Chairman) ERBRE (F/E) 2/2

(Resigned on 20 December 2024) (R=ZFZmFE+ = H =+ HEHF)

Mr. Li Wei TETE 2/2

Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Resigned on 20 December 2024) ~ TBiseh 4 (R=-F_/F+ = H =+ HAFT) 2/2

Ms. Gao Yiyang (Appointed on 10 December 2024) BRFLLT (RZFZmF+ A+ HEZF) 0/0

Mr. Yu Dingheng (Chairman) REEERE (FE) 0/0
(Appointed as chairman on 20 December 2024) (R=ZFZmFF=—H =1 HEZHF

BERE)

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2024 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
directors’ and senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for development remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of Non-executive Directors; reviewing and
approving termination compensation, dismissal or removal compensation
arrangements; reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share scheme
(if any) under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and ensuring that no director
or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the

Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the year ended
31 December 2024 to review (a) whether the remuneration package of
the directors and senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience and market level
of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed to be

made.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
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executive Directors. The attendance of individual members at Remuneration FIXKE R EEHFMEZEETeR 2B A&7 WM
Committee meeting is set out below: T
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HEBITEERE
Mr. Li Wei (Chairmarn) FREE(EE) 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Resigned on 20 December 2024) ERBRE (RZFZWFEZ A=+ HFE) 11
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Resigned on 20 December 2024) FEEge Skt (R —FE —#E+— A =+ HEIT) 1/1
Ms. Gao Yiyang (Appointed on 10 December 2024) S8 FX+ (R -E - WF+ - H+HEZ(T) 0/0
Mr. Yu Dingheng (Appointed on 20 December 2024)  &EBRE (R-F-pUF+—H -+ HEZT) 0/0

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become board members, assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executives Directors, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for

Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the

Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

One Nomination Committee meeting was held during the year ended 31
December 2024 for reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and assessing the

independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director as chairman,
and three Independent Non-executive Directors as members. The
attendance of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting is set
out below:

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEER®RSE (&)

REZBEABUTESFHEIRE=A
BIYFATEETHEXE - ERKBE L FER
RELZEgERIBERAINWMT

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

R BITEEREY

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman) TEMNEE (FE) 11
Mr. Li Wei FIEEAE 1/1
Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Resigned on 20 December 2024) EBRBEE (RZFZWFELZ A=+ HEHE) 11
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Resigned on 20 December 2024) T IEgehE (R =F=—F+ = A=+ HEFT) 1/1
Ms. Gao Yiyang (Appointed on 10 December 2024)  @E ARt (R=ZZFE=-F+=- A+ HEZ(T) 0/0
Mr. Yu Dingheng (Appointed on 20 December 2024)  HREBRAE (R=ZF-WF+=-H =+ HEZT) 0/0

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report”.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$7,425,000 and HK$1,455,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard shareholders’
investments and have a better control on the business and operation of the
Company. The Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of its
risk management and internal control systems on an annual basis.
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The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and
authority to the senior management. As a leading and comprehensive ICT
products distributor, our Group has many well-known suppliers and vendors
as well as extensive downstream channel partners. In order to cooperate
with different parties, our senior management team will be delegated to
take different responsibility such as product management, supply chain
management, operational management and financial management, etc., to
ensure that the Group has a smooth business operation to reduce risk and
uncertainties that may be caused.

The management of the Company is responsible for designing, implementing
and monitoring the Group’s risk management and internal control
framework, covering all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The risk management and internal control framework
also provides for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic meetings and independent reviews
on the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and
risks, develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified
risks, and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Board acknowledged that it is their responsibilities to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control systems. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company has established a policy in relation to the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Board as a whole is responsible
for identifying and considering the disclosure requirements and guidelines
regarding inside information.

Besides, the Company regularly reminds the directors and employees on the
compliance with all the requirements regarding inside information. Also, the
directors and employees are kept informed on the latest regulatory updates
to ensure they are complied with the regulatory requirements.
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The Board has conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function
as well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing risk management and internal control systems of the Group is
effective and adequate.

There is an internal audit function in some of the Group’s subsidiaries to
carry out independent assessment of risks and testing of controls of the
business and operation of the Company in order to provide a reasonable
assurance that adequate controls and governance are in operation. The
Board considers that as the structure of some of our business is rather
simple and direct within the Group, the Board will continue to review on
annual basis the need of the internal audit function to be extended to the
whole Group.

In terms of workforce of the Group, as at 31 December 2024, the
Group had 5,639 full-time employees (including the Board and senior
management). Among which, there were 3,012 male employees and 2,627
female employees. Based on the job nature of different positions, the Board
is of the view that the Company has basically achieved a certain degree of
balanced diversity. Nevertheless, the Company aims to further enhance its
diversity in workforce by introducing more staff with different sex and age
(subject to job nature) and expects to perform a further review of its diversity
in workforce by the end of 2025.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Associations, any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meeting of the Company, shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner. Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit 3312, 33/F China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary.

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to propose
a resolution may request the Company to convene a general meeting by
following the procedures set out in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Regarding the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a director, please refer to the procedures available on the Company’s
website.

Shareholders’ Communications and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a range of communication channels between
itself and its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of other Board committees, and the external
auditors, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.
To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’
meetings (other than on procedural and administrative matters) will be
voted by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively on the same day as the poll.
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To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website
at www.vstecs.com, where extensive information and updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

Constitutional Documents

No changes were made to the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESERTE

The directors (the “Directors”) of VSTECS Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
are pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the development of information technology (“IT”)
product channel and provision of technical solution integration services.
The three major business segments are enterprise systems which provides
enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services; Consumer
electronics which provides finished IT products; and cloud computing which
provides cloud computing solutions and services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the
financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 12 and
pages 14 to 18 respectively of this annual report. A description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing, discussion on the
Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group are contained in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 15 of this annual report. The Environmental, Social and
Governance Report are set out on pages 24 to 71 of this annual report.
The Corporate Governance Report are set out on pages 72 to 87 of the
annual report. In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year using financial key performance indicators is presented in the Financial
Summary on page 216 of this annual report.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2024 represented
approximately 5% (2023: approximately 6%) of the Group’s total turnover,
and the combined total of the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 13% (2023: approximately 13%) of the Group’s total turnover
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2024
represented approximately 16% (2023: approximately 14%) of the Group’s
total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 46% (2023: approximately 46%) of the Group’s
total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2024.

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors, their respective close
associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
five largest suppliers or customers for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 113.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2024 of HK25.7 cents per ordinary share (2023: HK25.7
cents).

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy adopted by the Company is based on a number of
factors and conditions. Pursuant to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company, any declaration
of final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company and the distribution of dividend should be made of out of profit.
When recommending an interim or a final dividend, the Board will take into
account, inter alia, the financial results, liquidity position, general business
conditions and strategies, capital requirement for future development as well
as the distributable reserves of the Company (comprise of the Company’s
reserves excluding capital redemption reserve as set out in note 16 to the
financial statements) and the retained earnings of other members of the
Group and any other factors the Board may deem relevant from time to
time.

Directors’ Report (continued)
EEgRE (E)

TEEFRHEER

HE-_Z-_NMF+ A=+ HILEFEZ&
AEFMAEEBEEENSR (2T ==
F:H6%) MAREFLZAMFBEEIMER
Elﬁi—z ME+—_A=+—BLEFE
EEBENIZ% (ZTEZ=F:H13% ) °

N BEZZZNF+ A=+ —RHIEF
EZHEAMHEREAEEARBELN16%
(ZEZ=F:H14%) MAREEEZE
HRENEAEEEE T _NF+ = A
—t+—ALEFERREENGR (2T ==
FH46%) o

R-E-m&E+-A=Z+-8 %% #
SEZETMEA S E S5 A A
ARASRA L AAREHERBE -2
CHE+ZASt-BUEEEZEAREE
S % o 4 7 (1M 3 e

ek

AEBBE-_T_ME+ _A=+—HLF
EzEBEHANF1IBE 2 FEERKR

EEEEMNEAEE_T_WFE+_A=+—H
HFERNAHRESR L B A25.781
(ZEZ=F:25781) -

RS BE

ARBRBZBREBEDERZARRKIF
H-RBERANRAERSEZZARARA 2A
BEREARN EREMNKAKREBAELRRQA
PRERHEAE I BE A 9K - 2 E P HR KRB
RER EF@RER(ETEE)MBE
BoRBESRR —REBAMA RRB
REFERHNE DT RKARAKRAHAH D IR
FE(BEEARBWEE HEMERERME
16AEMEARBORZERIN) AEAEE
HRBEMNREANMETS IR RERM
R A E e

muEARRERAs —=-mFiem 89



Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (&)

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 115 to 116 and note 16 to the financial
statements respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings and lease liabilities

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in notes 20 and 21 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 216.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company repurchased a
total of 4,978,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
of which 438,000 shares have been cancelled and 4,540,000 shares will be
held by the Company as treasury shares. Details of the repurchase of shares
by the Company are as follows:
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May 2024 TN FERA 438,000 4.85 4.66 2,108,540
July 2024 ZEZNFELAR 1,882,000 4.28 4.16 7,939,860
October 2024 ZE-NFEFA 1,816,000 5.07 4.48 8,947,160
November 2024 —EZME+—A 842,000 4.69 4.63 3,927,140
4,978,000 22,922,700

The Board believes that such repurchase of shares will lead to an
enhancement of the net asset value of the Company and/or its earnings per
share.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2024 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Li Yue

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Gu Sanjun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Dongjie

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (Resigned on 20 December 2024)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Resigned on 20 December 2024)
Ms. Gao Yiyang (Appointed on 10 December 2024)
Mr. Yu Dingheng (Appointed on 20 December 2024)

Pursuant to Article 86(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his/
her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election. Pursuant to Article
87(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one
third), shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Details of the Directors proposed to be re-elected are contained in the
Company’s circular in relation to the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 22 May 2025.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company considers the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Besides, each of Ms. Gao Yiyang and Mr. Yu Dingheng, being Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company appointed in December 2024, has
confirmed that he/she has obtained legal advice relating to director’s duties
and responsibilities under applicable laws and regulations from a law firm
qualified to advise on Hong Kong law pursuant to Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules and that he/she understood his/her obligations as a Director.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Each Director of the Company has either entered a service contract with the
Company or has an appointment letter. The Directors are not appointed for
any specific length or proposed length of services and their term of service
shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by a specific
months of notice in writing.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed by the Board
but subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the year ended 31 December 2024 or at any time during the year under
review.

Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of Directors and company secretary are set out on
pages 19 to 23.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or required
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EENRESTHRAESRKRAY -
{EEH&@&FE%ZE@&
IA =

—AZt+— B ARAEE
S 7R A ) Bk BT ] AR B A B
REIEGED (BEEFIEST1E)
§%&Hﬂaf%1JJ)%XV%)ZH&@WBF@
EBTHERBEESRBEKAIE
XV*E%?& SO EEMEARARNA LB 2
BaEAR (PREBESREZES RBEEH
EZ%MX?& BB BEE 2 R R %
R BRBALRRBREZESFRBE
1\*157@%3521%%“523.55%2% SRKRE
HRIE ETRRNAEHNE AR E R RFT 2 E
=mRRBWT :

RAQXBRH REERG 2ES

Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary shares or issued share
Long/Short underlying shares capital of the
Name of Director Position Capacity held Company
FEEBRY EARAR BT
MR KB 14 HEROEHE BREZBYEIL
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 82,333,200 5.73%
FEMEE o) BREBA
Long Interest of a controlled
corporation 311,228,000 21.67%
e Rt EER (Note 1)
(#1at1)
Long Family interest 204,309,600 14.22%
TR ENIY £ (Note 2)
(Hat2)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 2,193,600 0.15%
FEITEE e BEREBA
Mr. Gu Sanjun Long Beneficial owner 150,000 0.01%
B=E%4 Gy EREBA
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau Long Beneficial owner 150,000 0.01%
PRGN 5 A Gy EnEBA
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. The 311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the
entire issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his
spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

2. The 204,309,600 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the
spouse of Mr. Li Jialin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors
nor the chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (&)

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2024, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons (no being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an
interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or were directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any
other members of the Group:

FERREEMBALTRERS -
TEEHQGKEE%ZEE%&
K2

RZZTE-_WE+ZA=+—H HRE=HHAN
NTAL(WEARFAEETHZEHITHAEL)
RARB 2BMDR/LBEEMN T ERIR
BEFRBEENEXVEFE2RID B 2 &
XARMARA RBRREZ Em R RK
BRI EZARRAREZ S RBER
BlE3seETFE BELMo R R HHKE
R/ R AR A B R T A & B AR
HMERB AR ZBRAEG ERRZEMNZE
fa] $8 Bl I% 7S o B £ ok 42 BB T (B 5% 5k PA
btk

Number of
ordinary shares or Approximate
Long/Short underlying shares percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity held shareholding
BEEERY A IR 1
BEHA B RE g4 HERNEE EpiNsd
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 204,309,600 14.22%
ZIF £ e EnEA A
Long Interest of a controlled corporation 311,228,000 21.67%
e R LEER (Note 1)
(Bst1)
Long Family interest 82,333,200 5.73%
e KA (Note 2)
(Hiit2)
L & L Limited Long Beneficial owner 311,228,000 21.67%
e EmEA A (Note 3)
(H5£3)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 252,211,998 17.56%
6 (B8)BRAR 5=} EmiEa A (Note 4)
(Bista)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continvea)

Directors’ Report (continued)

RE (&)

Number of
ordinary shares or

E=EHRE (&)

FERREEMBALTRERS -
HEROREER Z2ERR

Approximate

Long/Short underlying shares percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity held shareholding
BEEERY B4 AR fE
BEHA [ ¥ g4 HERGOEE Elalid
Y116 2o B A FE SR AR (D Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.56%
BRAF e I AEER (Note 5)
(K1315)
YT EERE R A A Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.56%
58 SR A E R (Note 6)
(K1ate)
YN ARBSEA Long Interest of a controlled corporation 252,211,998 17.56%
EEEEEIEZES gE AR ER (Note 6)
(Bi7#6)
AR I O ERTT Long Security interest in shares 152,211,998 10.60%
A R A i i (Note 7)
(K1at7)
FINEEIRF Long Interest of a controlled corporation 152,211,998 10.60%
HE AR R (Note 7)
(Htat7)
FMR LLC Long Interest of a controlled corporation 145,273,600 10.11%
e AR ER
Fidelity Puritan Trust Long Beneficial owner 130,406,626 9.08%
HE EnERA

BHERERARLT

—z-masg 97



Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (&)

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures (continvea)

Notes:

1.

Save

The 311,228,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the
entire issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his
spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

The 82,333,200 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the
spouse of Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li
Jialin and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by %
e EmutEER G BR D).

14.96% of the shares of I 1a B EER (N AR AT are held by
YR EIERB R AR

100% of the shares of FIITHIE EIL KB R A 7] are held by )&= AR
HNEEEEEBEREZRS.

89.26% of the shares of Bl [t} O R 7T are held by EIR/MNEEIE 2.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, so far is known to

the Directors, no person (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or

underl

ying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions

2 and

3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register

maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or was
directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal value of any

class

of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general

meeting of any other members of the Group, or any options in respect of
such capital.
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Share Options

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April 2002 has
expired. The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to the Group. No share
options have been granted since its adoption. Therefore, no share options
were exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the New Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2024. Further details of the New Scheme are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save for the New Scheme, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of the companies comprising the Group, a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under
the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year under review.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have, either directly or indirectly, no interests
in any competing business.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors or
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets of the Company against all losses and liabilities which they may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty. The Company has arranged for
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors and officers arising out of corporate
activities.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (&)

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions (also related party transactions) have been disclosed
in note 32 of the financial statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions exempted from reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions
were entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis
and the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as
the shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.

The Directors of the Company confirm that none of the related party
transactions constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules that is required to
be disclosed. Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements,
the Group had not entered into any connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed in this annual
report pursuant to the Listing Rules during the year the year ended 31
December 2024.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set out
in note 29 to the financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2024
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee who was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made.
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Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the AGM 2025.

Event(s) after the Year

There was no material event affecting the Group which have occurred since
the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date
of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

15 3L % By B 3R

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of VSTECS Holdings
Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VSTECS Holdings
Limited, (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
102 to 215, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2024, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes, comprising material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial staterments section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHMBE (F)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FRESTEE

MREFETEAEIRERMNEZHE RAY ARG EVBERERNEARAEEN TR GELEHERAERMETE
BEalBRRILARARETREN AN TSHELETRRHEBNER -

Valuation of inventories
Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies set out in note 2.11.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s inventories, which consist of various information  Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
technology products and enterprise equipment, amounted inventories included the following:

to HK$11,189,500,000 (approximately 31% of the Group’s
current assets) as at 31 December 2024.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories
based on expected demand, future selling prices and
the future expenses necessary to make the sales. Future
demand and selling prices of technology products are
highly susceptible to factors such as industry standards,
technological changes and customer preferences, which are
constantly changing and could change very rapidly.

Determining provision for inventories requires the exercise of
significant management judgement as actual selling prices of
individual inventory items may fall below their costs or carrying
values.

We identified the net realisable value of inventories as a key
audit matter because any write-down or provision may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
and because the estimation of the net realisable values
involves the exercise of significant management judgement
which can be inherently uncertain.

obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design
and implementation of the Group’s key internal controls
over the inventory write-down and provision assessment
process, including the Group’s monitoring controls over
slow-moving inventories;

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing reports were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual items
with relevant purchase records, including purchase invoices
and goods receipt notes;

evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories were
sold at prices above their carrying values subsequent to
the reporting date;

evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories may
be obsolete or slow-moving by comparing the quantity
of inventories at the reporting date with the quantity sold
subsequent to the reporting date and with reference to
inventory turnover days during the current and previous
financial years; and

assessing the historical accuracy of management’s
estimation of write-down and provision for inventories
at the end of the previous financial year by examining
movements in the balance of provision for inventories
during the current year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBRE (F)
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHMBE (F)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies set out in note 2.8.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group’s trade receivables, net of an expected
credit loss allowance of HK$745,415,000, amounted to
HK$17,471,177,000 (approximately 48% of the Group’s
current assets) as at 31 December 2024.

Management measured loss allowance at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses. For customers about whom
the Group has specific information, the loss allowance is
assessed on an individual basis. For the other customers, the
trade receivables are segmented by geographical locations,
since the loss patterns for customers in different geographical
locations are significantly different based on the past
experience of the Group. The loss allowance is determined
based on ageing of the trade receivables and loss rates,
adjusted for current economic conditions and forward-looking
information.

We identified the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter because it involves
significant management judgement which is inherently
subjective and thereby increase the risk of error or
management bias.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design
and implementation of the Group’s key internal controls
relating to credit control, debt collection, and estimation of
expected credit loss allowance;

° evaluating the Group’s accounting policy for measuring
expected credit loss allowance with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

o for trade receivables which the loss allowance
is determined on an individual basis, evaluating
management’'s assessment by assessing the
creditworthiness of the customers with reference to publicly
available information and reviewing underlying documents
where applicable;

° for trade receivables which the loss allowance is measured
using a provision matrix, assessing the appropriateness
of management’s basis of customer segmentation with
reference to the historical loss rates for customers in the
different geographical locations; testing the accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether the historical
loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing reports were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items with the underlying documentation, including sales
invoices; and

° re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance as at 31
December 2024 based on the Group’s accounting policies.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBRE (F)
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHMBE (F)

mEMBERREZEAMEK
EUSER

EEFHEMEHAR -HMBERBETIR
REFRANZIHER BEFBREEEMBR
RERPIAZEEN RS

BMEEAVBREANERL TREEMBE
B#B#AT A AEZEEMERBEREMPA
HY 2B FE A W o

+ AN
élﬂl:l

MEREPBRENES HMANE
TEMBELAEMER EHBEREFT ZE
HEHNRDERGEMBRRARMER
BEPHMTRNOEAFEERNEBKE LT
FHEEARFERRAOBER -

AERBRAEHBEMAR A XK RS A B A&
BMEMERAATHIE HERMAIBLSE
MMEMTFEEAERRL RMAFTERE %
EE-EETE BRMRAEEMRS -

EENAREMBHRRAERE
MEFE

EFEARAEARBEBEESIAMAGEMN (F
BHBHREER) REE (RAHEM) W&
BELHREEEMTENRAMBRER X
HERRRESAUBHRROBRETIFER
REFFRERMERNERERRAMNFH
NEBIEHI B &

EREEAMBERRK EFRATM &
SERBELENEN THEERBERATHE
BEBLEAENTR URERABELE
REER - KRIEFEEN EXEEER
HIFLLEE SBBEELMERNERTER

ZEEMBEEETEE

ES EEENE
FBREMEE-

XA
%

EHeExzERamRen —-maesx 107



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBRE (F)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements ontinueq)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the Group
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZEMBRE (F)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements ontinueq)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheng Pui Ngar.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ReMBKAE

As at 31 December 2024 R=Z -4 +=-H=+—8

2024 2023
—EE —E-=F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LES &R 5 978,011 909,417
Intangible assets BEE 6 345,959 354,650
Interests in associates B R R RS 8 603,197 723,506
Interest in a joint venture NEELENER 9 - -
Other receivables H 4th JE Uk 708 10 190,722 1,557
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 19 158,893 146,129
2,276,782 2,135,259
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAMERFKIA 10 19,480,153 16,823,164
Other financial assets HEhemEE 11 1,493,750 1,428,109
Inventories F&E 12 11,189,500 11,308,675
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHES 13 3,947,768 3,325,140
36,111,171 32,885,088
Total assets s E 38,387,953 35,020,347
EQUITY i
Share capital il 14 143,645 143,689
Reserves fE 8,495,932 8,079,147
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 231,939 -
Total equity R 8,871,516 8,222,836

BHERERARLT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
meEmBEMRRE (&)

As at 31 December 2024 A - - E+—-A=+—H

2024 2023
—EE —E-=4F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B 5 FBT FET
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities FRBER
Contract liabilities AHEaE 17 2,753 1,184
Lease liabilities HEARE 20 277,138 209,014
Borrowings BE 21 1,380,437 -
Deferred tax liabilities EERTEE & 19 30,518 31,210
1,690,846 241,408
Current liabilities REERE
Trade and other payables EH5NEMENFRIE 17 18,477,286 16,962,819
Other financial liabilities HEHtmemaE 18 655,344 668,628
Contract liabilities AHEaE 17 570,713 559,144
Lease liabilities HERE 20 157,919 129,375
Borrowings BE 21 7,863,595 8,103,976
Taxation payable FETRETR 100,734 132,161
27,825,591 26,556,103
Total liabilities we s 29,516,437 26,797,511
Total equity and liabilities EEhaER% 38,387,953 35,020,347
Net current assets RBEEFE 8,285,580 6,328,985
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBERS 10,562,362 8,464,244

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March ZEF @R T -_RAF=-_A -+ — Bt ERE

2025. RE T2 o

Li Jialin Ong Wei Hiam, William

Z{EM FER

Director Director

EF =

The notes on pages 118 to 215 form part of these financial statements. F118E215E 2 T RAMB R KT 2 — &
/)j\ °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
ReRax

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-Z &+ —-A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—EomE —EZ=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FET FHET
Revenue & 22 89,085,588 73,891,296
Cost of sales SHE R A (85,156,532) (70,394,780)
Gross profit FEH| 3,929,056 3,496,516
Other gains, net Hu A %58 23 39,087 9,224
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HAXZ (1,499,198) (1,358,321)
Administrative expenses TERFAX (769,720) (712,272)
Operating profit £ 5 T 24 1,699,225 1,435,147
Finance costs &R 25 (404,244) (340,054)
1,294,981 1,095,093
Share of associates’ profits REL NI 8 60,741 75,028
Share of a joint venture’s loss DMEEEREEE 9 - (7,918)
Profit before taxation 5 B4 AL A 1,355,722 1,162,203
Taxation TiIE 26 (239,556) (240,170)
Profit for the year F A& 1,116,166 922,033
Attributable to: BT AL REA
Equity shareholders of the Company RAREZEFEA 1,051,979 922,033
Non-controlling interests FEERAE 64,187 -
Profit for the year F N 1,116,166 922,033
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) SRAF (FREW)
- Basic — &R 28 75.67 cents Bl 65.62 cents /&l
- Diluted —#E 28 75.67 cents Bl 65.62 cents /&l
Dividends attributable to equity shareholders BRFEEARLRE
Final dividend proposed R R AR AR B 27(i) 369,000 369,000

The notes on pages 118 to 215 form part of these financial statements.

F118E215BE 2T AAMBRER 2 — 2

N

oo

EHExEREReE —T-maesx 113



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GReHEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-Z -G+ —-A=+—HILFE

2024 2023

—E-F —EZ=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Profit for the year F R K 1,116,166 922,033
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax: FAEMEEUYA  BRTEE:

Exchange differences E A (260,039) (46,157)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEBABEE 856,127 875,876
Attributable to: LT ALRERL:

Equity shareholders of the Company RARERFEA 797,334 875,876

Non-controlling interests FEVERR M A 58,793 -
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EKRALEE 856,127 875,876
The notes on pages 118 to 215 form part of these financial statements. F118E215E 2 T RAMB R KT 2 — &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SeERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-Z &+ —-A=+—HILFE

Equity
attributable
Deferred to the
Capital reserve and Company's Non
Share Share  redemption Capital General  Translation Other treasury Retained equity  controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve share reserve earnings  shareholders interests equity
K0F
e BERBR REBEA
Ry ROEE BE  EARHE  -RER  EXRE  AREE BEERER  REEX FEibEE  FERES R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THL FEL TEL FEL TiEn T TR T TR T TR
Note () Note i) Note (i) Note (i) Note ) Note (1) Note (v
] i) i) Wity itz Wit Bt
Balance as at 1 January 2023 RZFZ=§-F-AzkH 145,092 883,185 9,132 79 377,655 (428,605) (84,239) (121,248) 6,876,005 7,657,778 - 78577718
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - - - - 922,083 922,033 - 922,083
Other comprehensive income £t 2ERA - - - - - 46,157) - - - 46,157) - (46,157)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRZERARE - - - - - (46,157) - - 922,033 875,876 - 875,876
Dividend paid EfikE - - - - - - - - (46650 (246,656) - (246650)
Transfer of reserve eRER - - - - 54,405 - - - (54,409) - - -
Share repurchased BERA
- par value -EE (1,403 - - - - - - - - (1,403) - (1,403
~ premium paid -BffEE - - - - - - - - (54,864) (54,864) - (54,864)
— transfer between reserves -BERER - - 1,403 - - - - - (1,403) - - -
Deferred shares purchased - - - - - - - (7,89) - (7,89) - (7,89)
Balance as at 31 December 2023
143,689 883,185 10,535 79 432,060 (474,762) (84,239) (129,141) 7,440,710 8,222,836 - 8,222,836
Representing:
Share capital 143,689
Reserves 7,710,147
Proposed dividend RERE 369,000
8,222,836
Balance as at 1 January 2024 RZZ-RE-F-AZkEH 143,689 883,185 10,535 799 432,060 (474,762) (84,239) (129,141) 7,440,710 8,222,836 - 8,222,836
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - - - - 1,051,979 1,051,979 64,187 1,116,166
Other comprehensive income Et2ERA - - - - - (254,645) - - - (254,645) (5,394)  (260,039)
Total comprehensive income FR2ENAEE
for the year - - - - - (25469) - - 1,051,979 797,334 5793 856,127
Dividend paid BRRE N - - - - - - - (369,281) (369,281) - (369,281)
Transfer of reserve FhERER - - - - 34,257 - - - (34,257) - - -
Treasury shares purchased BHEERR - - - - - - - (22,923) - (22,923) - (22,923)
Treasury sheres cancelled B BERR
- par value -EE (44) - - - - - - - - (44) - (44)
~ premium paid -BftE - - - - - - - - (2,068) (2,068) - (2,068)
— transfer befween reserves - BERE - - 44 - - - - 2,068 (44) 2,068 - 2,068
Deferred shares dividend EERARS - - - - - - - 11,655 - 11,655 - 11,655
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y -HHBAR - - - - - - - - - - 173,146 173,146
Balance as at 31 December 2024 RIZB-ME+-A=+-H
258 143645 883,185 10579 799 466317 (129407 (84200)  (138341)  8067.039 8,630,577 23193 8871516
Representing: f&:
Share capital [ 143,645
Resenves & 8,358,871
Proposed dividend REfkE 369,000
8,871,516

The notes on pages 118 to 215 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)
RERERERRE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

Notes:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

116

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference
between the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired and that of the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in April 2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April
2002; and (c) the premium arising from the new issue of shares, net of
share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled
shares of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted to employees and directors
of the Company and the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in Note 2.17(d).

According to the current Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10%
of their profits after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the
statutory surplus reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
For the purpose of calculating the amount to be transferred to the reserve,
the profit after taxation is the amount determined under PRC accounting
standards. The amount of transfer to this reserve has to be made before
profit distribution to shareholders. In accordance with the relevant
regulations, this reserve may be used to make up any losses incurred or to
increase the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of subsidiaries
for the transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries
(Note 2.2(a)).

Deferred and treasury shares reserve comprises the cost of acquisition of
the Company’s shares through a trust setup specifically for the purpose of
employment compensation. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in Note 2.13(c).
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GReRaRERR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-Z &+ —-A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E O —E - =F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEH R RE
Net cash generated from operations KREMG RS FHE 30(a) 2,112,757 891,882
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BAEBFEHR (5,658) -
Tax paid outside Hong Kong BEREBRINIIE (284,703) (251,652)
Net cash generated from operating activities ERESEBFTISIR & R 1,822,396 640,230
Cash flows from investing activities KREE RENE
Interest received B UFIE 38,300 29,256
Payment for purchase of property, BEWE BEREHD
plant and equipment 3% (131,145) (38,822)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BEEREEENTN (3,031) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BE K
plant and equipment BRS¢ 1,646 1,975
Increase in pledged deposits Eng ERTFR (256,641) (93,149)
Investment in associates REtE RN E 2 A (12,217) (41,271)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of Ui — KT B A7) 0Bk
cash acquired 2R 30(c) 74,944 -
Purchase of financial assets BEESRmEE (71,783) (94,697)
Disposals of financial assets HESRERE 34,276 315,895
Dividends received from associates SN I 24,719 58,569
Net cash (used in)/generated from wEES (FA),/ s
investing activities ZHEFE (300,932) 137,756
Cash flows from financing activities MmEZEH BEERE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEHEAREH D 30(b) (152,181) (110,602)
Payment for the repurchase of shares, treasury BEiRn - EFERE
shares and deferred shares, net IEIERR 10 B FUF 58 (11,312) (64,162)
Proceeds from new bank loans IR RITERATIS A 30(b) 27,492,904 24,020,079
Repayment of borrowings HEBE 30(b) (27,358,865) (24,368,329)
Net pledging of assets for other HitvepBERER
financial liabilities AEFH 30(b) (34,156) (263,766)
Interest paid 2ATHE 30(b) (404,244) (340,054)
Dividend paid EATIRE (369,281) (246,656)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBFA RS FE (837,135) (1,373,490)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERREEEY
cash equivalents #n, CRd) F58 684,329 (595,504)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HZBE&K
ReEEY 2,648,691 3,245,630
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEREB) 2 B (318,342) (1,435)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+-—A=+—RHAz2
RekBReEED 13 3,014,678 2,648,691

As at 31 December 2024, the cash and bank balances consist of R-ZZ-_MFE+_-_A=+—H ' R& NIEIT
HK$933,090,000 (2023: HK$676,449,000) deposits for the issuance of the 4% &4 &4& A KA 59 B & A (= A & #9933,090,000

standby letters of credit. I (- T = =4 :676,449,0005 7T) 1F X -
The notes on pages 118 to 215 form part of these financial statements. F118E215E 2 T RAMB R KT 2 — &
2 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rt %5 30 =& B &

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE-Z -G+ —-A=+—HILFE

General Information

VSTECS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the development
of information technology (“IT”) product channel and provision of
technical solution integration services. The three major business
segments are enterprise systems which provides enterprise
system tools for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services;
Consumer electronics which provides finished IT products; and cloud
computing which provides cloud computing solutions and services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33rd
Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 21 March 2025.

Material Accounting Policies

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. The HKICPA has issued certain
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. None of
these developments have had a material effect on how the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 comprise the Group and the Group’s interests
in associates and a joint venture.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except certain financial assets and liabilities are
carried at their fair values as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.2

120 vSTECS Holdings Limited

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have effect on the financial statements and
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

Consolidation

@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, an investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Annual Report 2024
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 2.14, 2.15 and 2.18 depending on
the nature of the liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@  Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and

no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.9)
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture (see note

2.2(0)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2.7), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group

that is classified as held for sale).
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)  Associates and joint ventures

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. ERSFHBE»

2.2 IRERE (&)

()

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in
the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
the Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to the

net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a

joint venture is

accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see note 2.7). At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there is any objective that the
investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of

other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)  Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be

accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition

of a financial asset (see note 2.9).
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(@  Functional and presentation currency

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. ERETHHE
2.3 HhEEAE

()

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”"),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the entity
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

©)

126 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing
rate at the reporting date;

(i) income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

2. ERETHHE
2.4 ME - -BMENREZE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including right-of-use assets
arising from leases of underlying property, plant and equipment,
is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the costs of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have
been adopted are summarised as follows:

Buildings held for own use carried at cost %A AN FI B 1E S AT

Right-of-use assets arising from leases of properties, plant and
equipment M3 HE LK EHEMEEANTAEEE

Furniture and fixtures X & K&

Office equipment 3 2 = & {4

Computers E fi

Motor vehicles YTE

Leasehold improvements 78 & #) 2 # &

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.4

2.5

128 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Property, plant and equipment continuea)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss
on the date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are available for their intended use.
When the assets concerned are brought into use, the costs
are transferred to items of property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2.7). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Software 10%
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Intangible assets (continueq)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of businesses is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2.7).

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) (see notes 2.8 (i) and (ii)) on the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, term deposits,
trade receivables and other receivables);

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note
2.8); and

- lease receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
listed and unlisted securities, structural deposits, and
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i

130 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, a joint
venture and other non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the investments in subsidiaries, associates and
a joint venture and other non-financial assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or cash-generating units
(“CGUSs"). Goodwill arising from a business combination is
allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.7 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. ERSFHBE»

(i) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associates, a joint (i)
venture and other non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU on a pro

rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial period. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial

year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in the subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the

interim period relates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.8 Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented as a contract

asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.

U

132 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Expected credit losses (“ECLS”)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive). The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

()

Expected credit losses (“ECLS”) (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated (i) through individual
basis with reference to the credit enhancements obtained
or (ii) using a provision matrix based on the aging of
the receivables and the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

(i

134 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the debtor
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is past
due. The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

(i

(i

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2.21(jii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired,
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

in which case interest income is calculated

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

(i

W)

136 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.8 Trade and other receivables (continueq)

(v)  Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under relevant accounting standards,
or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar
transactions such as in the Group’s trading activity.

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other

financial assets

Investments in debt and equity securities and other financial
assets are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the assets or they expire. These
assets are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation
of how the Group determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 3.3. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

(i)  Investments and other financial assets other than equity
investments
Non-equity investments and other financial assets held
by the Group are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the assets are held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the assets is calculated using the
effective interest method (see note 2.21(jii)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other
financial assets (continued)

(i)  Investments and other financial assets other than equity
investments (continued)

138 vSTECS Holdings Limited

fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI") - recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the assets comprise solely payments of
principal and interest and the assets are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the assets are derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

FVPL if the assets do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the assets (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.9 Investments in debt and equity securities and other
financial assets (continued)

(i

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.21(iv).

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with changes therein recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.11 Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the weighted average cost formula.
The cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 2.8.

2.13 Share capital

(@  Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.13 Share capital (continued)

(b)  Repurchase of shares

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

2. ERSFHBE»
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When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased,

the amount of the consideration paid,

which includes

directly attributable costs is recognised as a deduction

from equity. Repurchased shares are
deduction from total equity.

(c)  Deferred and treasury shares reserve
Deferred reserve represented the cost

presented as a

of acquisition of

the Company’s shares through a trust setup specifically
for purpose of employment compensation. The reserve
is credited with the amount of fair value of shares on
granting to awardees, and the relevant employment costs
net of any proceeds from the awarded shares are debited
to the profit or loss. The difference between the fair value

of the awarded shares and their costs
transferred to retained earnings.

of acquisition is

Treasury shares reserve represented the shares purchased

by the Company but yet to be cancelled.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies (ontined 2. EREFHEHE»

2.14Trade and other payables and contract liabilities QUE G REMESREU
RENEE

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value. B REMEMNREERIZRF
Except for financial guarantee liabilities, trade and other ERR - BKREEREBEWN EH
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using N EH A A SRIBEAE T A BB F
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting BEALEEKAGTE BIEMR
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. FEDK AR AT -
A Financial guarantee is contract that require the issuer (i.e. BMERERABEREITA(HER
the guarantor) to make specified payment to reimburse the ANMBEEH LA ZBKRAIAFE
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder ERBERERIEZA(IBFEAL
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when HEBEHE AR B RENK
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial MEXzBRXAFEBAELHE
guarantees issued are initially recognized within “trade and AR -BEEHIBERERE R
other payables” at fair value, which is determined by reference BAFTERIE S R EMERNK
to fees charged in arm’s length transaction for similar services. HIBR EAFEDNZS2BEAER
Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially recognised STREBEURBWER 2 &R
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of BE -VIFERE mVERRE
the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. The EWAzeBIZERFHANER
Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will default on RAEEAEL ZRMEEREIA -
the contract and recognises a provision when ECLs (see notes TEFBEREEEBHAZELNR
2.8 (i) and (i) on the financial guarantees are determined to be B WARREERZBHEES
higher than the amount carried in “trade and other payables” in B(RHWF2.80&(IN)EEAS
respect of the guarantees. RIERZ 85 & HEME R RIE]

TSR ERERE-

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non- EAEEBAMEEWRA &K
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the BEREPINTAIEEZRE
related revenue (see note 2.21). A contract liability would also BT UER(RHFE2.21) c£R
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive SEERBE RSN MAE
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises the HEEGEEMNBERATREZ
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable REFR GHNBETKETUAER-
would also be recognised (see note 2.8). EZEBRAT HESERKIE

i T ARER (LK FE2.8) -
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PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.15Interest-bearing borrowings and other financial

liabilities

Interest-bearing borrowings and other financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequently, these interest-bearing borrowings and
other financial liabilities are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and the
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

2.16 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. ERSFHBE»

216 TBH (&)

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.16 Income tax (continueq)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria
are met.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.17 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

@

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
plans, the assets of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The retirement plans are generally
funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
Group companies. For employees in the PRC, the Group
participates in defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the relevant local governments in the PRC.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.17 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

146 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Employee leave entitiements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement of
financial position date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

Deferred shares

Deferred shares are awarded to employees who meet the
vesting condition (see note 2.13(c)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(i)  Onerous contracts
An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.

2.19 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)
2.19 Leases (continued)

U

148 vsTECS Holdings Limited

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-
lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or
to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.7).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.19 Leases (continued)

()

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual payments that are
due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period.

2. ERSFHBE»

2197 & (&)

()

EREMBA (&)
EREHBNA R IR EE ok
AEERBEHGEERBERG
MBI ze R E
FoREHAHAEERRS
CLBHETHITHEEE -
ERS R IEvBEEF -HE
BEEEHTE-EUREA
AREHA=HEGER 8
HERABEEAENEREDEE
HERAZE X WERAEEE
MEEEEBEDZRES  HEH
BEAIFFABmA o

EHEgBERLEE LA
EEHNRETER T A
EREREZL([HEE
) BEXEAEBMA
EARE-RAZHESES
BETEFFE-EHER
T-HAEEERELEBITZ
HEMNZKEBREHNR  FH
KAEET 2 Bh R BB RT £
HEHE-

FEMBRARAEAN KH
BEMNIMEIEER
BERRT_@AARB
EZzAKNKRE-

m
=h;

%Mmﬁ

NN

o

EHERERERAE —T-maesxn 149



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. ERSFHBE»

2.19 Leases (continued) 219 E (&)
(i)  Asalessor i EALHEA

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease MAEEEREBEA ER
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an HERGKREETSHERSD
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it ABMEHENILKEHE &
HEKBSEBRBEERERESR
BRBE KD R R & D ke
ETERBAARF - HESEE
MmERE-TA HEHE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease. When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an operating RECEHE-WAKEEHEAF
lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from NHBEA - sHDE2ER
the head lease. HEEAMTRAEEEYSE
ARBMEHEAKRERE -

2.20 Segment reporting 2200 F W F
®

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item 2
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the &
N

financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most SEEsEBTHREEBAE M

senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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2. ERETHHE
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2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.21 Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods or the provision of services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued separately under
the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes advantage
of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is 12 months or
less.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 such that information about revenue that
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts for sales of goods
that had an original expected duration of one year or less is not
included.

RASEBREXHKBRETEMIH
ERRBERBE NEBBKEA
DERME-

EERIBRBENEHEEBRER
PR RASEFEHEEERY
AEREBEERRRD T/
KERFE=ZTHEHHIE - Yz
BREERIEMBEENR X E
MR EMEZ M-

MENEBEARTEFPREHEBRB12ME
AMERRENMZ ZREK D
Al SR ERSENRENS
WERETFPETNEBBRER
5P R A AR R AR - R B K
AREBANNELZEB Rt -4
HWeEEshASEREERREF
WZEER D BREZA D RE
RHR=BIEREERMNEBEFE
NANEBBERMELANF BMZ-
AEBEFNBEAYBREELELSF
1555 F63BRMAI{THRE H )& &
BMEBHAI2EASUT  BITE
REARES > NEIRAFZERAERE
RE-

AEBCERET BV G REER
FIGHEI21RNATRE T A
WY ERIAEEERTRE
HHPRR - FAATHHEER
EHETHHRTENEERSA
R AW RN EH -

EHExERERaE —T-maesi 151



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.21 Revenue and other income (continuea)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

M

(i

)

152 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Service fees
Revenue from service maintenance contracts are
recognised over the period of the contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).

2.23 Related parties

@

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

2. Material Accounting Policies continueq)

2.23 Related parties (continued)

(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) ~ The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and the assets
and liabilities are mainly denominated in the functional
currency of group entity to which relate, including Chinese
Renminbi (‘RMB”), the Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$"), the
Singapore Dollar (“S$”), Thai Baht (“THB”), Philippine
Pesos (“PHP”) and Indonesian Rupiah (‘RP”).

The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk at the
end of reporting period is mainly arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in the United States
Dollar (“US$"), a currency other than the Group’s entities’
functional currencies, as disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements.

A 5% strengthening/weakening of the US$ against the
respective functional currencies of the Group’s entities
(except for HK$ which is pegged to US$) at 31 December
2024 would have decreased/increased the post-tax profit
and retained earnings of the Group by HK$49,837,000
(2023: HK$56,431,000). This analysis assumes that
all other variables,
constant. The analysis has been performed on the same
basis as for the year ended 31 December 2023.

in particular interest rates, remain
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

(b)

156 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its bank borrowings, which are
subject to floating interest rate. Details of bank borrowings
Borrowings carried at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.

have been disclosed in note 21.

At 31 December 2024, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit and retained earnings for the year would have been
HK$79,125,000 (2023: HK$67,766,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate bank borrowings.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables, term
deposits and cash and cash equivalents included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets. The exposures to these credit risks
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis by established
credit policies and procedures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq)

©)

Credit risk (continued)

Term deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
mainly deposited in various financial institutions, which
management believes are of high quality. Management
does not expect any loss from non-performance by these
counterparties.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. The Group has put in place policies to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
(i) individually after taking into account of the credit
enhancement or (i) using a provision matrix. The forms
of credit insurance are considered integral part of trade
receivables and considered in the calculation of ECLs.
At 31 December 2024, the Group’s trade receivables
amounting to HK$407,148,000 (2023: HK$379,785,000)
are covered by forms of credit insurance. These
receivables with credit enhancements are assessed
individually and no ECLs (2023: Nil) has been provided as
at 31 December 2024. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience indicates significantly different loss patterns in
different geographical locations, the loss allowance based
on past due status is further distinguished by geographical
locations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. BKEBREERATE

(continued) (#)

31 B EREE &)

© FEERR#)
TREARBFHEAKENRE S
F& WK IR P T R S B R &%
BHEEERNER (B9E

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

() Credit risk (continued)
The following tables provide information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables
collectively based on provision matrix:

158 VSTECS Holdings Limited

)
2024
—EF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate % amount allowance
BHEBLEZEY% BREZA%E EiEEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT
North Asia b
Current (not past due) BNER (RmH) * 10,339,980 -
1-90 days past due #EI1 Z£90H 0.52% 1,014,999 5,279
More than 90 days past due  # 3% 790H 73.26% 855,167 626,456
12,210,146 631,735
Southeast Asia RED
Current (not past due) BIER (R H8) * 3,631,194 92
1-90 days past due #E1 290H 0.32% 1,687,371 5,479
More than 90 days past due  #1E3% 7A90H 38.51% 280,733 108,109
5,599,298 113,680
Total B 17,809,444 745,415

*

expected loss rate is immaterial
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() Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

3. MKEBREERAFE

(%)

31 B EREE &)

SERKR (&)

2023
—T=F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate % amount allowance
THE BB E% Rz EBEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
North Asia b
Current (not past due) BIER (K@ H) * 9,711,729 -
1-90 days past due #HI1E90H 0.13% 945,176 1,236
More than 90 days past due %18 % 700 H 72.61% 845,415 613,814
11,502,320 615,050
Southeast Asia RED:
Current (not past due) BIER (R E) * 2,166,424 66
1-90 days past due # A =00H 0.16% 1,138,656 1,855
More than 90 days past due %1 H3% 790H 53.93% 163,552 88,199
3,468,632 90,120
Total R 14,970,952 705,170
* expected loss rate is immaterial * TE Bt b E )

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic

conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

EHERLLENRBEFE
MERBEELRRE-ZE
Lo T AT R DA R B U &
FEE S2 BUiE B R A0 ACOB AR O
B AT AR A Je AN 55 [ 4 R IR
RIEMBEH A A FRREL
BRRZBENER -

muExRRERas —=-msem 159



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

©)

160 vSTECS Holdings Limited

BHRREERATVE

(%)

E!ﬂ%@tffﬁ;%(g)

Credit risk (continued) © 1EERR#)
Movements of the loss allowance for trade receivables are EoRWRBEEEREBEZE
as follows: ;T
2024 2023
—E-EF —ET-=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
At 1 January m—HA—H 705,170 770,181
Amounts written off B HiE e R (30,707) (64,921)
Provision recognised during the year RFERNEREEE 79,040 17,926
Acquisition of a subsidiary W g — M B AR 5,737
Exchange difference PEH Z&E (13,825) (18,016)
At 31 December BR+—A=+—8” 745,415 705,170

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping
credit lines available.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn facilities and
cash and cash equivalents, on the basis of expected
cash flows. The table below analyses the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity
date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. BKEBREERATE

(continued) (#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq) 3.1 BIREKEE &)
(d)  Liquidity risk continued) o mEERBR ()
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRBBRERL
Less than 1

oron Between Between After
Total demand year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
A% -ERIRER -ECf —ELf BELF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FET T T

At31December2024 ~ WZE-MF+=F=+-A
Borrowings L 9,522,967 8,031,043 - 1,491,924 -
Lease liabiliies MEAE 460,749 169,460 132,155 153,164 5,970
Trade and other payables ~ E 5 R E M 7 18,477,286 18,477,286 - - -
Other financial liabilities HitspaE 655,344 655,344 - - -

At31December2023 ~ W=E-=F+-fA=+-H
Borrowings BE 8,472,954 8,472,954 - - -
Lease liabilities HE&E 360,271 139,437 83,603 131,834 5,397
Trade and other payables 25 X £t ER FB 16,962,819 16,962,819 - - -
Other financial liabilities EeRaE 668,628 668,628 - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. BKEBREERATE

(continued) (#)

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEBER

162 vSTECS Holdings Limited

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/total
assets ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
assets. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings excluding
lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31
December 2024

AEBEEREAZBNRERAK
SEBERNIFEZE UAKRRE
A EE O RN RS R Rl
s ARBERREELARBIUR
EERKA -

RERBIHBREARE A&HE
FEHERNTRRZRESEHR
AR EEE AR BHITH R K
EERIE-

AEERERFHE MBEELX
ERER - Z L TREHFER
NREEE - BB FRZEE
E(reREgEag)RRe kB

FTERARARER =% =
ToAST-BZAREHE:

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

—EOF =

+=ZB=+—-H +=-—A=+—8H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHBT FHT

Total borrowings (Note 21) BIEE (Mi21) 9,244,032 8,103,976
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 13) B IRE RIRITRER (HiF13) (3,947,768) (3,325,140)
Net debt Bi% 55 5,296,264 4,778,836
Total assets BEE 38,387,953 35,020,347
Net debt/total assets ratio B R EEL R 0.14 0.14
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

M

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value at the
statement of financial position date on a recurring basis
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement’. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only
Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets and liabilities at
the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data is not
available

° Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using
significant unobservable inputs
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

BHRREERATVE

(%)

3.3 D EMGE (&)

()

ARFEFEZEHIEA

(%)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-EBR BE_EBR EZBR k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEHL FEHL FEHL FEL
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-MF
T=A=t-~H
Assets gE
Listed and unlisted securities £ & 3F E &% 192,240 - 593,046 785,286
Other financial assets HpemEE - 7,695 - 7,695
Derivative financial assets TESBEE - 4,902 - 4,902
At 31 December 2023 R-ZE-=#
t=ZA=+—-8H
Assets gE
Listed and unlisted securiies 777 &% 3F L &5 181,956 - 580,892 762,848
Other financial assets HipemEE - 8,715 - 8,715
Liabilities =AE
Derivative financial liabilties ~ $T£ & R A & - (12,815) - (12,815)

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
there were no transfers between the levels of fair value
hierarchy.

(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value

measurements

The fair value of forward contracts in Level 2 is determined
by discounting the contractual forward price and
deducting the current spot rate. The discount rate used
is derived from the relevant government yield curve as at
the end of the reporting period plus an adequate constant
credit spread.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq)

(i)

(iii)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements (continued)

The fair value of other financial assets is the estimated
amount that the Group would realise, taking into
account the interest rates and credit worthiness of the
counterparties.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Approximate 60% (2023: 65%) of the Group’s unlisted
securities are related to healthcare sector. The rest are
related to various sectors including telecommunication
and e-commerce, etc. No dividend were received on
those investments during the year (2023: nil).

The fair value of these unlisted securities are determined
using adjusted net asset value. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the underlying
assets’ values. As at 31 December 2024, it is estimated
that with other variables held constant an increase/
(decrease) in 5% of underlying assets’ values would
have increased/(decreased) the Group’s post-tax
profit and retained earnings by HK$29,652,000 (2023:
HK$29,045,000).

3.

BHRREERATVE

(%)

3.3 D EMGE (&)

(i

(iif)

BHERERARLT

F_EBRAFEFERH
ZEERM LB ABUR (2)
HheREEZRAFER
AEBEAER G EE
W ERHEFHZHERAE
Ao

EHE=ERATEIE

Z &R
NEBMIFLETBHHG60%
(ZE-_=Z%F:65%) &

BERIEXERB EHRESRE
EAMETEBEIRTE
HE-REALER U FR
BERBRE (ZE-_=F:

T)-

ZEFRLITTEFHRAFEE
REAKAEEEFEET -
AFENEEEHEEEE
EEEEEH R_Z=
F+-_A=+—HB
BEREBTE FEEE
EEEEMN (HDP)5%
5 BN 5 E R FR 1R R T
KRBAEFG M Cfd)
29,652,000 L (=& ==
129,045,000 7T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. BKEBREERATE

(continued) (#)
3.3 Fair value estimation (ontinueo) 3.3 A EEMEF (&)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements iy BEAF=ZEBHRAFE=
(continued) ZER (%)
The movements during the year in the balance of these FA-FZEHLATEFE
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: wEHEEHMT
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FHET
Unlisted securities: FEMES:
At 1 January mn—H—H 580,892 627,222
Additions NE 42,281 10,250
Realisations #HIR (1,016) (26,907)
Net loss recognised in profit or loss FRRERER
during the year FEE (23,176) (28,750)
Exchange difference PE 5 =% (5,935) (9293)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 593,046 580,892
Net loss arising from the remeasurement of the Group’s B EASEHIELTES
unlisted securities are presented in the “Other gains, net” EEZFEERKEEZR
line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. (B A FREIEHEZ5 -
(iv)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other v) MAEAFEVEEREZE/E
than fair value ENBEZATE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets 2 BN 3l B S B AR B BR B9 R
and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost were SEcREERABENR
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 HE B_ZTZ-_NFER=-%
December 2024 and 2023. —=F+ZA=Z+—A8MA2
FEITESERER-
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

3. MKEBREERAFE

(%)

34 RHWEMEERTAA

To manage its working capital, the Group pledged certain of

its term deposits and structured deposits (collectively “Pledged
Assets”) to banks for issuance of letter of credits and bank
acceptance bills (collectively “Secured Obligations”). The
respective Pledged Assets and Secured Obligations have the
same maturity date with maturity period not more than 1 year,

and some of which meet the criteria for offsetting under the

prevailing accounting standards such that they are offset in the

consolidated statement of financial position. The table below
analyses the Pledged Assets and Secured Obligations as at 31

December 2024

At 31 December 2024

&

ABEBHEEEES AEERKHE
ETEHERREBETR (&
BIEEBEE] KB TR
NEEERBEREBITALEZE (5
BIEEMAER]) -BBECER
EEREEREKEEHERANE
HE ZHBARTBBEIF  EF
BHEFERTEER B E
B BERGETBRRER TN
i - TRHE T _MF+= A
—t+—BHNEEHREERBHER
BEIVEL 2 -

RZE_WmE+=-A=+—H

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount

BE HHSEE FH

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FiExT FiET FET

Pledged Assets EEREE 8,937,326 8,279,459 657,867

Secured Obligations BHRHEL (8,934,803) (8,279,459) (655,344)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZZE—_=F+-_A=+—H

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount

BE HiHE FEE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FET FET

Pledged Assets EEREE 11,808,067 11,189,521 618,546

Secured Obligations BEHEMES (11,845,334) (11,189,521) (655,813)

The Group included the net amount of Pledged Assets in
“other financial assets” and net amount of Secured Obligations

in “other financial liabilities” in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

AEBESEEREEZ FETA
RAMBHRARAR HtbemREE]
W RE BERIREE 2 FET
ATEMERAEE] A-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

4. Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@)

168 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Estimated write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-down
of inventories is recorded to the extent where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.

The identification of write-down requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and write-down of inventories in the period in
which such estimate are changed.

Estimated loss allowance of trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowance of trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss of trade
receivables.

The measurement of loss allowance of trade receivables requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and the expected credit
loss in the period in which such estimates are changed.

Annual Report 2024
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

Property, Plant and Equipment 5. MI¥ - -HWERRZRE

Buildings
Leasehold  held for own Assets
properties and use carried Furniture and Office Motor under Right of
improvements at cost fixtures equipment Computers  vehicles construction use assets Total

RENE  BAFIIEN

REE BEERRT BARKE BOERE Bl nE EREE GRERE 3
HK$'000 HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
TiER TR TEr  TET  TEr  TEx T TRT  TEx

Year ended 31 December 2023 ~ HE-T-=F+-A=+-H

IFE
Opening net book amount FNEAFE 4,845 673,282 25,507 6,286 27,425 1,99 64 178,118 917,523
Additions RE 3522 491 4,538 2915 7,090 3820 16,446 104,415 143,237
Transfer @ - (295,393) 333 - - - 295,060 - -
Disposals and derecognition HERREER - (1,589) ©) (467) 82) - - (22439 (24589
Depreciation it (2,208) (20,290) (10,349 (2,787) (10,810) 871) - (66,815)  (114,130)
Exchenge difference ExzE 6] (18,774) ) @) (191) 8 741 (1189 (12630)
Closing net book amount FREDFHE 6,153 337,727 20,115 5,906 23432 4,953 319,041 192,090 909,417
As at 31 December 2023 W=ZF==%+-F=1-H
Cost A 15,214 446,099 60,119 13,831 59,487 14,807 319,041 320,262 1,248,860
Accumulated depreciation 2T ©061) (108372 (40004 (925 (36055  (9,854) - (128172 (339449
Net book amount FEFE 6,153 337,721 20,115 5,906 23,432 4,953 319,041 192,090 909,417
Year ended 31 December 2024 ~ HE-T-EE+=A=+-H
IFE
Opening net book amount FOEAFE 6,153 337,727 20,115 5,906 23,432 4,953 319,041 192,090 909,417
Additions RE 5,215 - 5,180 2,325 11,435 19,050 87,940 66,803 197,948
Transfer o - 403,153 5,163 12 2,739 - (411,043) - -
Disposals and derecognition HEREIERER - - (35) (1) (2,797) (943) - (15,730) (19,506
Depreciation & (2,540) (16,030) 0042 (@841)  (14331)  (3035) - 8Ty (11753
Acquisiion of a subsidiary WE-EHEAT 1,454 - 934 2424 7,393 1,933 - w5 28913
Exchenge difference EXZE (353) (17477) (828) (191) (955) (625) 4125 (4925  (21,229)
Closing net book amount FREDFE 9,929 707,373 21,487 6,610 26,916 21,333 63 184,300 978,011
As at 31 December 2024 KZZ-ME+-R=+-H
Cost KA 17,565 829,416 68,709 17,380 52,306 33,458 63 334,352 1,353,249
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (7636) (122043 @47,229)  (10770)  (25390)  (12125) - (150052  (375.239)
Net book amount FHFE 9,929 707,373 21,487 6,610 26,916 21,333 63 184,300 978,011
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

H = 5] 2 .
5. Property, Plant and Equipment continued 5. MI¥ -BERRZRE =
The analysis of the net book value of leased assets by class of EHBEERNPENEEEEMIR
underlying asset is as follows. All of the leased assets are carried at HFEI>MOT -FBHEEESKT
depreciated cost. EXARFGER -
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
e S 1123 ZEZ=F
+=ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FET FHET
Buildings held for own use FIEE AMESF () 707,373 337,727
Leasehold properties for own use FIEERNEEDE (ii) 182,793 191,516
Plant, machinery and equipment LE R YN (i) 1,507 574
891,673 529,817
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit HRETPREIANEEEENERE
or loss is as follows: BEafTaT:
2024 2023
—ETomEF ZEZ=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Depreciation charge of buildings held for own use #{EEBMEFHITEE A 16,030 20,290
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: FRAEEENTEER:
Leasehold properties for own use BIEERMBEEDE 68,432 66,653
Plant, machinery and equipment ERE T Y & 281 162
84,743 87,105
Interest on lease liabilities (note 25) HEBEF S (Hites5) 8,528 2,803
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

Property, Plant and Equipment continueq

During the year ended 31 December 2024, additions to right-of-use
assets were HK$66,803,000 (2023: HK$104,415,000). This amount
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments payable under
renewal or new tenancy agreements.

Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 20.
Cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31 December 2024 are
related to lease rentals paid which are within financing cash flows as
set out in note 30(b).

)

(i

)

Buildings held for own use

The Group leases several buildings for a period of 30 to 50
years. None of the leases include variable lease payments.

Leasehold properties for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as
its premises and warehouses through tenancy agreements.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three
years. Some leases include an option to renew when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

Other leases

The Group leases office equipment under leases expiring from
one to twelve years. Some leases include an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.

Sub-leases as a lessor

The Group sub-leased certain leasehold properties for
2-4 years during the year ended 31 December 2024 and
classified these sub-leases as finance leases as these
sub-leases are for the whole of the remaining term of the
head-leases. The undiscounted annual lease payments
ranges from HK$3,501,000 to HK$110,900,000 (2023:
HK$20,858,000 to HK$71,916,000) each year during the
sub-lease period. The total discounted lease receivables
amounted to HK$292,487,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
HK$190,507,000).

ME- -BERSZE®

HE-_Z-_M&+-_A=+—HItHF
£ (£ A # & E ¥ N66,803,000/8 T
T - =4 :104,415,000/8 7T) ° %
CHIZHBBREA T HEHRE
NHERECHEENRER-

HEAENIBALSMARBHIRK
20 - BEZE_-_MEF+=-_A=+—
BHtFE HENBESREEHET AR
ERenEmENHEREER  HE
FI R M FE30(b) o

(i) HFEBRHNEF

AREFEHEETEF HEHA
30E50F I ERERFEAEMA
SRR

m)%ﬁéﬁm$%%¥
7% [ B A B T O 1 3 15 45
E@%%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%%&f?
B R o TR B — AR ) R H —
FEZF - HNBEOEESH
5370 BT B AR B T AR 1R
HoHEAEOETRRENK.

(i) EMiE &
FEERBAEAERATHE -
EHA—E+-F-BHMHE
%E@ﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁ%éﬁﬂm
BMEEE - BERERETE

MEMK-
(ivy 2 (EAEHBEAN)
FERABE-_T-mE+ =8

T+ BLEERYEAETHE
ME_ZNF UEZE>ED
HAMEME HIBHRZED
Mo ABTHER &% FHEEY
MeAxBBEFERENTA LA
HEEFNF3,501,0008 T2
110,900,000 T (ZZE = =F:
20,858,000 ;L £71,916,000/8
) RZEZEF+ZA=+—
CEMRENHEERELAE A
292,487,000@75(_?_*@
190,507,000/ 7T ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

. / ~,
6. Intangible assets 6. BEEE
Goodwill Software Total
fEES g4 st
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FET
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-_Z_=F
+-B=+—8
IEFE
Opening net book amount FYRMEFRE 330,952 25,085 356,037
Amortisation 55 - (3,919) (3,919
Exchange difference VEH Z&E 3,143 611) 2,532
Closing net book amount FRIREFRE 334,095 20,555 354,650
As at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F
+-A=+—H
Net book amount BREFRE 334,095 20,555 354,650
Year ended 31 December 2024 BZE-Z_IF
+T=ZA=+—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FHREDFEE 334,095 20,555 354,650
Addition wNE - 3,031 3,031
Amortisation e - (3,545) (3,545)
Exchange difference ERER (7,687) (490) (8,177)
Closing net book amount FRIREFEE 326,408 19,551 345,959
As at 31 December 2024 R-ZE-MF
+T=A=+—8H
Net book amount BREFER 326,408 19,551 345,959
The amortisation charge of software for the year is included in FRABGHEHEBEBARATARGKEERR
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. ZITBHAZA-
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6.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

Intangible assets (ontinueq

The recoverable amount of each group of cash generating units
(“CGUs") to which goodwill is allocated is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. Cash flow projections for the purpose of the
impairment review are based on budgets prepared on the basis of
assumptions reflective of the prevailing market conditions. Similar key
assumptions are used for value-in-use calculation for each group of
CGUs which include:

(@)  Cash flows are projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rates included in the
cash flow projections is 0% (2023: 0%).

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate as at 31 December 2024 of 9.2% (2023:
10.3%) was applied in determining the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs. The discount rate used reflect the risk-free rate and
the premium for specific risks relating to the business units to
which the CGUs relate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes
in the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount of
goodwill.

BEEE»

EokmBEc8MReELEM ([R
TEAEMDz2AKRE S RIZERE

B EZET - RRERMNETZRES
REBATDRERRBRER TR 2K

BREZBEET -SEARSELEN
HEEREERAZEUIZ2RRE
&

(a) BERERBEERL:
FEBEIEA -

BEBENMEA

by BENRREMETEN 2 78K
HEREREOR (ZEZ=F:
0% ) °

(c) RZZTE-—_mF+=-—_A=+—HZ
MBI R B9 2% (T - =
F£:10.3%) EHAREEREE
=R VA N E R R )
ERMEBERBRANERRSE
EBAHBEREN 2 ERR

W

BERTERRERZEEBEREERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries

7. RBARIZKRE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 are RZEZNF+_A=+—HZXEZE
as follows: WBAR ZHBOT :
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
ML FEERBAL
A1 B2 TEEBREE Y BRTRE/EMERFE B %
(ht)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding in the British 4 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% -
Islands Virgin Islands
VST Group Limited EBRAER NEBRHBNEREAER  RERAEBIETIEAK 100% -
Shenzhen VST Grand Electronic Co.,,  PRC Distribution of IT products in the RMB100,000,000 100% -
Ltd. PRC
FNBEEEEFHERAA i R E D HE AR RER AR #100,000,0007 100% -
VSTECS (HK) Limited Hong Kong Distribution of IT products in Hong 2 ordinary shares - 100%
Kong
BEER(BE)ERAA & REBDHEAMEER MR E B - 100%
62,000,000 non-voting deferred
shares
62,000,000 & REET K7
Chong Qing VST Grand Technology ~ PRC Distribution of IT products in the US$20,000,000 - 100%
Development Co., Ltd PRC
ERBARANRERERLA el RPESHEAREER 20,000,000% T - 100%
ECS Technology (China) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, provider of 11,500,000 ordinary shares - 100%
IT products and services for IT
infrastructure in Hong Kong
EARB (PE)BERAF B MNEBREREERARERAM  11,500,0000 @R - 100%
REmREMR AR R R
BHES
ECS Technology (HK) Co., Limited Hong Kong Provision of IT products and 10 ordinary shares - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in
Hong Kong
BRAEARMBERRAA & REBRMEANMBERREN 10REBR - 100%
RHCERER e R

174 vsTECS Holdings Limited
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Investments in Subsidiaries continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

7. RHBLRRAZRE =)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 are RZEZMNF+_A=+—HZXZ
as follows: (continued) WEAR 2FBWOT : (&)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/  Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment  place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
kL FEEREAL
B B2 TREBREEHH BORAE/EAMERFEE EE &
(h3t)
ECS Computers (HK) Limited Hong Kong Provision of IT products and 1 ordinary share - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in
Hong Kong
EAEK (BE)BRA B REBRBEANMRERRER 1REBR - 100%
RHR AR R R
VSTECS (Chongging) Technology Co, PRC Electronic settlement business US$130,000,000 - 100%
Ltd centre and provider of IT
products and services of IT
infrastructure in PRC
BEER(EE)MEERAF i HEBTHEERKTOREAR  130,000,000% 7T - 100%
RERREMBRERSRER
BHERS
VSTECS (Shanghai) Technology Co.,  PRC Provision of IT products and RMB174,380,000 - 100%
Ltd services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
FRECEAMBEERA il RPEREEAMBERRER  ARK174,380,0007 - 100%
RHERER e R
ECS China Technology (Shanghai) Co., PRC Provision of IT products and RMB124,151,500 - 100%
Ltd services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
EARE (LB BERAR el RPEREEAMBERRER AR%K124,151,500C - 100%
R AT R R
ECS Technology (Guangzhou) PRC Provision of IT products and RMB82,786,600 - 100%
Company Limited services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
BMEAMEERAF H NP EREEAMBRERRER  ARHS82,786,6007T - 100%
RHCERER R
muexnpraman —z-msgg 175



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries ontineq 7. ARMBEARIZRE =
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 are RZTE-ZMNEFF+—_A=+—HzZEZE
as follows: (continued) MEBARZFHBHET: (&)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/  Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment  place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
HMMAL FEEREAL
B B2 TEXBREE Y BRTRAE/EMERFE EE &
(h3t)
ECS Chongging Chuangying PRC Provision of IT products and RMB300,000,000 - 100%
Technology Co., Ltd services for IT infrastructure in
the PRC
BREAERNEERAT w RPEREEANEERREN  AKRHK300,000,0007T - 100%
RIERR R
VES Supply Chains (Chong Qing) PRC Provision of supply chains RMB30,000,000 - 100%
Management Co., Ltd management and warehouse
transport services in PRC
EREARHEREEERAA HE WP ERAHEEER BFE  ARM30,0000007T - 100%
BERS
R TERBEREERAF PRC Project holding in the PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100%
R TERBEREBRAF el RPERSEERE AE#3,000,0007C - 100%
VSTECS Holdings (Singapore) Limited ~ Singapore Investment holding and 446,036,800 ordinary shares 100% -

distribution of IT products,
provision of IT services and
enterprise systems in Singapore

VSTECS Holdings (Singapore) Limited ~ #7 n3 RETIMRAEEREZR 78 446,036,800k L iE & 100% -
MBHRE R REEARER
BROERS

VSTECS (Singapore) Pte. Ltd Singapore Provision of IT products and 13,600,000 ordinary shares of S$1 - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in each
Singapore

VSTECS (Singapore) Pte. Ltd I RIS REEANBERLE  13,600,0000 &R EE1H N T2 - 100%
AMRHREE R i AR T ERR

Exeed Pte Ltd Singapore Distribution of IT products and 5,000,000 ordinary shares of S$1 - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in each
Singapore

Exeed Pte Ltd HOE REIE D HEARBERERRYE 5,000,000 &R EE 13 IR T2 - 100%
ZEMBRAWFERS il
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

Investments in Subsidiaries continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 are

as follows: (continued)

=
=

MEBAEZF B

T FEF =
W (&)

BARZKRE »

A=+—Bzx2

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/  Principal activities and Particulars of issued interest held
Name establishment  place of operations share capital/registered capital Directly  Indirectly
(Note)
kL FEEREAL
B Rt B TREBREEHH BRITRA/SMERFEE EE i
(Hizt)
VSTECS (Indo) Pte. Ltd Singapore Distribution of IT products in 2,000,000 ordinary shares of S$1 - 100%
Singapore each and 24,785 ordinary shares
of US$1.8156 each
VSTECS (Indo) Pte. Ltd I RETME D HEANEER 2,000,000 & FREE 137 ANIR T 2 - 100%
LRk ) 24,785 SR E(E1.8156
EnZERK
ECS Infocom (Phils) Pte. Ltd Singapore Investment holding in Singapore 2 ordinary shares of S$1 each - 100%
ECS Infocom (Phils) Pte. Ltd HINR RTINSk B R 2R BREE LT BRR - 100%
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distribution of IT products in 100,000 ordinary shares of US$1 - 100%
Indonesia each and 5,000,000 ordinary
shares of Rp13,000 each
PT ECS Indo Jaya e REEAHEABEER 100,000/ @R EE1E T2 TRk - 100%
15,000,000 & F [ {E113,000E0
ez ERk
VST ECS (Thailand) Co., Ltd Thailand Provision of IT products and 21,500,000 shares of 10 Baht each - 100%
services for IT infrastructure in
Thailand
VST ECS (Thailand) Co., Ltd RE RREREEMNFERRER 21,500,000 FREE10RK 2 - 100%
RHR AR R R &1n
VSTECS (Myanmar) Co., Ltd Myanmar Provision of marketing research 300,000 shares of US$1 each - 100%
and IT services in Myanmar
VSTECS (Myanmar) Co., Ltd e REERETSEEMAREN  300,000REBREEIETL KA - 100%
R
VSTECS Phils. Inc. Philippines Distribution of IT products 7,012,496 ordinary shares of Peso - 51%
100 each
VSTECS Phils. Inc. FRE HEERBEER 7,012,496 B REEI00HR 2 - 51%
gl
TREAZEYEREER China Provision of cloud services inthe  RMB3,000,000 - 100%
PRC
EREAZEHBEMRER I W R E RS A #3,000,0007T - 100%
Note: Biat

All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established
in the PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

BN BERSZZME AR RINEBEEREN
EMBAREREREMERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

8. Interests in Associates 8. MEtZENTIHES
2024 2023
—ZT-F ZTEZ=F
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHBT FHET
Unlisted LT
Share of net assets PIEFEE 168,629 334,752
Loan to an associate BT EARIMER - 3,516
168,629 338,268
Listed outside Hong Kong REBUIMbE EH
Share of net assets DIFEEE 434,568 385,238
603,197 723,506
Market value of listed shares EHERHOTE 1,145,210 358,533
The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and was unsecured, BRYBE RN NERLNETTE T A
interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year. EEA - 2BERBEBHTER -—FAK
@ °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

Interests in Associates (ontinueq)

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2024 are as follows:

8. REBEELNTNER »

jiN

\

N
/1N
AN

TEWNFEF+ A=+ —BHZHE
AFEDT

Country of
incorporation/
Name establishment Principal activities Particulars of issued shares  Equity interest held by the Group
g HMRY/ RIBR FEEK BRTRMFEE AEEE 2 RHE
2024 2023
—EZME —T-=F
VSTECS Phils. Inc. Philippines Distribution of IT products 3,097,055 ordinary shares of - 49.99%
Peso 100 each
VSTECS Phils. Inc. FRE NHEARRER 3,097,055 SR EE - 49.99%
100 R 2 E ik
VSTECS Berhad Malaysia Provision of information 357,001,400 ordinary shares 45.63% 44.81%
technology and services of RM0.5 each
for IT infrastructure
in Malaysia
VSTECS Berhad ERAR AERETEMBEER 357,001,400 BREE 45.63% 44.81%
REB AR KRB 05 E 2 EEK
vServePlus Co., Ltd. Thailand IT services 196,000 shares of 49% 49%
100 Baht each
vServePlus Co., Ltd. g BB RS 196,000/ & R E & 49% 49%
1005 2 k15
APAL Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Aviation leasing 1,0566,000,000 ordinary shares 28.41% 28.41%
of US$0.1 each
APALFE R AR A A HERS REgEE 1,056,000,000/% & iR E & 28.41% 28.41%

01X EBK

BHERERARLT
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

8. Interests in Associates conined) 8. MEIEATINER »)
None of the associates were considered individually material to MaEmg A B mswRAsAHASE
the Group. The aggregate carrying amount of associates in the BEBEKN - ZFine MWk ATE
consolidated financial statements is disclosed above. Aggregate AR ZRE® éé EREXHE - AE
financial information (the Group’s share) of these associates is as EoEazEHeE 285K ER
follows: PURNE

2024 2023

—ENE —F-=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Profit from operations el 60,741 75,028

Other comprehensive income Hip 2wk A 3,346 (10,647)

Total comprehensive income 2HEIWALLEE 64,087 64,381

9. Interest in a Joint Venture 9. REELXENER

2024 2023

—EImE =%

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Share of net assets DIEFEE - -
Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2024 are as follows: RZEZNF+ZA=+—Hz&E%

CEBEDT

Country of Particulars of registered
Name establishment Principal activities and paid-in capital Equity interest held by the Group
£ A TEEH AMRELERFE AEBEFE R
2024 2023
13 —TC=F
Bozhou Botong Information  PRC Research and development, RMB155,000,000 38.03% 38.03%
Technology Co., Ltd production and sale of
smartphones and computer
peripheral product
EMHEBESE s HE EERHESH AR #155,000,0007C 38.03% 38.03%
BRAR FRATKABRER
Group’s share of its joint venture was included in the consolidated AEBEREGECEZRMGMHED T
statement of profit or loss. ANFEEmx-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

. v =h
10. Trade and Other Receivables 10. EZ R HMEWRIEA
2024 2023
—E-MEF =
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables, net 2 5 EWGRIEFEE 17,471,177 14,645,567
Other receivables and prepayments H b JE YR IE R TR 5RIE 2,182,642 2,166,332
Deferred expenses EIEF S 17,056 12,822
19,670,875 16,824,721
Less: Non-current B IETRE (190,722) (1,557)
19,480,153 16,823,164
The Group grants credit periods to third party customers ranging AEBBRTFTE-ZAFBFPZEEHNT7
from 7 to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers 1500 MEETRFPZEEHIRT
depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the BERAEEB I RHGERNTRLHT
Group. The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date is R-BS9RURBIFHEZEEAHE
as follows: 2R
2024 2023
—ZE-mF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
0 - 30 days 0&30H 8,720,905 6,649,466
31 - 60 days 31£260H 3,742,286 3,703,137
61 — 90 days 61290H 1,424,404 1,528,500
Over 90 days HBiE90H 3,583,582 2,764,464
17,471,177 14,645,567
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

. v} =h -
10. Trade and Other Receivables contie 10. EZ R HMEWRIE @
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables (current) were B RhEMmERFER®TE (BIE)
denominated in the following currencies: T Y& EE
2024 2023
—E_mEF =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HK$ BT 21,242 17,764
RMB AR 12,106,030 12,316,306
uss$ eV 1,233,241 601,588
S$ ¥ T 1,232,172 810,367
THB B/ 2,153,777 1,895,385
PHP FRERR 1,521,174 -
RP HERE 1,212,517 1,181,754
19,480,153 16,823,164
For the year ended 2023, except for the lease receivables of HEZTZ=F KRt AHMEWRKRE
HK$118,591,000 included in other receivables and prepayments MENREBANTEHRHBERA —FHkE 2
which is expected to be recovered more than one year, the trade fE UL f & X 1B 118,591,0008 o &
and other receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as SLEMBERREBEHREN —FRUKED
expense within one year. SERAHL -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

. Other financial assets N EttEemEE
2024 2023
—ZT-F ZTEZ=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
B 5 FHBT FHET
Current TE
Financial assets measured at FVPL B RFEIA S
TECEHEE
— Unlisted investments —JELEWRE 682,461 728,452
— Listed equity securities — FRAES 102,825 34,396
— Other financial assets —HEtemEE 12,597 8,715
797,883 771,563
Financial assets measured at HEEH AT EZ
amortised cost THEE
— Pledged assets —RKREE (i) 657,867 618,546
— Unlisted debt securities —EEMEBHES 0] 38,000 38,000
695,867 656,546
1,493,750 1,428,109
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

11. Other financial assets (continued) 11. Ef&ﬁ ﬁ"ﬂﬁg (%)

Notes: Kat -

)  The debt securities of HK$38,000,000 bear interest at 10% per ) 38,000,000/ jt 2 & 1§ & % 1% F F
annum and will be matured in 2025 (2023: The debt securities E10%Er B W N Z T = A F =
of HK$20,000,000 and HK$18,000,000 bear interest at 10% per B (=ZZ = =4 :20,000,000/% 7t &
annum and will be matured in 2024 and 2025 respectively). 18,000,000/ 7T 2 (& 7% 7 % 1% F F &

10%st 8 WA BIR T _WHFE R
TRAFEHE) -

(i) The balance mainly represented terms deposits pledged for iy HBEXERTHER DIERBITRE
issuance of bank acceptance bills (note 3.4). AR ER 2B (H5E38.4) °

The carrying amounts of other financial assets were denominated in the EemEE s REMBIUATERE:

following currencies:

2024 2023
—E2TEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

HK$ BT 213,254 175,302

RMB AR 706,909 665,081

uss$ =V 573,587 587,726

1,493,750 1,428,109

. ‘€

12. Inventories 12. BE&
2024 2023
—EDmE ZEZ=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Inventories on hand held for re-sale HERBEFERFE 9,692,823 10,286,085
Inventories-in-transit BERTE 1,496,677 1,022,590
11,189,500 11,308,675

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is
shown in note 24.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

13. Cash and Bank Balances 13. BERBITEER

2024 2023
—ZT-F ZTEZ=F
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHBT FET
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHEBAS 3,705,368 3,037,906
Deposits with banks IRITTER 242,400 287,234
Cash and bank balances in the consolidated 4R& BI#EikiR XA 2
statement of financial position Re RIRITHESR 3,947,768 3,325,140
Less: Restricted bank balances (Note) B XRHIRITAE R (M) (933,090) (676,449)
Cash and cash equivalents in the BERERERRANZ
consolidated cash flow statement HekReEEY 3,014,678 2,648,691

Note: Restricted bank balances are deposits placed in banks to secure
issuance of letter of credits.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances were denominated

REHERBZFR

RRHIRIT R R T RN IRIT A

RehRTHEGREEENR T EE

in the following currencies: B

2024 2023
—EUE —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBT FET
HK$ BT 36,260 20,224
RMB (Note) AR (H:F) 2,855,724 2,581,150
uss$ ETT 252,058 409,577
S$ Frand oo 197,705 118,443
THB B 7S 21,937 75,157
PHP FREER 177,983 -
RP MERE 406,101 120,589
3,947,768 3,325,140

Note: Kiat -

REBAARBAEZRITERLERIF
BAPBEZRIT - HBZEFAAREEZ
BERRIINEREEE L BEAE P EK
Ji3 P AR 2 BRATIME B HIAR Bl R 4R 51 -

The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in RMB are
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds
out of the PRC is subject to prevailing rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the government of the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

14. Share Capital

14, A

2024 2023
—EZME =5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Authorised: VETE
2,000,000,000 (2023: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,0000% (=Z = =4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 2,000,000,0004% ) & I &
0.1BTLZ & imAR 200,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: EBRITLMREETER:
2024 2023
—ECME —ZTC=F
Number of Number of
issued ordinary issued ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.1 each Par value HK$0.1 each Par value
BREEIETZ SRABIELY
EETERREA HE BETEZBRRIA HE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TiEx
At 1 January ®—A—H 1,436,889,998 143,689 1,450,917,998 145,092
Repurchase of own shares (Note (a)  BEEIAF I (M) (438,000) (44) (14,028,000) (1,409)
At 31 December R+ZRA=1+—H 1,436,451,998 143,645 1,436,889,998 143,689
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

14. Share Capltal (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Repurchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

14. R (#)

g

@)

BOAH RN

REBEE_T-_NF+_A=+—H1
FE-AQRARBIAMELREERS R

AT :

Highest price Lowest price Aggregated

No. of shares per share per share price

Month of repurchase repurchased (HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
gKr =Tl

BBE 2 BeER RIEER BERK

BE 2 Af K5 HE (B7T) (B7T) (B7T)

May 2024 ZTZMFERA 438,000 4.85 4.66 2,108,540

July 2024 ZEZNFE+LR 1,882,000 4.28 4.16 7,939,860

October 2024 ZZE-FE+A 1,816,000 5.07 4.48 8,947,160

November 2024 ZENFE+—A 842,000 4.69 4.63 3,927,140

4,978,000 22,922,700

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company

REZE_T_=F+-_A=+—H1L

N

repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: FEARDAREE R EAR SR
T

Highest price Lowest price Aggregated
No. of shares per share per share price
Month of repurchase repurchased (HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
Bz BRESER BREREER HBER
BE 2 A% B EE (&) (#7) (&)
June 2023 —E-=FRA 1,040,000 4.09 3.94 4,160,660
July 2023 —E-=F+A 904,000 3.96 3.85 3,528,720
August 2023 I AY; 1,402,000 4.00 3.87 5,653,400
September 2023 —E-=ZFNA 3,350,000 4.27 4.08 13,976,980
October 2023 2 =F+A 4,408,000 4.20 3.91 17,747,840
November 2023 —E-_=F+—A 1,100,000 3.98 3.79 4,261,560
December 2023 —E-=%+—-AH 1,824,000 3.99 3.68 7,037,160
14,028,000 56,266,320

438,000 repurchased shares (2023: 14,028,000 shares) during the
year ended 31 December 2024, were cancelled and accordingly the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of these shares.

The remaining 4,500,000 shares (2023: Nil) were recognised as
Treasury shares.

BHERERARLT

REBEE-ZZ-_NF+=_RA=+—8H
IEFfE -+ 438,000/ (=2 = = &F:
14,028,000% ) 2 FE Bl fz 15 2 U sH - A
AR AZBEETRAD MBRZER
P2 EE

# 74,500,000 H (ZF = =4F:
)RR BETFA -

— = —

—_=_
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

14. Share Capltal (continued)

()

188 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Deferred shares

The Company acquired, through trusts setup specifically for purpose
of employment compensation, a total of 4,626,000 ordinary shares
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 from
the open market for a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$18,746,000. These shares would be used primarily for providing
employment/executive compensation of the Group. The costs of
acquisition of shares were recognised in the “Deferred reserve and
Treasury shares reserve” in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

Treasury shares

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company acquired
a total of 4,540,000 ordinary shares of the Company from the
open market for a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$20,814,000 as treasury shares. The costs of acquisition of
shares were recognised in the “Deferred reserve and Treasury
shares reserve” in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share
of the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

Annual Report 2024

14. R (#)

b)

EFE AR 7

REZE-_ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H
IEFE - ARARBBENRERMHE
MBZELERAATS LB ASGH
4,626,000k "R A1 LB - HE N E
454 /518,746,000 TT © i% D
BEZANRHAEEZRE1TK
HE - WEROD ZKAREGE Em
B REFEREFRE®] N

7
ot ©

EFR

HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=+—HItF
E-ARRIRARAMSE EWERA A
% #£4,540,0000% L 38 I 1E 5 B 13 % -
B A EEEEY 520,814,000/ 7T ° I
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payments

@

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 17 April
2002 has expired. The Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 23 June 2015 whereby the
Directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion,
to invite employees (including both full time and part time
employees, and Executive Directors), Non-executive Directors,
suppliers, customers and other corporations or individuals that
provide support to the Group (as defined in the new share
option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the new share option
scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company. The subscription price is determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the nominal value of the Company’s ordinary shares;
(i) the closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer; and (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer. The vesting period of
the options from the date of grant is determined by the Directors
and the options are then exercisable within a period of ten years
including the vesting period, if any. Each share option gives
the holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company.

No share options were granted under the New Scheme during
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

15. AR 2 ¥ 2 &K

15
(a)

BHERERARLT

NSNS g ]

ARBIR-_ZEZT_FWA++LA
Kz BREFEBELREM K
NN -_E-—HEXNA-_+=H
Ky —mEam B R E S ([ 35
2 B ARBEBTRRRE
HEBFERE (PEZBREER
BEURNAITES) ENTE
EHEE BEEPEAAASEEREM
TERZEMAASMERNAL(E
ERMEBRERE) BN
NREARB ZBMD - RIEFHE
TSR ZERERS X
ZEEBOHBEETBSBBEARRQR
EBETRAZ10% REEmA
ARIEFCET UHETLRT
Hlz8EmE: (\ARAREEKZ
HEE: (VRB4 B 8B EH
ZEHEBRERMIARREBER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

16. Reserves of the Company 16. R B fRAE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of AEEREEZSERNBIZFNR
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the FREHBZHEINGREAEEZE TR
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in FKoARRAERERAK I D E A KB
the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning TFEZFORFRESG 2F BRI
and the end of the current and prior years are set out below: W
Deferred
Capital reserve and
Share  redemption Capital treasury  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve share reserve losses Total
ELRER
BARE BRELDRE BAE ERREE 2HER ek

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TEL TEL TEL TEL

(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(Hit) (Hit) (Hit) (Hit)

Balance at 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F-R—-RAz&H 884,868 9,132 799 (121,246) (477,827) 295,726
Profit and total comprehensive FREHREERALE

income for the year - - - - 357,746 357,746
Dividend paid BRRE - - - - (246,656) (246,656)
Deferred share purchased BEREELRM - - - (7,895) - (7,895)
Repurchases of own shares BEASH RO

~ Premium paid -BfEE - - - - (54,864) (54,864)

~ Transfer between reserves - FREEEE - 1,403 - - (1,403) -
Balance as at 31 December 2023  M=Z-=%+-A=1+—H

pd 884,868 10,535 799 (129,141) (423,004) 344,057

Balance at 1 January 2024 RZZZWE-F-Bz&H 884,868 10,535 799 (129,141) (423,004) 344,057
Profit and total comprehensive FREARZARALE

income for the year - - - - 30,124 30,124
Dividend paid BfRE - - - - (369,281)  (369,281)
Treasury shares purchased EBEETR - - - (22,923) - (22,923)
Treasury shares cancelled BHEEEFR

~ Premium paid -BEE - - - - (2,068) (2,068)

— Transfer between reserves - FREEEE - 44 - 2,068 (44) 2,068
Deferred shares dividend BEERDRE - - - 11,655 - 11,655
Balance as at 31 December 2024 ~ AMZZZME+=-A=1+—H

ba 884,868 10,579 799 (138341)  (764,273) (6,368)

Note: B it -
See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the BRARBEIHEREN BREAERE
nature and purpose of reserves. WEM T
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17. Trade and Other Payables and Contract

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

17 EFRHEMENFERS

Liabilities FIR=R
2024 2023
—E-MF T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
Trade payables B 5 EN /I8 16,919,993 15,562,115
Other payables and accruals Ho b B A 3R IB K BT RUE 1,557,293 1,400,704
18,477,286 16,962,819
2024 2023
—EEF —T =4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH T
Contract liabilities BHEE 573,466 560,328
Less: non-current portion A FERNERER (2,753) (1,184)
570,713 559,144

(@  The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to
90 days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables by

invoice date is as follows:

(a) AEEZHEBRAAERRHZ
ZE BN FI0E90H B 5 ER
RERBEZAHE D 2 EE®R YN

mE
2024 2023
—EZNE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
0 - 60 days 0Z60H 15,430,751 14,280,324
Over 60 days HBiB60H 1,489,242 1,281,791
16,919,993 15,562,115
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

17. Trade and Other Payables and Contract 17. EGRHEMESRERS
HNEE =

Liabilities (continued)

(o) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables were b) BEZREMEMNFBERBENAT
denominated in the following currencies: P&’ ETE -
2024 2023
—E-EF —E_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HKS BT 20,981 23,826
RMB AR 11,587,695 12,053,345
Uss$ ETT 4,203,906 3,024,227
S$ T 972,261 610,559
THB g7 476,847 479,948
PHP FEREERR 393,920 -
RP U 821,676 770,914
18,477,286 16,962,819
()  Contract liabilities mainly represent prepayments received from c) AHBEBEIZAABEFRPKEN

customers. Balance of HK$559,144,000 as at 1 January 2024
(2023: HK$449,341,000) was fully recognised as revenue during
the year when the customers have taken possession of and
accepted the products.

Contract liabilities of HK$573,466,000 (2023: HK$560,328,000)
were recognised mainly as a result of the prepayment received
from customers during the year ended 31 December 2024
in advance of satisfaction of performance obligation, and
HK$570,713,000 (2023: HK$559,144,000) are expected to be
fully recognised as revenue within one year.
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18.

19.

Other financial liabilities

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

18. Hith &€ mEE

2024 2023
—E-MEF =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Secured obligations (note 3.4) EERES (H513.4) 655,344 655,813
Derivative financial liabilities TTHEemaE - 12,815
655,344 668,628
The carrying amounts of other financial liabilities were denominated in HhemeBBEZREENTI B
the following currencies: =
2024 2023
—E-MMEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
RMB AR 655,344 655,813
Us$ ETT - 12,815
655,344 668,628
. AY
Deferred Taxation 19. IEFERLIE
The movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: BEEHMBEE,/ (BE)FHEZ2EHM
T
2024 2023
—EMEF ZTE=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January Ww—RA—8 114,919 129,728
Credited/(debited) to the consolidated A (0B iR A B= K (M atee)
statement of profit or loss (Note 26) 10,417 (16,058)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — M B R R 4,679 -
Exchange difference EH Z% (1,640) 1,249
At 31 December R+=ZRA=+—8H 128,375 114,919
EHexpRERas —T-mssn 193



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

19. Deferred Taxation (continued) 19. ;E ﬁﬁlﬁ (#&)

194 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

EEHEAERABRENE N2 B

year are as follows: EJR NN
2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=F
Deferred tax assets — Inventories and BELEREEE-FERBEZEWR HK$°000 HK$’000
trade receivables provisions and others ~ FUIEZ R Hith FET FET
At 1 January n—H—H 146,129 166,050
Credited/(debited) to the consolidated A (0B iREEHE R
statement of profit or loss 10,270 (15,815)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — I B 2 ) 4,679 -
Exchange difference fEHZ% (2,185) (4,1086)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 158,893 146,129
2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=F
Deferred tax liabilities - Accelerated tax EEFIEEE - MEFEINE HK$°000 HK$’000
depreciation and others REAM FET FET
At 1 January wW—HA—8 (31,210) (36,322)
Credited/(debited) to the consolidated A (R A EER
statement of profit or loss 147 (243)
Exchange difference fEHZ% 545 5,355
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H (30,518) (31,210)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

20. Lease liabilities

At 31 December 2024, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

20. HEAE

R-ZZ-_WF+-_A=+—H HES&
BREATIREHAEER:

2024 2023
—E-MF —EZ=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 year —FR 157,919 129,375
After 1 year but within 2 years BB —FRELAMRE 124,433 79,264
After 2 years but within 5 years BBMERINAEF 147,076 124,445
More than 5 years ZHREF 5,629 5,305
277,138 209,014

435,057 338,389

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities were denominated in the
following currencies:

HMERBZEEESBRATIEEE:

2024 2023
—E-EF Sl =

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

RMB AR¥E 59,299 92,351
S$ Frandg T 26,995 3,613
THB B 327,052 228,920
PHP ERERR 13,289 -
RP ENEE 8,422 13,505
435,057 338,389
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

21. Borrowings

2024 2023
—E-MF —E=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
BT FET FET
Non-current EFRED
Unsecured bank borrowings MR ITEE (a) 1,380,437 -
1,380,437 -
Current TE
Unsecured bank borrowings EIKFRITEE (a) 7,863,595 8,103,976
7,863,595 8,103,976
Total borrowings wEE (b) 9,244,032 8,103,976
Notes: Kz
(@)  Unsecured bank borrowings (@ EEWRITEE

As at 31 December 2024, unsecured loans were mainly consisted
of HK$489,271,000 (2023: HK$655,995,000) and HK$890,773,000
(2023: HK$497,082,000), which were repayable on 15 July 2027
(2023: 19 July 2024) and 6 August 2027 (2024: 20 September
2024) respectively. The loans were unsecured and bore interest at
rates as disclosed in section (c) below.

(b) The Group’s unsecured bank borrowings were repayable as follows:

R-ZE-_mOME+=—_A=+—H K&
B 9 2 I B 3 E 2 A45489,271,000
BT (- &~ =4 :655,995,000/8 7T )
890,773, oooﬁém(_* =4
497,082,000 L) D RIR =T =+
F(ZEZ=F: _7_@¢tﬂ+n
ARZFE-_+FNAXB(ZZ
FZToMFHAAZ +E|)1a§a°§/<
EERAERFMIE T OFMEEZ
%‘JTD‘I‘/%\O

ARS8 7 4 I AR AT 1 R T 5 AR
3%

2024 2023
—EME —T-=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBx FAT

Within 1 year or on demand —FARIEEK 7,863,595 8,103,976
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF 1,380,437 -
9,244,032 8,103,976
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21. Borrowings (ontinued)

Notes: (continued)

()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

21. 88w

Hiat: (48)

The effective interest rates were as follows: ) EBEREMT:
2024 2023
—EIME —E_=F
Unsecured bank borrowings W|IEHRTTEE 2.50%-9.17% 2.39%-6.70%
The carrying amounts of unsecured bank borrowings were (o) EEFETEEZEDSBUATNIE
denominated in the following currencies: HEEHE
2024 2023
—E-ME —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FHET
HK$ BT 655,000 443,000
RMB AR & 4,319,669 5,036,588
us$ ETT 2,024,886 1,887,309
S$ % T 369,822 149,033
THB B 698,593 524,578
PHP FRERE 1,060,817 -
RP HEe& 115,245 63,468
9,244,032 8,103,976
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

22. Revenue and Segment Information

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent
with the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this
regard, the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs
within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the year is set out below.

(@) Business segments

The business segments of the Group are as follows:

Segments Principal activities

DE FEEK

22. W RO EEHR

DHMEMDERAASEEZ&®ET
BEBABRFGOBRBARR D E
RORERMABER —Bz2T AR -
$%@Z%%Eﬁﬁ%@A§ﬁ%$
2Rt ME AEBEZSETHRER
ABEUTEEERZARE D BE
H2 %8

REDHENABZAETERDH
B BB D MERESZEE
Bl anEE = 5 B - Az 2RED B 2 K H b o B
NITHREM -

FAXREERERDE Mo BRAF
EARAZAISREDRBER SRR T e

okk

(a) ¥ 5B
KEBZEBK LT :

Consumer electronics

Provision of finished IT products (including but not limited to computer, mobile phone,

drone, smart sports watch, 3D printer, game console, etc.).

HEET RHUEBAMZERER (BRETRNENR  F# |EARK D& Tk 304

ENH R ) -

Enterprise systems

Provision of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT servers,

databases and storage) for IT infrastructure and IT infrastructure design and
implementation, training, maintenance and support services.

ERSR EHANBAREEME M ARG TR (PRE BREZRL  Uni/NTIRFGES

BB RET) REMBHRERK

Cloud computing
EHE RETFTEBIRTT MR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

22. Revenue and Segment Information coninueo 22. W R D HBER «)

(@) Business segments (continuea) (a) XKD z)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2024 are HE-_Z-_HHMF+=_RA=+—H
as follows: EFEZDREENT
Consumer Enterprise Cloud
electronics systems computing Total
HEEST TERZ EHE Fok:S]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FTET FET FTERT
Total segment revenue DEW B EE 32,812,964 52,338,202 3,934,422 89,085,588
Segment results DEESE 598,410 962,168 143,422 1,704,000
Fair value changes of other HiheMEEZ
financial assets ANTEES) (4,775)
Finance costs HHER (404,244)
1,294,981
Share of associates’ profits DG E R AR A 60,741
Share of a joint venture's result DEEERERR -
Profit before taxation PR & AR 1,355,722
Taxation Fia (239,556)
Profit for the year F R T 1,116,166
Reportable segment assets AREDLEE 12,086,498 17,695,311 828,478 30,610,287
mutgxERERas —T=-neex 199
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

22. Revenue and Segment Information coninueo 22. W ko HER @)

(@) Business segments (continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2023 are

HE-_Z-_=_F+=-RA=+—H

as follows: IEFEEzHEEEWT
Consumer Enterprise Cloud
electronics systems computing Total
HEET ERL EHE mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
Total segment revenue DE S B R 30,393,688 40,413,612 3,083,996 73,891,296
Segment results DEV R 534,270 820,787 98,031 1,453,088
Fair value changes of other Hith e MEEL
financial assets AFEEE (17,941)
Finance costs HHER (340,054)
1,095,093
Share of associates’ profits DREEE R AR A 75,028
Share of a joint venture’s loss DIEEETEBE (7,918)
Profit before taxation B 250 B A 1,162,203
Taxation I8 (240,170)
Profit for the year F M A 922,033
Reportable segment assets ARENHEE 12,393,665 14,231,631 634,861 27,260,157
Note: Wit

All of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024
and 2023 are recognised in accordance with HKFRS 15 and are
substantially from sale of goods which are recognised at a point in

time.
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22. Revenue and Segment Information continves

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

Reconciliations of reportable segment assets

22. WE R DEBER =

|<

(b) AR EDHEENH K

Assets BE
2024 2023
—E_mEF =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Reportable segment assets AIREDIEE 30,610,287 27,260,157
Intangible assets BmEEAE 345,959 354,650
Interests in associates REEE QAR 603,197 723,506
Deferred tax assets REFIEE E 158,893 146,129
Other receivables and prepayments H it JE YR IE R FEA K 1,228,099 1,782,656
Other financial assets HEbem&ERE 1,493,750 1,428,109
Cash and bank balances fii N ARTT 4584 3,947,768 3,325,140
Consolidated total assets LEBEE 38,387,953 35,020,347

Geographical information

The Group’s three business segments operate principally in

(c) WEER
AEB=-ZEXBHrBEERNIL S

North Asia and South East Asia. REEIIEE -

2024 2023
—E-NF —EF =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Revenue =

North Asia it 58,434,073 56,271,520
South East Asia REE 30,651,515 17,619,776
Total segment revenue 7 SR UN E ARRE 89,085,588 73,891,296

Revenue is allocated based on the region in which the customer
is located.

WEREEP A DR

2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Assets EE
North Asia it 22,866,678 22,236,931
South East Asia KA 7,743,609 5,023,226
Reportable segment assets AR EDREE 30,610,287 27,260,157
Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the AR EDBEEREE E A M
assets are located. S o
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23.

24,

202 vSTECS Holdings Limited

Other Gains, Net

HAb WA 5

2024 2023

—EImE —EC=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Interest income FEWA 38,300 29,256
Fair value changes of other financial assets Hihe@EE N FEEZH (4,775) (17,941)
Others il 5,562 (2,091)
39,087 9,224

Operating Profit 24, &R A
Operating profit is derived after charging/(crediting) the following: ESER DEMBR(GTA)AT&IE
‘SN
2024 2023
—ENF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cost of inventories FERAK 85,167,759 70,505,900
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments BINRA(BREEEMS)
— Salaries, allowances and welfare *ﬁiFﬁ/i\ EBE AR T 1,026,153 924,765
— Provident fund contributions X 185,722 172,022
Auditors’ remuneration %8 Eﬂi B &
— audit fees —HZER 7,602 7,425
— non-audit fees —FEZEH 1,319 1,455
Depreciation of property, ME B RFEETE (M)
plant and equipment (hote 5) 117,632 114,130
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 6) | EESRE (Ki26) 3,545 3,919
Net decrease in provision for inventories GFEEBERLVFE (5,999) (33,598)
Net increase in loss allowance for trade and B 5 K H th FE UK IE B B B 1
other receivables SRR 79,040 17,926
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

25. Finance Costs 25. BB ER
2024 2023
—ZT-F —TE-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest expense on: TYgE2zFMEMAY
— Unsecured bank borrowings —mIERIRITIEE 395,716 337,212
— Secured mortgage loan —BERLRBBER - 39
— Lease liabilities —HEBEE 8,528 2,803
404,244 340,054
26. Taxation 26. PiI1E
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of RiGEEEaRNBRIBEBESER:
profit or loss represents:
2024 2023
—E-F T -=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiERT FAT
Current taxation RNEARIA
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEMEH 8,935 4,380
— Taxation outside Hong Kong —EBEIIIE 242,870 221,887
Over-provision of taxation BAFEBRARINGIA
outside Hong Kong in prior years FRRR R (1,832) (2,155)
Deferred taxation (Note 19) RERIE (H74£19) (10,417) 16,058
239,556 240,170
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% EEMNEHEREE T -_NF+ A
(2023: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year ended ST+ —HIEFEZHBFAERE G
31 December 2024. ME16.5% (Z T =4 :16.5% )&t

R
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26. Taxation (continued)

204 vsTECS Holdings Limited

Taxation outside Hong Kong has been calculated based on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at rates of taxation prevailing
in the jurisdictions in which the entities comprising the Group operate.

A withholding tax of 5% is levied on Hong Kong companies in respect
of dividend distributions arising from profits of foreign investment
enterprises in the PRC earned after 1 January 2008.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong as follows:

26.

BIE »)

T 5 5 50 B 42 4 7 BT AR AR B
DA o B0 T R R AT B E R M B
WY BEEE

ERRAMURPEZIIELER -
ZZNF-A-BRERIMZE MM E
EZREDIRME%ZTERM

AEBEBRBRAEN 2 HBEEREL
MEREEZERSBIERZNT

2024 2023
—E-EF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
Profit before taxation B 75 A1 5 ) 1,355,722 1,162,203
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B E16.5%TE 223,694 191,763
Effect of different tax rates in different tax TRMGAVEERTRRE 2
jurisdictions pa 17,616 3,335
Income not subject to taxation BART 2 WA (28,018) (27,764)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes LTS 5 TSR 2 FI X 25,457 49,805
Over provision in prior years BEFEBREEG (1,832) (2,155)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not recognised st R ERFIEE B Z
k5% 823 21,215
Tax effect of withholding tax on profits of TEIR R LM B A A A 2
the subsidiaries HGsws 1,816 3,971
Taxation charge HIEX H 239,556 240,170
In 2021, the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and RZEZ—F - EEAEEERER

Development published the Global Anti-Base Erosion (‘GloBE”) Model
Rules (“Pillar Two model rules”) for a new global minimum tax reform
applicable to large multinational enterprises. Indonesia, Singapore
and Thailand in which the Group operates have enacted domestic
minimum top-up tax rules that will take effect from 1 January 2025
based on this framework. Under the legislation, the Group is liable to
pay a top-up tax for the difference between the GIoBE effective tax
rate for each of these jurisdictions and the 15% minimum rate.

Annual Report 2024
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26. Taxation (continued)

Since the Pillar Two legislation was not effective for the year ended 31
December 2024, the Group has no related current tax exposure. The
Group applies the HKAS 12 exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar
Two income taxes.

If the new tax laws had been applied in 2024, it is unlikely to have a

26.

BIE »)

R -_RERARBE—_F M
FT-A=T - BLEFEHRER K
SENPMYEREONAZE - $%@

EREE G ERFE125% 0l HME
BRAMBERIE _ME %R@F'ﬁﬁ’]
ERBEBEERAEBEER-

W-T-mEREAFRE EHAE

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. HIFAUBRREEERATE-
27. Dividends 27. BB
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FREGEZENSERADF
Company attributable to the year EEFEEARE
2024 2023
—E-EF —EZ=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHBT
Final dividend proposed after the end of ¥R 25 HA SR 18 3R R BAR 2
the reporting period of HK25.7 cents TR EmAg2s. 7L
(2023: HK25.7 cents) per ordinary share (ZE==ZF:25.7781) 369,000 369,000

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period

A E B R R R OR B A B R

has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting EC LHRERAEE -
period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) £ — BB EEMA LR
Company attributable to the previous financial year, FR#AER IR 2 B
approved and paid during the year KARERFEARE

2024 2023

—EopE —z-=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET
Final dividend in respect of the previous BE— B ERFERFAER
financial year, approved and paid AT 2 REARR BB AR L @Ak

during the year of HK25.7 cents BT (=T =%
(2023: HK17 cents) per ordinary share 17784L) 369,281 246,656
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28. Earnings Per Share

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$1,051,979,000 (2023: HK$922,033,000) and the weighted
average of 1,390,212,000 shares (2023: 1,405,008,000 shares) in

issue.

28. BIRE R
BN

FRAEBRERNBIIZAQA#mF
A JE 46534 F1,051,979,000 7T ( =
— =4 :922,033,000/8 L) M2 #1TH
19 2 hn#E F 19 £1,390,212,000 % (

af

ISE

T — = 4 :1,405,008,000/% ) 5+ & -

2024 2023
—EmEF =
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—RA—BZBEETEBER
(thousands) (1) 1,436,890 1,450,918
Effect of share repurchased (thousands) BEROzFE (TR) 47) (3,546)
Effect of treasury shares and deferred shares EETF R MR E R 1D 2 5 &
(thousands) (Fi&) (46,631) (42,364)
Weighted average number of ordinary sharesas R+ -A=+—HB2Z2EBR
at 31 December (thousands) IREEHE (F%) 1,390,212 1,405,008
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) FREARZF (FRRE) 75.67 65.62
Diluted s

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$1,051,979,000 (2023: HK$922,033,000) and the weighted
average number of shares of 1,390,212,000 (2023: 1,405,008,000

shares), calculated as follows:

FRAEREBERMNEZARNAEZTB
A JE (R % F)1,051,979,0008 T (==
~— = £ :922,0383,0008 T) R Dz
hnAE 5 £01,390,212,0000% ( = =

— =% :1,405,008,0000% ) st E W T :

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RtZA=+—HzEBR
as at 31 December (thousands) IEEFEHE (FH) 1,390,212 1,405,008
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ZA=+—8 (&%)~
(diluted) as at 31 December (thousands) LB INRE S8 (T ) 1,390,212 1,405,008
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents per share) &S EF (FRENL) 75.67 65.62
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29. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments

@

Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to
Directors of the Company during the year are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - - UF+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. EEREAREEENS

(a)

EEM=

RERACNXEBNARBESFTZ

BMemmmT:

2024 2023

—EmEF ZE=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Fees we 636 805
Other emoluments Eiie

— Basic salaries and housing allowances —EXFEREREREL 12,156 10,583

— Discretionary bonus — BB TEAL 7,830 9,458

- Contributions to pension scheme — R SR 247 241

20,869 21,087

The emoluments of each Director for the year ended

31 December 2024 is set out below:

ZEEEH=2_ZT-_NF+=A
—t+—HLEFEZBEeHEIOT

Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
HEEXHER EBRE
BEpg wne FEERE BfsTE4 BEIEEA k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FTER FTER FTER FTiER
Executive Directors WTES
Li Jialin FiE - 5,460 4,540 18 10,018
Ong Wei Hiam, William TE 145 2,629 926 18 3,718
Chan Hoi Chau R - 908 1,590 18 2,516
Gu Sanjun BZE - 2,379 354 175 2,908
Li Yue 322 - 780 420 18 1,218
Non-executive Directors FMTES
Zhang Dongjie REN 120 - - - 120
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFNTESR
Lam Hin Chi =10 120 - - - 120
Li Wei N 120 - - - 120
Wang Xiaolong TR 120 - - - 120
Yu Dingheng REE 4 - - - 4
Gao Yiyang REE 7 - - - 7
636 12,156 7,830 247 20,869
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

29. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments ontinuea)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continuec)

The emoluments of each Director for the year ended
31 December 2023 is set out below:

2. EEREAREEENS

(%)

(a)

EEME 2

REEHE-_T-_=%1+=-A
—t+—BHLEFEZBMEeHEIOT

Basic
salaries and Contribution
housing  Discretionary to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme Total
EXFHE R BiRE
BEME e B EER BB TEAL BE E k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET FiET FET FiET
Executive Directors HITES
Li Jialin E - 5,460 4,540 18 10,018
Ong Wei Hiam, William TR 139 2,629 932 18 3,718
Chan Hoi Chau RN - 910 1,590 18 2,518
Gu Sanjun B=E - 804 1,976 169 2,949
Li Yue ES2] - 780 420 18 1,218
Non-executive Directors FMTES
Zhang Dongjie REN 114 - - - 114
Cheung Wing Lee Isaiah 3R K Fl 144 - - - 144
Independent Non-executive Directors BUERTES
Lam Hin Chi BBy 120 - - - 120
Li Wei iz 120 - - - 120
Wang Xiaolong TR 120 - - - 120
LiYi x5 48 - - - 48
805 10,583 9,458 241 21,087

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include approximately
HK$371,000 (2023: HK$408,000) paid to Independent Non-
executive Directors.

No emoluments have been paid to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the current and prior
years.

During the current and the prior year, no Director of the
Company waived any emoluments.
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29. Directors’ and Senior Management’s

Emoluments continueq)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI EE (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

(%)

(b)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included two (2023: two) Directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2023: three)

2. EEREAREEENS

EE&eFHAL

AEBEFAAEZHEESALE
EREBE(ZEZ=F - MWHB)=E
EHEZHMEERLEXENZ
AMEARB-FAZIFTEH=

individuals during the year are as follows: Z(ZEZ=Z2)AT 2B
mE
2024 2023
—ZE-F —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Fees e - -
Basic salaries and allowances EARFH KIER 8,831 8,750
Discretionary bonuses BISTEAL 7,000 7,062
Contributions to pension schemes RIREFTEIH R 516 612
16,347 16,424
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e &AmT -

Number of individuals

AE
Emolument band B < 25 & 2024 2023
—E_UF —E-=
HK$4,500,001 —HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ Jo— 5,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$5,000,001 —HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/ 75— 5,500,000/% JT 1 1
HK$6,000,001 —HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 75— 6,500,000/ 7T 1 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

30. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement ~ 30. &R &R EREH KM
(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (a) PR Al & A ,% = M5
generated from operations REFEZE
2024 2023
—T-OF =5
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 FHT FHET
Profit before taxation 5 552 A A 1,355,722 1,162,203
Interest income FBULA 23 (38,300) (29,256)
Interest expense B 25 404,244 340,054
Depreciation of property, YE - BERZBINE
plant and equipment 24 117,632 114,130
Amortisation of intangible assets Em A E 24 3,545 3,919
Share of associates’ profits DAREEE QR F (60,741) (75,028)
Share of a joint venture’s loss DEEEREEIE - 7,918
Fair value loss on other financial assets HMEemEELATE
g 23 4,775 17,941
Loss on disposal of property, HEME WEMEREZ
plant and equipment 18 2,130 169
Operating profit before working EEESEBHA L
capital changes 4582 5 | 1,788,907 1,542,050
Changes in working capital HEEeH
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 & H th FE UK IB LA &2
and deferred expenses TERER S (1,227,558) (2,343,813)
Decrease /(increase) in inventories GBERL (M) 749,179 (1,236,390)
Increase in trade and other payables and & 5 N H b B~ I A &
contract liabilities BHEEEM 802,229 2,930,035
Net cash generated from operations CEFTBIRE T 58 2,112,757 891,882
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B EI NG

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE —Z - NF+ - A=+—HILFE

30. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement  30. &R & B & REHR KR T

(continued) (#)
T . ey . . = &= 2
(b) Reconciliation of (assets)/liabilities arising from (b) @t & E B AT F E (
financing activities E) / 2 B2 ¥
Other financial ~ Other financial
Lease liabilities Borrowings assets liabilities Total
HEgaE 8 HteREE HbeRE8E gt
(/\/ote 2) (/Vo(e 21) (/Vo(e 11) (/Vo(e 18
(Hi20) (Hiie1) (1) (#ii18)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEn Fign Fign Fign
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=f#-8-H 225,248 8,422,683 (3,352,508) 3,670,456 8,965,884
Changes from financing cash flows: BERSTEZY:
Proceeds from new bank loans MERTERNERE - 24,020,079 - - 24,020,079
Repayment of borrowings BEEE - (04,368,329) - - (04,368,329)
(Pledging of assets for)/proceeds from BHER a?f% (BEREE)/
secured obligations P& - - (5,276,940) 5,013,174 (263,766)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ﬁ%ﬁ‘f%ﬁim k) (110,602) - - - (110,602)
Interest paid BHFIE (2,803 (337,251) - - (340,054)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERSTERYET (113,405) (685,501) (5,276,940) 5,013,174 (1,062,672)
Other changes: Hiv#E:
Increase in lease liabilties from entering RERFTLERLHAE
into renewal or new leases during the year mENNHEEEE 246,049 - - - 246,049
Interest expense FEREX 2,803 337,251 - - 340,054
Derecognition SR (22,491) - - - (22,491)
Set-off of pledged assets against NEEREERH
secured obligations BEAER - - 7,048,112 (7,948,112) -
Exchange adjustments B3 HE 185 29,543 62,785 (79,706) 12,808
Total other changes Hh2ges 206,546 366,794 8,010,897 (8,027,817 576,420
At 31 December 2023 RZEZZF+ZA=1-H 338,389 8,103,976 (618,546) 655,813 8,479,632
At 1 January 2024 RZE-ME-F-AH 338,389 8,103,976 (618,546) 655,813 8,479,632
Changes from financing cash flows: BERSTEEY:
Proceeds from new bank loans HERTERMERE - 27,492,904 - - 27,492,904
Repayment of borrowings EREE - (27,358,865) - - (27,358,865)
(Pledging of assets for)/proceeds from BEAER (BEREE)/
secured obligations 558 - - (12,209,781) 12,175,625 (34,156)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENRERSHELSBH (152,181) - - - (152,181)
Interest paid Eﬁ ME (8,528) (395,716) - - (404,244)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERLNELDLE (160,709) (261,677)  (12,209,781) 12,175,625 (456,542)
Other changes: Hiv#®:
Increase in lease liabilties from entering WERTERSNEE
into renewal or new leases during the year mENHEEaE 255,225 - - - 255,225
Interest expense FB RS 8,528 395,716 - - 404,244
Derecognition RIFBR (17,752) - - - (17,752)
Acqisition of a subsidiary WE-FEREAT 17,228 1,091,848 - - 1,109,076
Set-off of pledged assets against NERREER iﬁ
secured obligations BREEL - - 12,156,944 (12,156,944) -
Exchange adjustments EXAE (5,852) (85,831) 13,516 (19,150) (97,317)
Total other changes H2Ees 257,377 1,401,733 12,170,460 (12,176,094) 1,653,476
At 31 December 2024 RZB-ME+ZA=1-H 435,057 9,244,032 (657,867) 655,344 9,676,566
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

; PaN ==
30. Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement  30. ZREREREBR KM=
(continued) (#)
(c) Acquisition of a subsidiary (c) WE—RWERXF
During the fiscal year, the Group increased its equity interest in RAVBREE AEEEBHER
its 49.99% associate, VSTECS Phils Inc., through the conversion FERERARE BNTHEHE
of an existing loan. Following this transaction, VSTECS Phils Inc. % & A A]VSTECS Phils Inc. (£
has become a 51% subsidiary of the Group. [K49.99% )R KR H
& * VSTECS Phils Inc.E X A A
EEBERSI%MB AR -
2024
—T-F
$’000
FHET
Fair value of net assets of a subsidiary acquired WEKMBARZEEZAAEBE
Property, plant and equipment Y RE KR 28,913
Deferred tax assets FRIERTEE = 4,679
Trade and other receivables B 5 NE M EW A 1,430,141
Inventories FE 630,004
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEED 74,944
Finance lease liabilities MEHERE (17,228)
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEAMENFIA (712,561)
Bank loans RITER (1,091,848)
Tax payables JER R IE (4,360)
Net assets FEE 342,684
Less: non-controlling interest B SRR AR (173,146)
Net assets acquired WEEEE S 169,538
Less: Interest in associate PR AN b (166,066)
Total consideration on acquisition of a subsidiary WE—FMEARZBaRE 3,472
Less: conversion of loan to an associate W ETE N B B R AR A (3,472)
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B EBRERS MRS EEY (74,944)
Net cash inflow e mAFE (74,944)
31. Capital Commitments 31. EAXREE
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had commitments to make RZE_WE+_A=+—A0 K&

capital contributions of HK$15,840,000 (2023: HK$25,308,000) to

certain investments.

212 VSTECS Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2024

BRE

T FHREHE15,840,0008 T (=

T — =4 :25,308,000/8 7T ) 2 &KIE -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

32. Related Party Transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@

Director’s quarter

The Group entered into a rental agreement with Joint Honour
Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li Jialin (“Mr. Li"),
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a major
shareholder, in respect of a director’s quarter. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of HK$220,000 to
Joint Honour Development Limited (2023: HK$220,000).

Motor vehicle

The Group entered into a motor vehicle rental agreement with
Joint Honour Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li,
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company is a
major shareholder. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid
a monthly rental of HK$15,000 to Joint Honour Development
Limited (2023: HK$15,000).

License fee

The Group entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind Co.,
a company in which Mr. Li is a major shareholder. Pursuant
to the agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee of
HK$14,000 in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle License
to Kong Lung Ind Co. (2023: HK$14,000).

Guarantee to an associate

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has given guarantee
to financial institution in respect of loan facility entered by an
associate to the extent of HK$147,319,000.

Key management compensation (including the
amounts disclosed in note 29)

Key management compensation amounted to HK$71,572,000
during the year (2023: HK$64,548,000).

2. BEALERS

AT /& R E

(a)

BHERERARLT

ATHETZE

EEES

AEBHRERFERERER AR (K
ARRAIEREVITESTEMEL
(IFERENAETEREZQA)
R HEEEEIIL—HEER
HoREZBHE AEEREF
BRAER QA XM ATE220,000
BT (ZF - =4 :220,000%
JL) e

A

AEBHEFERAER AR (K
ARRAIEREVTESTREARE
EREZARDY—HAER
ERE-BEZDBE AKERE
FEEAERAAXZM AM15,000

BT (ZZT-=4%:15,000%
JL) e

R E

AEERBEEEQAR (FThAE
BEERRZAG)EL M
FoREBEZME AEERPEE
WIERE A TERE14,000%8
TTYTBRBERR (ZE=_=F:
14,000/ 7C) °

mEBE N T 2 BR

RZFE_=ZF+_A=+—HA 'K
SEHEMeMEBRHAHEA —
ML RAFTLZERBEER
147,319,000/ 7T

ITRERBAEBHM (B
M 29T IR E 2 £ 58)

TR - FTEBEEABZEFNA
71,572,000 0 (Z & = =%
64,548,000 71 ) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B R R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+_-_A=+—HILEFE

33. Statement of Financial Position of the Company ~ 33. 22 &) Z Bf ik i 3/

214 vSTECS Holdings Limited

As at 31 December 2024

A\ WE+ZRA=1—H

2024 2023
—E-EF —ET-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FBT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BB R RE 767 972
Investments in subsidiaries KB AR 2 RE 7 2,115,161 2,115,161
2,115,928 2,116,133
Current assets REEE
Amount due from subsidiaries JiE W Bt B8 2 Bl RUIR 969,990 1,305,670
Prepayments TR FIE 152 124
Cash and cash equivalents Re &fﬁ TEEY 23,075 12,834
993,217 1,318,628
Total assets mEE 3,109,145 3,434,761
EQUITY =
Share capital & A 14 143,645 143,689
Reserves ] 16 (6,368) 344,057
Total equity MR 137,277 487,746
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to a subsidiary R —EH B A 2,971,666 2,946,815
Other payable H b e 5RIB 202 200
Total liabilities BaF 2,971,868 2,947,015
Total equity and liabilities EZNEERE 3,109,145 3,434,761
Net current liabilities RBEEFH 1,978,651 1,628,387
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBER 137,277 487,746

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

21 March 2025.

Li Jialin Ong Wei Hiam, William
ZEM EEM

Director Director

E=a EZF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B RS SR R MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE - —UF+—-A=+—HILtFE

34. Possible impact of amendments, new standards

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2024

Up to the date of issue of the consolidated financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended standards, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2024 and which
have not been adopted in the consolidated financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of
changes in foreign exchange rates
— Lack of exchangeability

1 January 2025

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial
instruments and HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments. disclosures — Amendments to
the classification and measurement of
financial instruments

1 January 2026

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
— Volume 11

1 January 2026

HKFRS 18, Presentation and disclosure in
financial statements

HKFRS 19, Subsidiaries without public
accountability: disclosures

1 January 2027

1 January 2027

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements, except for HKFRS 18, where the presentation
and disclosure of the Group’s consolidated financial statements are
expected to change.

M BEZEC

=

£+=A
=t+—BLEFECEME
‘n’*i&&Zﬂ%‘a‘?%ﬁ-fiﬁ-Eﬂ
KREREBAETR2EE
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St —BLEFERRER BHRRE
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HAEEAHE -

N

o

RUTRE#Mg 2 &RBZ

SETEHBEX
BB ERE215 2 —T-RHF
183] - S M5B F B Ay —A—H
FE = ] LR
EAYBREENESR TN
B3] 2@ T AREH —A—H
BT ZERIE TR
2F T A ##EE—
AT AMSIER
FTEZIEET
A TS S 2 ZERE
2 FERE-F11E —A—H
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B E 25 R E —A—H
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M %8R

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for ANEBBEREAFBFEEZEEUAREEH
the last five financial years is set out below: BEBMEHINWOT

Results 2B

Years ended 31 December

BE+-BA=1+—HLEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-NE —E-=F T —E-—F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAT FAT FAT
Revenue g 89,085,588 73,891,296 77,323,994 78,335,446 69,961,881
Profit before taxation B 750 A1 g ) 1,355,722 1,162,203 1,081,783 1,555,136 1,247,265
Taxation ] (239,556) (240,170) (258,712) (241,110) (179,685)
Profit for the year F @ F 1,116,166 922,033 823,071 1,314,026 1,067,580
Attributable to: AT AT RELS
Equity Shareholders of RRARERFEEA
the Company 1,051,979 922,033 823,071 1,314,026 1,067,580
Non-controlling interests RS 64,187 - - - -
1,116,166 922,033 823,071 1,314,026 1,067,580

Assets and Liabilities BEERERE

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

—EZNE —E-=F —E-= ZEC—F —ECEFE

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FHET FAT FAT FAT

Total assets HEE 38,387,953 35,020,347 34,766,606 32,176,432 29,425,571
Total liabilities Bwam (29,516,437)  (26,797,511)  (27,108,828)  (24,265,002)  (22,599,285)
Total equity B 8,871,516 8,222,836 7,657,778 7,911,430 6,826,286
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